Indiana University Bulletin

Division of Allied Health Sciences

Indiana University Bloomington

- *College of Arts and Sciences
- *School of Business!
- *School of Continuing Studies²
- *School of Education
- *Graduate School
- *School of Health, Physical Education, and Recreation
- School of Journalism
- *School of Law-Bloomington
- *School of Library and Information Science
- *School of Music
- *School of Optometry
- *School of Public and Environmental Affairs1

University Division

Indiana University-Purdue University at Indianapolis

- *School of Business¹
- *School of Continuing Studies2
- *School of Dentistry
- *School of Education1
- School of Engineering and Technology (Purdue University)
- *Graduate School
- *Herron School of Art
- School of Journalism
- School of Law-Indianapolis
- *School of Liberal Arts
- *School of Medicine
- *Division of Allied Health Sciences
- *Division of Continuing Medical Education
- *School of Nursing
- *School of Physical Education
- *School of Public and Environmental Affairs1
- School of Science (Purdue University)
- *School of Social Work
- **IUPUI** University Division

Columbus Center

The Regional Campuses

Indiana University East (Richmond)

Indiana University at Kokomo

Indiana University Northwest (Gary)

Indiana University at South Bend

Indiana University Southeast (New Albany)

Indiana University-Purdue University at Fort Wayne (IPFW)

Bulletins for the divisions of the University marked (*) above may be obtained from the Office of Admissions, 814 East Third Street, Indiana University, Bloomington, Indiana 47405. (Please note that there are two Indiana University Schools of Law and be sure to specify whether you want a bulletin of the Bloomington or the Indianapolis School.)

IUPUI bulletins for Purdue programs, for the IUPUI University Division, and for School of Law-Indianapolis may be obtained by writing directly to those units on the Indianapolis campus.

Write directly to the individual regional campus for its bulletin.

¹ Two bulletins are issued: graduate and undergraduate.

² Brochures on the General Studies Degree Program, Independent Study Program, Division of Labor Studies, Division of Professional Development, and Conference Bureau are available from this school (Owen Hall).

Indiana University Bulletin 1987/89

Divison of Allied Health Sciences



While every effort is made to provide accurate and current information, Indiana University reserves the right to change without notice statements in the Bulletin series concerning rules, policies, fees, curricula, courses, or other matters.

INDIANA UNIVERSITY BULLETIN OFFICIAL SERIES (USPS 262440)

ISSN 0888-5338

Second-class postage paid at Bloomington, Indiana. Published seventeen times a year (one time in February, April, July, August, September, November, and December; two times in May and June; three times in March and October) by Indiana University from the Office of University Publications, Bloomington, Indiana 47405. POSTMASTER: Send address changes to INDIANA UNIVERSITY BULLETIN MAIL ROOM, 708 N. Indiana, Bloomington, Indiana 47405.

Administrative Officers

Indiana University

THOMAS EHRLICH, LL.B., LL.D., President of the University JOHN W. RYAN, Ph.D., President Emeritus of the University HERMAN B WELLS, A.M., LL.D., Chancellor of the University

W. GEORGE PINNELL, D.B.A., Executive Vice President of the University

KENNETH R. R. GROS LOUIS, Ph.D., Vice President, Bloomington

GERALD L. BEPKO, LL.M., Vice President, Indianapolis

J. TERRY CLAPACS, M.B.A., Vice President for Facilities

EDGAR G. WILLIAMS, D.B.A., Vice President for Finance: Chief Financial Officer

JUDITH G. PALMER, J.D., Vice President for Planning

DANILO ORESCANIN, D.B.A., Vice President for University Relations

JOHN D. MULHOLLAND, M.B.A., Treasurer of the University

HUGH L. THOMPSON, Ph.D., Chancellor of Indiana University at Kokomo

PEGGY GORDON ELLIOTT, Ed.D., Chancellor of Indiana University Northwest

LEON RAND, Ph.D., Chancellor of Indiana University Southeast

THOMAS P. WALLACE, Ph.D., Chancellor of Indiana University - Purdue University at Fort Wayne

H. DANIEL COHEN, Ph.D., Chancellor of Indiana University at South Bend

CHARLIE NELMS, Ed.D., Chancellor of Indiana University East

Bloomington Campus

KENNETH R. R. GROS LOUIS, Ph.D., Vice President

ANYA PETERSON ROYCE, Ph.D., Dean of the Faculties

WARD B. SCHAAP, Ph.D., Dean for Budgetary Administration and Planning

MORTON LOWENGRUB, Ph.D., Dean for Research and Graduate Development

CARROLL A. NELSON, Ph.D., Acting Dean for Undergraduate Life

MICHAEL V. W. GORDON, Ed.D., Dean of Students

DANIEL W. DE HAYES, JR., Ph.D., Dean and Director of Academic Computing

PHYLLIS R. KLOTMAN, Ph.D., Dean for Women's Affairs

JOSEPH J. RUSSELL, Ed.D., Dean for Afro-American Affairs

ALBERTO TORCHINSKY, Ph.D., Dean for Latino Affairs

ROBERT S. MAGEE, M.Div., Director of Admissions

R. GERALD PUGH, Ed.D., Registrar

MARCIA V. DONNERSTEIN, Ph.D., Campus Affirmative Action Officer

Indianapolis Campus

GERALD L. BEPKO, LL.M., Vice President

ROBERT A. GREENKORN, Ph.D., Vice President and Associate Provost (Purdue University)

HOWARD G. SCHALLER, Ph.D., Executive Dean

WILLIAM M. PLATER, Ph.D., Dean of Faculties

CAROL NATHAN, A.M., Associate Dean of Faculties

TIMOTHY L. LANGSTON, Ed.D., Dean for Student Affairs

WENDELL F. McBURNEY, Ed.D., Dean of Research and Sponsored Programs

ROBERT E. MARTIN, M.P.A., Director of Administrative Affairs

JOHN C. KRIVACS, M.S., Director of Admissions

DAVID L. ROBBINS, M.B.A., Director of Budgeting and Fiscal Affairs

RICHARD E. SLOCUM, Ed.D., Registrar

LINCOLN LEWIS, Ed.D., Campus Affirmative Action Officer

PAUL R. BIPPEN, Ed.D., Director, Columbus Center

Contents

Directory, Division of Allied Health Sciences

1 Division of Allied Health Sciences

- 1 Purpose
- 1 History
- 1 Accreditation
- 1 Mission
- 2 Philosophy
- 2 Preadmission Status
- 3 Change of Educational Objective for Preprofessional Students
- 3 Admission Policies
- 4 Admission Procedures
- 4 Transfer Credit
- 4 General Requirements for Degrees
- 5 General Education Requirements
- 6 Academic Regulations
- 7 Academic Standing
- 8 Honors
- 9 Honors Prógram
- 9 Student Rights and Responsibilities
- 11 Allied Health Alumni Association

12 Medical Center, Division of Allied Health Sciences

- 12 Division Office
- 12 Admission
- 12 General Degree, Education, and Academic Requirements

13 Medical Center—General Information

- 13 Housing
- 14 Student Activities
- 15 Student Services
- 16 Financial Aid
- 17 Academic Calendar, Indianapolis

17 Academic Programs, Medical Center

- 17 Cytotechnology
- 19 Health Services Management
- 20 Medical Record Administration
- 22 Medical Technology
- 24 Occupational Therapy
- 24 Baccalaureate Degree Program
- 26 Associate Degree Program
- 28 Physical Therapy
- 30 Radiologic Sciences
- 31 Radiologic Technology
- 34 Diagnostic Clinical Specialty
- 35 Nuclear Medicine Technology
- 37 Respiratory Therapy
- 37 Associate Degree Program
- 39 Baccalaureate Degree Program

40 Indiana University Northwest, Division of Allied Health Sciences

- 40 Division Office
- 40 Admission Policies
- 40 Admission Procedures
- 40 General Degree, Education, and Academic Requirements

41 Indiana University Northwest—General Information

- 41 History
- 42 Campus and Buildings
- 42 Student Activities
- 42 Student Services
- 43 Financial Aids

45 Academic Programs, IU Northwest

- 45 Medical Laboratory Technology
- 46 Medical Record Technology
- 48 Radiologic Technology
- 51 Respiratory Therapy
- 53 Courses Offered, 1987-89
- 53 Interdisciplinary Courses
- 53 Cytotechnology
- 54 Health Services Management
- 54 Medical Laboratory Technology
- 55 Medical Record Administration
- 55 Medical Record Technology
- 56 Medical Technology
- 58 Occupational Therapy
- 60 Physical Therapy
- 61 Radiologic Sciences
- 63 Respiratory Therapy, Medical Center
- 65 Respiratory Therapy, IU Northwest
- 66 School of Medicine Courses
- 67 Faculty, 1987-89

71 Indiana University General Information

- 72 Policies
- 72 Rules Determining Resident and Nonresident Status
- 74 Transfer to Other IU Campuses
- 76 Fees

INDIANA UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF MEDICINE DIVISION OF ALLIED HEALTH SCIENCES Academic Degree Programs



Directory—Division of Allied Health Sciences

Division Office

Acting Director, Division of Allied Health Sciences, T. Kay Carl, B.S. (317) 274-4702 Northwest Campus Division Chairperson, LaVerne Ramaeker, Ed.D., (219) 980-6542

Program Administrators, Medical Center

Coleman Hall 120 1140 West Michigan Street Indianapolis, Indiana 46223

Cytotechnology (B.S.), (317) 274-1264
Health Services Management (B.S.), (317) 274-4702
Medical Record Administration (B.S.), Mary L. McKenzie, M.S. (317) 274-7317
Medical Technology (B.S.), Mary Feeley, Ed.D. (317) 274-1264
Occupational Therapy (B.S.) (A.S.), Cel Hamant, M.S. (317) 274-8006
Physical Therapy (B.S.), Rebecca E. Porter, M.S. (317) 274-8913
Radiologic Sciences (B.S.) (A.S.), Emily Hernandez, M.S. (317) 274-3801
Respiratory Therapy (B.S.) (A.S.), Gary Gruver, M.Ed. (317) 274-7381

Program Directors, Indiana University Northwest

Hawthorn Hall 206 3400 Broadway Gary, Indiana 46408

Medical Laboratory Technology (A.S.), Judith M. Newell, B.S. (219) 980-6541 Medical Record Technology (A.S.), Margaret A. Skurka, M.S. (219) 980-6654 Radiologic Technology (A.S.), Arlene M. McKenna, M.Ed. (219) 980-6540 Respiratory Therapy (A.S.), Paula E. Neff, M.S. (219) 980-6548

Division of Allied Health Sciences

Purpose

The Indiana University School of Medicine, Division of Allied Health Sciences, is concerned with providing allied health education within the Indiana University system. The division prepares allied health professionals to provide diagnostic, therapeutic, and rehabilitative patient care or management skills for health services. As part of a major university, the division accepts and fulfills four major responsibilities by providing (1) opportunities to acquire a sound basic education in allied health sciences and to foster the development of lifelong habits of scholarship and service; (2) advancement of knowledge through research; (3) continuing education programs aimed at maintaining and improving the competence of those allied health professionals engaged in patient care or supportive health services; and (4) multiple services to the people of the state of Indiana in all areas of allied health sciences, patient care, and administrative supportive health services.

History of Current Degree Programs

The Division of Allied Health Sciences was established in 1959 by action of the Board of Trustees of Indiana University. In 1960, the Board of Trustees conferred upon the faculty of the School of Medicine the responsibility and the authority to qualify for the Bachelor of Science degree those students successfully completing the prescribed curriculum in Medical Record Administration, Medical Technology, Occupational Therapy, and Physical Therapy—academic programs which had been offered long before the establishment of the division. In 1965 the Cytotechnology Program was approved, and baccalaureate programs in Radiologic Technology were initiated in 1969. In addition to the baccalaureate degree programs, the division offers associate degree programs in Respiratory Therapy (1965), Radiologic Technology (1966), Occupational Therapy (1970), Medical Laboratory Technology (1976), and Medical Record Technology (1973). The latter two degree programs are currently offered by the division at Indiana University Northwest only. The associate degrees in respiratory therapy and radiologic technology are offered by the division at IU Northwest and the IU Medical Center at Indianapolis.

The Division of Allied Health Sciences is the undergraduate pre-baccalaureate, academic, administrative, and fiscal unit of the School of Medicine and comprises 13 distinct allied health academic degree programs. The division is one of the oldest allied health academic units in the country and has provided leadership in allied health services, as well as research and education to the citizens of Indiana, the region, and the nation for over 25 years. About 20 years ago, the division was one of 13 allied health units from across the country to participate in the planning and formation of the national professional society—the American Society of Allied Health Professions, the organization that represents individual allied health practitioners, allied health educational institutions, and allied health professional societies.

Accreditation

The Division of Allied Health Sciences shares with the other schools of the University the accreditation accorded Indiana University as a member of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools.

The programs in Cytotechnology, Medical Laboratory Technology, Medical Record Administration, Medical Record Technology, Medical Technology, Nuclear Medicine Technology, Occupational Therapy, Physical Therapy, Radiologic Technology, and Respiratory Therapy are, in addition, fully accredited by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation of the American Medical Association.

Mission

The Division of Allied Health Sciences, an integral part of the Indiana University School of Medicine, has a long tradition of academic excellence. The division's major purpose is to provide degree programs of quality in the allied health sciences to meet the needs of the people of the state of Indiana. In fulfilling its fundamental purpose, the division seeks to

develop and maintain a scholarly and competent faculty capable of achieving the following objectives:

- To provide undergraduate and graduate degree programs which offer education related to the provision of and the management of health services by the various allied health professions.
- 2. To contribute to the advancement of knowledge through research.
- 3. To provide continuing education for allied health practitioners wishing to further their career development.
- To foster the development of life-long habits of scholarship and service among faculty and students.

Philosophy

The Division of Allied Health Sciences of Indiana University is committed to quality preparation of allied health personnel with a concern for the well-being and welfare of the people they serve. The division integrates teaching, research, and service through the efforts of its faculty and students. This integration results in quality programs having a significant positive impact on health care.

Each program offered in the division provides the allied health student with an opportunity to develop expertise, scientific knowledge, and professional attitudes which will enable the student to contribute to the health of the society and obtain career satisfaction. The programs adhere to the specific professional guidelines or standards and are designed in collaboration with the appropriate accrediting bodies. All curricula are based upon a foundation in the liberal arts and sciences, which is essential for an informed and productive life.

The faculty believes that the education of allied health personnel follows a coordinated and logical interdisciplinary process based on a core body of knowledge which exists and is germane in allied health practice. By sharing experiences related to a variety of activities, the student is introduced to others who have common, yet unique, educational interests. Appreciation of the contribution of each health discipline and interaction with peers and scholars in different health professions encourages the coordination of health planning, health services, disease prevention, and health promotion.

Education is perceived by the faculty as an evolving and continuing process resulting in an increased ability to think, reason, and judge. This leads to a satisfying and self-disciplined life. Effective education allows for individual difference and is provided in a participative atmosphere. It is believed that freedom of choice and meaningful assimilation of facts nurture the development of the students, enhance their understanding of patients' and clients' problems, and promote a dedication to life-long self-evaluation and self-education.

Faculty of the Division of Allied Health Sciences are fully qualified in their fields of expertise and hold appropriate degrees and certification or licensure. In implementing the objectives of the division, they strive to keep their own professional and teaching competencies current. The faculty are committed to preparing uniquely qualified personnel who must meet the challenges of future complex and everchanging health care needs of society.

The graduates of the division should be prepared to apply the knowledge they have attained in their selected discipline. Graduates have a responsibility to maintain competency through formal and informal continuing education and to contribute to new knowledge in their discipline. Graduates have legal, moral, and ethical responsibilities to their employers, clients, patients, and the public and are expected to participate in community and professional activities.

This statement of philosophy forms the central core of values from which the division's purpose, mission, objectives, policies, and procedures are derived.

Preadmission Status

Matriculation

Enrollment at Indiana University does not guarantee admission to the Division of Allied Health Sciences. To be eligible for admission to the programs offered by the division, students must adhere to the academic regulations of the school or division in which they are enrolled and meet division and program preadmission requirements as stipulated in the general education and program sections of this *Bulletin*.

Except for those persons applying to the associate degree programs in occupational therapy technology, medical laboratory technology, medical record technology, and radiologic technology, all students remain in University Division or other academic units until they are accepted into the Division of Allied Health Sciences.

Change of Educational Objective for Preprofessional Students

Changing one's educational objective to an allied health program does not guarantee admission to the division or the program. Students thinking of changing their educational objective should consult with the allied health counselor on their respective campuses prior to initiating the change. Pre-allied health students in University Division or other Indiana University schools must follow that academic unit's change of educational objective procedures. All students must meet division and program admission requirements in order to be admitted to the Division of Allied Health Sciences.

Admission Policies

The admission policies of individual programs within the Division of Allied Health Sciences comply with the following standards:

Prerequisite Course Work Applicants must complete prerequisite courses at an accredited high school (or by GED equivalent), college, or university. Individual programs determine the specific courses and the minimum grade which must be achieved in any course (see specific program information). Completion of a prerequisite course with pass/fail grade must be approved by each program.

Grade Requirements Without exception, applicants must have a grade point average of at least a 2.0 on 4.0 scale for all completed course work. Some programs have established a minimum grade point average higher than 2.0 on a 4.0 scale. Some programs also use a component of the overall grade point average (for example, math/science grade point average). See specific program information. Only completed course work and the resultant grade point average are evaluated. In evaluating the high school record of applicants to an associate degree program, only academic course work will be used in calculation of the admission grade point average. For course work in progress when an offer of admission is made and for all course work taken following the offer and prior to the official beginning of the program, the applicant must obtain a grade point average of at least 2.0 on a 4.0 scale each enrollment period. The applicant must also maintain the minimum grade point average as established by the program. The applicant's grade point average will be the major consideration (51 percent or greater) for admission. (See specific program information.)

Applicants whose grade point average is at least 2.0 on a 4.0 scale and who have repeated courses will have their admission grade point average calculated by using the highest grade earned. This repeat option includes the use of the Indiana University FX option and is applied with the following restrictions: no more than three courses will be deleted, which can total no more than three courses are repeated, the applicant will be consulted prior to the calculation of the admission grade point average to determine which of the repeated courses are to be deleted.

Applicants may petition the program for up to one year of academic bankruptcy based on compelling non-academic reasons. (See specific program information.) Course work that has been bankrupted for admission purposes cannot be used for the granting of the degree.

Testing Applicants may be required to complete testing as designated by the program.

Interview Applicants may be required to complete a personal interview. The interview may be a component of the admission decision.

Technical Standards For admission to and participation in a division program, applicants must meet non-academic technical standards that enable students to engage in educational and training activities in such a way that they will not endanger themselves or others. Division technical standards are mailed to applicants along with the acknowledgement of the receipt of the application. Program-specific technical standards, if applicable, are distributed prior to selection of applicants.

Preference to In-state Residents Preference is given to applicants who are Indiana residents. Preference is also given to applicants who complete the majority of applicable course work at a campus of Indiana University.

Nondiscrimination Policy Indiana University has an Affirmative Action Office on each campus and complies with all federal regulations against discrimination on the basis of sex, age, race, religion, ethnic origin, veteran status, or handicap.

Policy Changes Policies concerning the minimum grade point average for admission consideration are subject to change. Changes become effective the semester following the announcement of the decision to the university counselors and other constituencies. Changes in prerequisite courses or the minimum grade required in a prerequisite course will be applied as follows:

- 1. Applicants who have taken the course prior to the change and who meet the old grade requirement will have satisfactorily completed the requirement.
- 2. Applicants who have taken the course prior to the change and who did not meet the old grade requirement must complete the course under the new requirements.
- 3. Applicants enrolled in the course at the time of the change will be permitted to meet the old course requirements.
- 4. Applicants who have not taken the course prior to the change must meet the new grade requirements.

Admission Procedures

- 1. In addition to the general admission requirements stated above, individuals must read the campus-specific and program-specific sections in this bulletin for additional admission requirements and deadlines.
- 2. Individuals seeking admission to a division program must submit a complete division application prior to the program's application deadline. See the campus-specific section of this bulletin for the addresses of the division offices. When applying to more than one program, a separate application must be completed for each program. Application for admission to the division does not constitute automatic admission to a program. Applicants who are not Indiana University students must also file an Indiana University application and pay the application fee prior to the program application deadline.
- 3. All complete applications are reviewed by the program's admission committee and the selection of a class is based on division and program admission criteria. All applicants receive written notification of their admission status.
- 4. Applicants may appeal any admission decision except the requirement of a grade point average of 2.0 on a 4.0 scale. Copies of the policies and procedures governing the appeals process are available on request.
- 5. Individuals interested in being admitted to one of the division's programs should contact the program of interest annually for an update of admission criteria.
- The division application is revised each summer. Applicants must obtain an application for the year in which they wish to apply.
- 7. Applicants should check the current division application for the deadlines for submission.

Transfer Credit

Acceptance of credit from a regionally accredited college or university for transfer to Indiana University will be determined by the Office of Records and Admissions.

Only credit carrying a grade of C or above will be considered for transfer. The University does not accept for transfer credit special credit by examination awarded by another college or university. Credit earned through a regionally accredited junior college or a community college is normally limited to the equivalent of two years of academic work toward a baccalaureate degree and one year of academic work toward an associate degree.

All credit to be applied to an allied health degree earned through the Division of Independent Study of Indiana University, correspondence study, or other nontraditional methods must be validated and approved by the Division of Allied Health Sciences program faculty to which the student is applying. The Division of Allied Health Sciences retains the right to determine the acceptability of transfer credit to meet degree requirements.

General Requirements for Degrees

The faculty of the Division of Allied Health Sciences, Indiana University School of Medicine, will recommend for degrees only those students who have been admitted to Indiana University and are students in good standing in the Division of Allied Health Sciences. Candidates for degrees are eligible for graduation upon completion of all program

requirements in effect at the time of first registration, provided requirements are met within five years.

The division program faculty reserve the right, however, to require students whose program course of study is interrupted for any reason to meet requirements as specified by the director of the program and the dean for allied health. Changes in the student's original program may be necessary when, for example, a curriculum has been revised, offerings are no longer available, significant changes in curriculum content have occurred, or repetition of material is deemed essential to assure continuity of clinical competency.

Academic counseling and guidance are available for students. Students are responsible for seeking such counseling and guidance, and for planning courses of study to meet degree requirements as follows:

- Based upon earned Indiana University credits, a minimum cumulative grade point average of 2.0 must be maintained.
- 2. A minimum of 30 semester hours of program or program-related course work must be completed in residence on the Indiana University campus at which the degree is awarded.
- 3. Additional general requirements must be completed for the bachelor's degree or associate degree as listed below:

Bachelor's Degree

- a. Minimum of 122 semester hours.
- b. Division baccalaureate degree general education requirements.
- c. Minimum of 30 semester hours in courses at the 300-400 (junior-senior) level.

Associate Degree

- a. Minimum of 60 semester hours.
- b. Division associate degree general education requirements.

Students must complete the prescribed course of study, meeting program academic, professional, and technical standards requirements, which may exceed the requirements stated above. Program professional standards consist of ethics and proper health care practices to which students must adhere. Program faculty will distribute these standards when appropriate.

During the semester prior to graduation, the student is responsible for submitting an intentto-graduate form, which indicates that the student plans to complete all requirements for the appropriate degree.

Work for a degree must be completed within five years from the time the student first enrolls in the professional program. Under unusual circumstances, the program director may recommend granting a waiver of this requirement.

Degrees are granted in May, June, August, and December; however, Commencement exercises are held only in May. Candidates for degrees in June, August, and December participate in the preceding May Commencement.

General Education Requirements

Each candidate for an allied health degree must complete course work in the following categories:

Basic General Education

Courses	B.S. Degree
Written Communication	one course
Verbal Communication	one course
Humanities	one course
(Literature, Philosophy, Fine Arts) College-level Mathematics Social-Behavioral Sciences Basic Life-Physical Sciences	one course two courses two courses

At least two courses: each one from the different categories of Humanities, Mathematics, Social-Behavioral Sciences, or

Basic Life-Physical

Sciences.

A.S. Degree one course one course

Programmatic General Education

Each program has additional general education requirements and/or specific course recommendations. Refer to the program of interest in the *Division of Allied Health Sciences Bulletin* for specific information.

Professional Program

An outline of the professional program is contained in the program-specific information in this *Bulletin*.

Academic Regulations

All students admitted to the Division of Allied Health Sciences are governed by the following academic regulations.

```
Grades The grade code is as follows:
```

```
A + A, or A - (excellence in academic performance)
B+, B, or B- (above average achievement)
C+, C, or C- (average performance)
D+, D, or D- (lowest passing grade but below desired standards)
               (failed)
FΧ
               (failed, course repeated)
Ι
               (incomplete)
S
               (satisfactory)
P
               (passing)
R
               (deferred)
               (withdrawn)
```

Points are assigned to determine the cumulative grade point average as follows:

```
C
A + \text{ or } A = 4.0
                     = 2.0
       = 3.7
A –
                 C - = 1.7
B +
       = 3.3
                D + = 1.3
        = 3.0
                D = 1.0
В
        = 2.7
                D - = 0.7
B --
        = 2.3
                F
                     = 0.0
```

No points are assigned for I, S, P, R, W, or FX grades.

Grade Point Average Courses transferred from other institutions are not used to calculate the cumulative grade point average for graduation. All courses that are repeated are evaluated by averaging the grades received regardless of the number of times they are taken. Courses for which the grades of I, S, P, R, W, or FX are assigned are not used to calculate the cumulative grade point average since there are no points assigned to these grades.

R Grade, Deferred The R grade is applicable only to courses approved for that purpose. The grade R (deferred grade) used on the final report indicates that the nature of the course is such that the work of the student can be evaluated only after more than one term.

Pass/Fail Pass/fail grading is a student option. Any student in good standing may enroll in elective courses for which the grade assigned is P (pass) or F (failure). Such courses, if passed, are credited toward the degree but would not affect the grade point average. A failing grade adversely affects the grade point average. Students may not use the pass/fail option for required courses. No more than one pass/fail course may be taken in any one semester. Students are limited to a maximum of 24 pass/fail credits for the baccalaureate degree and a maximum of 12 pass/fail credits for the associate degree.

Satisfactory/Fail A grade of S (satisfactory performance) or F (failure) is used for approved courses. In such courses, the only grades permitted are S and F, and students are notified during the first class session of the S/F grading policy for the course. The credit hours earned with a grade of S count toward graduation, but the S grade will not be calculated in the grade point average. However, an F grade is computed in the grade point average. The number of courses taken on an S/F basis does not affect the number of courses permissible on a P/F basis.

Incompletes The grade of I (incomplete) indicates that a student made successful progress in a course and completed a majority of the course work satisfactorily but, because of a compelling nonacademic reason, did not complete all of the course work by the end of the grading period. The course instructor establishes the criteria, procedure, and time limit for the

removal of the I grade. The time limit, however, may not exceed one calendar year, after which time the I grade, if not changed by the instructor, automatically becomes an F.

Credit by Examination A student may receive credit for certain courses by successful performance on examinations offered by an academic program within the division. Under University policy, credit by examination will be recorded simply with the grade of S. Eligibility for credit by examination is determined by the student's program faculty.

Withdrawal From a Course With appropriate approval of the faculty, withdrawal is permitted at or before mid-semester with an automatic grade of WX. See the sections of this *Bulletin* that deal with programs at the Medical Center, Indianapolis, and with programs at Indiana University Northwest for specific withdrawal procedures. The desire to avoid a low grade is not an acceptable reason for withdrawal from a course.

Double Major A double major does not exist in the Division of Allied Health Sciences, and second major options have not been established between the division and any other academic unit. Each degree in the Division of Allied Health Sciences is a separate academic curriculum, and students may not pursue a double major.

Multiple degrees Students earning more than one degree at the same level are required to meet the academic requirements for the degree in each school and be recommended for the degree by the faculty of each school. Students receiving a degree from the Division of Allied Health Sciences are required to complete the professional component in sequence with their class of admission.

FX Option for Retaken Courses Undergraduate students are permitted to repeat courses in which they received an F at Indiana University and have the second grade in the course count in the GPA. The student's transcript, however, will record all grades. An FX will replace the original F on the student's transcript for the repeated course. The following restrictions apply to the use of the FX option: (1) a student may exercise the FX option for no more than three courses, totaling no more than 10 credit hours; and (2) a student may use the FX option only once for a given course. A grade of D (or any other grade) cannot be improved under this policy. Also, this policy does not apply to courses retaken prior to the 1976 fall semester.

The student who repeats a course must receive an A, B, C, D, P, S, or F to change the original F to an FX. The grade of W does not qualify. Students in the division wishing to use the FX option should consult with their faculty adviser to obtain approval prior to retaking a course.

Remedial Courses Remedial and refresher courses will not satisfy any course requirement for any allied health degree except the 9 credit hour mathematics sequences (COAS J111, J112, and J113) which may be counted as equivalent to the single 3 credit hour mathematics course.

Academic Standing

Students in Good Standing Students must maintain a minimum cumulative grade point average of C (2.0), a minimum grade point average of 2.0 for the most recent academic session, and meet additional programmatic, academic, and professional standards in order to be considered in good standing. Students are informed of programmatic, academic, and professional standards during program orientation.

Class Standing Within Indiana University, class standing is based on the total number of credit hours a student has earned. However, within the division, class standing is assigned according to a student's progress in the professional curriculum.

Semester Load To be considered a full-time student by the University, the student must register for a minimum of 12 credit hours. The maximum load is 20 credit hours. The number of credit hours determining full-time student status may vary with the nature of the program. For any enrollment period required by a division program, the student is considered to be full-time regardless of the number of credit hours taken during that period. Students wishing to carry more than 17 credits must obtain permission of the program director and dean or his or her representative. In addition, students should have a cumulative B (3.0) average or have earned a B (3.0) average in their last full semester.

Probation Students may be placed on probation for not meeting the standards of academic performance or professional behavior. Undergraduate students will be placed on University academic probation when their cumulative grade point average falls below C (2.0) or for any

academic session following one in which they fail to attain a C (2.0) grade point average. Several allied health programs have additional academic and professional standards, and failure to meet these program-specific standards will also result in probation. Students will be informed of these standards upon entering an allied health program.

Students placed on probation will be notified in writing of this status and of any restrictions placed upon them during the probation period. During the probationary period, the student's academic progress and professional behavior will be evaluated by the program faculty. The program faculty's evaluation and recommendations concerning probation status will be forwarded to the director of the Division of Allied Health Sciences. The student will be removed from probation at the end of the probationary period providing academic progress and professional behavior meet the stated standards. The probationary students will be notified by the division director of their status at the end of the probationary period.

Dismissal Students may be dismissed from the division for failure to meet academic or professional standards. The dean will inform students of such action by letter. Students may not be readmitted to any Division of Allied Health Sciences program for a period of not less than one academic term following dismissal. Dismissed students applying for readmission must complete the admission process again and compete with students seeking admission for the first time. If the student is readmitted, the student is readmitted on probationary status for the first semester of return. Should a student who has been dismissed from a program and reinstated be dismissed a second time, the student will not be eligible for readmission to that degree program.

Academic Standards A student in the Division of Allied Health Sciences may be dismissed from the division when, in the judgment of the faculty, the student has ceased to make satisfactory progress toward a degree. When an undergraduate student fails to attain a C (2.0) grade point average in any two consecutive academic sessions; or has a cumulative grade point average below C (2.0) for two consecutive academic sessions; or fails to earn higher than a D (1.0) grade point average in any one academic session, the student is automatically considered to be making unsatisfactory progress toward a degree and is thereby eligible for dismissal.

In addition, a student who fails to meet program-specific academic requirements is considered not making satisfactory academic progress toward a degree and may be dismissed. At the time of initial enrollment, each student receives a copy of the program-specific academic requirements.

Professional Standards A student failing to meet the standards of professional and personal conduct may be recommended for dismissal. These standards are distributed by each program at the time of initial enrollment.

Withdrawal and Readmission Students in good standing who voluntarily and temporarily withdraw from a program will be placed in a temporary inactive status with the Division of Allied Health Sciences. At the time of departure, it is the student's responsibility to arrange in writing for continuation with the individual program director. Students are allowed to reenroll without review as specified in the continuation agreement. Students must meet any specific academic/clinical requirements associated with re-enrollment under the continuation agreement. Students failing to re-enroll as specified in the continuation agreement are subject to dismissal from the Division of Allied Health Sciences.

Students who withdraw without arranging in writing for continuation with the program director, or fail to enroll in any academic session, may be dismissed from the Division of Allied Health Sciences for failing to make satisfactory progress toward a degree. Such students wishing to re-enroll must file an application for admission and will be considered new applicants.

Honors

The Division of Allied Health Sciences offers the following honors to recognize superior student performances:

Degrees Awarded with Distinction The University recognizes a student's superior performance in course work by awarding the associate's or bachelor's degree with one of

three levels of distinction: distinction, high distinction, or highest distinction. A student must meet the following criteria to receive a degree awarded with distinction:

- 1. To graduate with academic distinction, baccalaureate and associate degree candidates must rank within the highest 10 percent of their graduating class. The determination of eligibility for graduation with academic distinction will be done by the Division of Allied Health Sciences so that candidates will be ranked with classmates who received the same type of degrees (e.g., B.S. in Physical Therapy, B.S. in Radiologic Science).
- 2. If the 10 percent determination of any class results in a fractional value, the number will be rounded upward (e.g., a graduating class of 11 would have two individuals eligible for distinction).
- Calculation of the grade point average for graduation with distinction will be based upon
 the total number of hours completed at Indiana University. A candidate must have earned
 a minimum of 50 percent of the total credit hours required for that degree at Indiana
 University.
- 4. No more than 10 percent of the Indiana University credit hours may be eliminated from the GPA determination by utilization of the mechanisms of pass/fail or special credit.
- 5. A minimum cumulative grade point average of 3.5 must have been achieved to be eligible.
- 6. Three levels of distinction will be recognized and determined as follows:
 - 3.50 through 3.74—Distinction
 - 3.75 through 3.89—High Distinction
 - 3.90 through 4.00—Highest Distinction
- 7. The determination of candidates who will wear honor cords at the May graduation ceremonies should include all academic credit earned at IU *including* the spring semester prior to commencement.
- 8. Unique cases and appeals should be forwarded to the director of the Division of Allied Health Sciences for consideration.

Program Awards Division of Allied Health Sciences programs offer awards recognizing academic excellence, leadership, career potential, and service. Students should refer to specific programs for descriptions of these awards.

Honors Program

Students in the Division of Allied Health Sciences who would like to pursue courses under the existing IUPUI Honors Program should consult with program faculty regarding the availability of such courses within the particular program of interest.

Student Rights and Responsibilities

Application to and enrollment in the University constitutes the student's commitment to honor and abide by the practices and policies stated in the University's official announcements, bulletins, handbooks, and other published materials and to behave in a manner that is mature and compatible with the University's function as an institution of higher learning. The *Statement of Student Rights and Responsibilities* is distributed to all students during program orientation. Students are expected to read this document and, by their enrollment, agree to its contents and additional Division of Allied Health Sciences statements which appear below.

Nondiscrimination Students have the right to freedom from unlawful discrimination on the basis of race, religion, sex, age, national origin, veteran status, or physical handicap.

Academic Advising Faculty advisers for students are identified within each program. It is the student's responsibility to seek counseling and guidance. The student is responsible for planning a program to meet degree requirements.

Appeals The Division of Allied Health Sciences abides by the appeals procedures for Academic and Disciplinary Due Process discussed in Sections II and III of the *Statement of Student Rights and Responsibilities*. Students may obtain a copy of the division's appeals policy and procedure from the division office.

Attendance Students are responsible for complying with all attendance requirements which may be established by the division faculty.

Cheating and Plagiarism Faculty and students have rights and responsibilities for learning, teaching, and scholarship within the entire University community. Academic functions are

characterized by reasoned discourse, intellectual honesty, mutual respect, and openness to constructive change. Individuals must remain active in avoiding violation of academic ethics.

Cheating Dishonesty of any kind with respect to examinations, course assignments, alteration of records, or illegal possession of examinations shall be considered cheating.

It is the responsibility of the student not only to abstain from cheating but, in addition, to guard against making it possible for others to cheat. Any student who helps another student to cheat is as guilty of cheating as the student assisted. The student should also do everything possible to induce respect for the examination process and for honesty in the performance of assigned tasks in or out of class.

Plagiarism Honesty requires that any ideas or materials taken from another source for either written or oral use must be fully acknowledged. Offering the work of someone else as one's own is plagiarism. The language or ideas thus taken from another may range from isolated formulas, sentences, or paragraphs to entire articles copied from books, periodicals, speeches, or the writings of other students. The offering of materials assembled or collected by others in the form of projects or collections without acknowledgment also is considered plagiarism. Any student who fails to give credit for ideas or materials that are taken from another source is guilty of plagiarism.

Clinical Affiliations Clinical affiliations (field work experiences) are required in most Division of Allied Health Sciences programs. The program faculty is responsible for the selection, approval, and assignment of clinical experiences. Although individual student needs and desires will be recognized, the final placement decisions are made by the program faculty. Students are responsible for transportation, fees, self-support, and for following the rules and regulations of the center(s) to which they are assigned. In addition, student conduct must be consistent with the standards of the University and of the profession.

Confidentiality of Records Indiana University, in compliance with the General Education Provisions Act, Section 438, titled Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, provides that all student records are confidential and available only to that student and to the parents if the student is under 21 and dependent as defined by IRS standards. The student may review the record upon request and may ask for deletions or corrections of the record in a hearing process described in detail in the Statement of Student Rights and Responsibilities. References, recommendations, and other similar documents may carry a voluntary waiver relinquishing the student's right to review this specific material. The student may also release the record to others by signing a written release available in the offices which maintain records. Further details regarding the provisions of the Privacy Act and a list of offices where student records are kept may be found in the Statement of Student Rights and Responsibilities.

Degree Applications Candidates for an undergraduate degree are responsible for filing an intent-to-graduate form in the program office one semester prior to that in which they intend to complete degree requirements. Division program faculty then certify the student's satisfactory completion of degree requirements. If changes in the anticipated date of degree completion occur, students must consult their faculty adviser and file an updated intent-to-graduate form.

Costs A division student may seek financial assistance through the Office of Financial Aids. In addition, assistance may be available through the Division of Allied Health Sciences Scholarship Committee, professional associations, and other external groups and agencies. Students are responsible for the following costs:

Fees and Tuition as established by the Indiana University Board of Trustees.

Books and Supplies.

Uniforms During clinical/field experiences, students must adhere to the dress code requirements of the program and training site. Students are responsible for providing their own uniforms.

Transportation Students are responsible for travel and lodging costs associated with clinical/field work experiences.

Liability Insurance ALL students participating in required field work experience are covered by the University's professional liability insurance. Additionally, students participating in field

work experiences in facilities out of state are required to purchase and show proof of personal liability insurance prior to being certified to begin the clinical experience.

Health Before beginning the patient care portion of a division program, students may be required to complete a physical examination and/or innoculation program.

Identification Student identification cards are issued at any time by the Student Activities Office for Indiana University Northwest students and only at the time of registration for students enrolling at the Medical Center.

International Students Foreign nationals enrolled in the division are subject to the same rights and responsibilities as all other division students. Services are available in the Admissions Office (IUN) or the Dean for Student Affairs Offices (IUPUI) to assist students with issues related to their status as foreign nationals.

Orientation Division of Allied Health Sciences programs require students to attend orientation programs prior to initial enrollment in professional courses. In some instances, these orientation sessions occur prior to the start of the fall semester. Students are responsible for attending these sessions and for the program-specific policies and standards distributed and discussed at that time.

Professional Conduct Students are responsible for exhibiting conduct appropriate to their professional training and education. Each division program distributes standards and policies of appropriate professional conduct at the time of program orientation.

Registration and Record Changes It is the student's responsibility to enroll in each required academic session and satisfactorily complete all courses required for the degree. Division faculty are available to provide academic advising.

Students are responsible for filing the necessary student-record-change form with the Division of Allied Health Sciences as soon as possible following a change of name or permanent address.

Additional information regarding degree requirements and academic standards may be found elsewhere in this *Bulletin*.

Allied Health Alumni Association

This association is a constituent group within the Indiana University Alumni Association. Active membership is open to all graduates of the Division of Allied Health Sciences programs.

The Allied Health Alumni Association was officially recognized as a constituent member of the Indiana University Alumni Association in 1976. The young alumni association boasts of an enrollment of over 700 active members.

To promote scholarship and leadership, the Division of Allied Health Sciences Alumni Association each year offers a \$500 scholarship to an outstanding division student. The student must be in the final year of the professional program, have earned a minimum grade point average of 3.5, and have demonstrated leadership in extracurricular activities.

For more information, contact Lynn James, President, Indiana University Allied Health Alumni Association, 620 Union Drive, Indianapolis, Indiana 46202; or phone (317) 274-8828.

Medical Center, Indianapolis

Division Office

T. Kay Carl, B.S., Acting Director, Division of Allied Health Sciences

The Division of Allied Health Sciences, Medical Center, currently offers associate degree programs in occupational therapy technology, radiologic sciences, and respiratory therapy; and baccalaureate degree programs in cytotechnology, health services management, medical record administration, medical technology, occupational therapy, physical therapy, radiologic sciences, and respiratory therapy. Complete descriptions of these programs follow this general information. Information concerning the division and its programs may be obtained by contacting:

Division of Allied Health Sciences Coleman Hall 120 1140 West Michigan Street Indianapolis, Indiana 46223 Telephone: (317) 274-4702

Admission

Admission Policies Applicants must adhere to the Division of Allied Health Sciences admission policies as described earlier in this *Bulletin*.

Admission Procedures Applicants seeking admission to the associate or baccalaureate degree programs must submit the application for admission to the Division of Allied Health Sciences. Applicants must complete the application as specified by the instructions on the application form. Applications must be received prior to the deadline specified on the form for each program. Applicants seeking admission to baccalaureate degree programs must file applications by the deadline in the year prior to the anticipated entry to the program. All completed applications are to be submitted by the applicants to the Office of the Division of Allied Health Sciences, Coleman Hall 120, 1140 West Michigan Street, Indianapolis, Indiana 46223.

Students from other universities, colleges, high schools, or foreign nationals who are not Indiana University students, must also file for admission to the University through the Office of Admissions, Indiana University-Purdue University at Indianapolis, 425 Agnes Street, Indianapolis, Indiana 46202.

Applicants are eligible to be considered for admission to an associate or baccalaureate program when their academic progress shows reasonable probability that entry-level requirements can be completed prior to the date of the opening of classes of the year for which application is made. Applicants should read the Admission Policies and Program Description sections of this *Bulletin* for specific entry-level requirements.

For purposes of admission to the professional programs of the Division of Allied Health Sciences, Indiana University School of Medicine, preference is given to Indiana residents or applicants who complete the majority of applicable course work at a campus of Indiana University. Application for admission to the Division of Allied Health Sciences, regardless of program of choice, does not constitute automatic admission to the division. All applications are reviewed, and selection of a class will be based on division and program admission criteria. All applications will receive formal notification of their admission status.

General Degree, Education, and Academic Requirements

Students must meet the Division of Allied Health Sciences general degree requirements, general education requirements, academic regulations, and observe the student rights and responsibilities detailed elsewhere in this *Bulletin*. Students should read these sections, as well as the one concerning academic standing. Students must also comply with Indiana University-Purdue University at Indianapolis regulations.

Withdrawals from Courses With the approval of the faculty adviser, withdrawals are permitted at or before mid-semester with an automatic grade of WX. Students withdrawing through the third quarter of each semester will receive W or WF depending upon student

performance in the course. In the last quarter of each semester, students may withdraw with the grade of either W or F at the instructor's discretion, with his approval and the dean's approval, and dependent upon student performance at the time withdrawal is requested. Petitions for withdrawal after mid-semester are only for compelling nonacademic reasons. The desire to avoid a low grade is not an acceptable reason for withdrawal from a course.

Academic Distinction Each program will recommend to the University students with superior academic performance for degrees awarded with distinction. Students should read the Honors section elsewhere in this *Bulletin* for specific requirements.

Program-specific honors may also be awarded, and students shall refer to the following program descriptions for criteria.

The IUPUI Honors Program Students who have SAT scores of 1,200 or above, high school rank in the top 10 percent, or have a 3.3 GPA in the University are eligible to enroll in honors courses. Students not meeting those criteria may participate in the program by interviewing with the honors director.

To graduate with a general honors degree, students must have a 3.3 cumulative GPA and a minimum of 24 credit hours in honors work or 15 credit hours in honors work plus a 6 credit hour senior thesis. In order to graduate with honors, a student must maintain an overall GPA of 3.3 and have a 3.5 GPA in all honors courses. Each honors course must have a minimum grade of B (3.0).

Medical Center—General Information

The Medical Center occupies some 85 acres approximately one mile from the center of Indianapolis on the campus of Indiana University-Purdue University at Indianapolis (IUPUI). The Medical Science Building, housing the six basic science departments and the medical library, offers every modern facility for medical education and research. The former School of Medicine building, now Emerson Hall, has been remodeled to accommodate expanded clinical departments. In addition, the center is the site of James William Fesler Hall, which houses the clinical laboratories, offices of the dean of medicine, and offices and laboratories for the Department of Anesthesia. Also at the center are the Administration Building, Robert W. Long Hospital, William H. Coleman Hall for Allied Health Sciences, University Hospital, James Whitcomb Riley Hospital for Children with its connected wings for pediatrics and cancer research, Rotary Club Unit, Clinical Building, Ball Residence, School of Nursing Building, School of Dentistry, Psychiatric Research Institute, Union Building, Warthin Apartments for married students, and Graduate Townhouse Apartments.

Indiana University Hospitals have 631 beds and have over 100,000 outpatient visits. The Wishard Memorial Hospital, adjoining the center, offers clinical teaching facilities, as well as close affiliation in intern and resident training programs. The hospital has 618 beds and its outpatient facility, the Regenstrief Health Center, has approximately 4,000 visits per week. Clinical clerkships are likewise offered in the 725-bed United States Veterans Administration Hospital, in the United States Veterans Hospital on Cold Springs Road, in the 225-bed LaRue D. Carter Memorial Hospital, and, with departmental approval, in certain private hospitals and community hospitals throughout the state. The total number of beds on the Medical Center exceeds 2,300.

Housing at Indianapolis

Application for housing at the Medical Center for IUPUI students may be obtained by writing to the Department of Housing, Ball Residence, 1226 West Michigan Street, Indianapolis, Indiana 46223. Admission to the University does not guarantee housing accommodations on the IUPUI campus. Students must file a separate application for housing in order to reserve a space. Students desiring University housing should apply as soon as they decide to attend school at this campus since a waiting list usually prevails. Students may apply for housing even though they are not yet admitted to a school or division. Room assignments are made on the basis of the date the initial housing application and a \$15 housing application fee is received.

Requests by single students for specific persons as roommates will be honored whenever possible, provided the applications are received at approximately the same time, and both applicants make written requests for each other as roommates on the application form.

Dormitory contracts are for an entire academic year or until completion of the degree, whichever comes first. Students desiring housing for the spring semester may sign a one-semester contract.

The IUPUI Housing Office also maintains a file of *unapproved* off-campus facilities for single and married persons which must be checked personally by each interested individual for current listings for any given date throughout the year. The total number of facilities listed in a city as large as Indianapolis cannot be inspected or checked by University staff members and therefore the listings do not represent *approved* off-campus housing units.

In addition, the University manages Park Lafayette, located at 2300 North Tibbs, featuring one, two, three, and four bedroom units and Shoreland Towers, 3710 North Meridian Street. For information, call IUPUI Real Estate, 274-8264 or Park Lafayette, 635-7923; Shoreland Towers, 925-3420.

Meals are not included in any housing contract. However a discounted student meal plan is available through the Union Building, which is located near the campus dorms and apartments. Cooking is not permitted in student rooms.

Rates are subject to change by action of the Board of Trustees. A rate sheet will be mailed when an application is requested.

Student Activities at Indianapolis

Religious Activity The Medical Center chaplain's office is located on campus, 274-7415. A chaplain is available for students of each faith to provide spiritual leadership to individuals and individual counseling on personal issues.

There are several religious organizations on campus. Information is available in the Student Activities Office in the University Library.

Student Activities Over one hundred clubs, organizations, and honoraries present a variety of programs and activities which are generally open to all students. These and other campus events such as "Concerts on the Concrete" and "Circle City Circuit" are coordinated by the Student Activities Office, which is in the University Library 002. The Student Message Center, in the Cavanaugh Hall main lobby, assists students and visitors with general information about the University and provides students with a message service for contacting cohorts and for receiving non-emergency messages from home or office. The message center can be reached by dialing 274-2782.

Cultural and Recreational Activities at IUPUI A variety of recreational activities is offered to students. They range from all-campus dances sponsored by the Student Council for Residence Life to the Recreational Sports Program sponsored by the Department of Intramural and Recreational Sports.

The Distinguished Lecture Series Committee, as well as other departments and organizations, sponsors a broad spectrum of speakers, debators, and performers. The University Theatre, Listener's Theatre, and the Children's Theatre perform plays that appeal to all ages in the IUPUI community. Students are invited to audition for roles and crews through the Communication and Theatre Department. In addition, the New York Street Singers, a performing musical group, is open for student participation, and it offers academic credit. Other cultural events such as operas and concerts are presented on the IU Bloomington campus and tickets are available at student prices.

Student Government The Student Assembly is the elective organization for voicing student concerns and conducting programs for bettering student life. Elections are held each spring and all IUPUI students enrolled for credit are eligible to vote. Offices are in the basement of Cavanaugh Hall 001C, phone 274-3907. Lost and Found services for buildings in the Cavanaugh Hall area are in the Student Assembly Office.

Intramural and Recreational Sports Recreational sports are conducted for both men and women. Activities include badminton, basketball, cross country, flag football, golf, racquetball, softball, swimming, tennis, and volleyball.

The School of Physical Education facility provides space for both informal recreation and league play; some sport and camping equipment is available for checkout.

Athletics IUPUI is a member of the National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics. The University currently fields teams in three sports for men (tennis, basketball, and baseball) and three for women (volleyball, softball, and basketball). Participation is open to all full-time undergraduates who meet the eligibility requirements of the University and the National Association of Intercollegiage Athletics. Students are admitted free to the home games of the IUPUI Metros. Indiana University Bloomington basketball and football tickets may be purchased at student prices through the ticket office in the Union Building.

Indianapolis The city of Indianapolis has long been known for its outstanding symphony orchestra (now conveniently located in the downtown area close to the IUPUI campus), the Indianapolis Motor Speedway with its 500-mile championship auto race, and pleasant and attractive suburban living. With a metropolitan population of over one million, Indianapolis is rapidly emerging as a major cultural, entertainment, and educational center in the Midwest. As such it features Clowes Hall, which offers nationally and internationally known entertainers in the performing arts, a prestigious Museum of Art, a handsome Convention-Exposition Center, a Sports Arena, the Hoosier Dome, the Indiana Repertory Theater, many dinner theaters, and the world's largest Children's Museum.

The IUPUI Express bus operates between the campus and city center, which is just a mile away. This service enables students to attend a host of downtown festivals, enjoy the renovated Monument Circle, and take advantage of the many fine restaurants and shops in the downtown area.

Student Services at Indianapolis

Union Building Ours is one of the few medical centers in the country to have its own Union Building. The Union Building provides a variety of activities and services for students, faculty, staff, and guests of the University.

The facilities in the Union Building include cafeteria, providing full meals, including breakfast and lunch; snack bar, for sandwiches, salads, desserts, and beverages; delicatessen; banquet service, available for special events; and meeting rooms, available for students. Recreational facilities include a swimming pool, health club, and game room.

A beauty salon and barber shop are located on the ground floor of the Union. Guest rooms for overnight guests are available for the convenience of persons who will be visiting at the University.

The Union Building Bookstore offers all necessary textbooks and supplies for the Schools of Nursing, Medicine, Dentistry, and the Division of Allied Health Sciences. Also available are magazines, novelties, and sundry items.

Library The combined libraries of the School of Medicine and School of Nursing form the Indiana University School of Medicine Library, constituting the largest medical library in the state. The Indiana University School of Medicine Library, located in the middle section of the first and basement floors of the Medical Science Building, includes in its collection a total of 150,000 volumes of professional literature as well as current subscriptions to 1,800 foreign and domestic journals. The current issues of some 300 heavily used journal titles, in addition to reference materials, indexes, encyclopedias, and dictionaries, are available for ready access on open shelves in the reading room. The library is regularly open seven days a week.

Various services are extended by the library. Instructional tours for individuals or small groups are available by appointment; classroom presentations are also available. Literature describing the library and its services is provided upon request, and a new booklist is issued quarterly. Online computer systems, including Bibliographic Retrieval Services, Inc. (BRS) and MED-LINE (MEDlars on-LINE) from the National Library of Medicine in Bethesda, Maryland, provide rapid access to bibliographic citations on scientific subjects at reasonable rates. Liberal lending policies for books and journals apply to all Indiana University personnel. Photocopiers are located on both levels of the library.

Health Care and Insurance The Student Employee Health Service has been organized to serve the health needs of students at IUPUI. The clinic is located on the first floor of Coleman Hall at the Medical Center. Appointments may be made by calling the Health Service at 274-8214, or by going to the Health Service in person. The clinic is open to patients Monday through Thursday from 8:30 a.m. to 8 p.m., and Friday 8:30 a.m. to 5 p.m.

Services in the Health Service, including professional attention, lab work, X rays, and referral to specialty clinics, are provided free to full-time students.

Part-time students may be seen in the Health Service for a per visit fee of \$5. This charge includes the service of clinic professionals, lab work completed in the clinic, and medications or injections given in the Health Service. Any service performed outside the Health Service for which there is a charge is the financial responsibility of the part-time student.

After hours, on weekends, and on holidays full-time students will be seen in the Wishard Memorial Hospital emergency room. Bills for this service will be paid by the Health Service.

The University has also arranged for an optional insurance plan to cover students in the event of hospital confinement or treatment required at an emergency room for accidental injury. All IUPUI students are eligible to participate in this insurance plan.

Officer Training Programs (ROTC) Both Army and Air Force ROTC are available to IUPUI students. Completion of either program leads to a commission as a 2nd lieutenant. Programs are available to both men and women. Courses are pursued in conjunction with academic curriculum and receive academic credit as electives. Placement credit is available to veterans and students with high school ROTC backgrounds. For information, contact Professor of Military Science (Army ROTC), (317) 274-2691, or Professor of Aerospace Studies (Air Force ROTC), (812) 335-4191.

Career Information Career and Employment Services is located in the Business/SPEA Building 2010, 801 West Michigan. It is the University center for career counseling and oncampus interviewing and placement for full-time employment. This office also coordinates part-time and summer work opportunities. It is especially important that students in the Division of Allied Health Sciences register with the Placement Center during their senior year since this is the only University office designed to maintain professional placement credentials.

Nondiscrimination Policy Indiana University complies with all federal regulations prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, religion, national origin, sex, age, veteran status, or handicap in matters pertaining to admission, employment, and access to programs. The University has an Affirmative Action Program and an Affirmative Action Office on each campus to ensure compliance with these regulations. Persons with questions regarding discrimination should contact the Affirmative Action Office on their campus.

Financial Aid

The Financial Aid Program at IUPUI assists qualified students in continuing their education through scholarships, grants, loans, and employment. Allied health students are encouraged to apply for the awards listed below by submitting an application for financial aid and the required financial aid form (FAF) to the Financial Aid Office, 425 Agnes Street, Room 103, Indianapolis, Indiana 46202. The priority date for submitting applications is March 1 of the year prior to when assistance is required. Applications received after the priority date will be reviewed, and aid awarded if funds are available. Additional information may be obtained by contacting the Financial Aid Office.

In addition to the awards listed below, allied health students may be eligible for special scholarships and loans. Information may be obtained by contacting the dean's office in the Division of Allied Health Sciences or specific program directors.

Scholarships Merit Scholarships are awarded to students who have a 3.5 cumulative grade point average and may be renewed with a 3.5 cumulative GPA.

Grants Grants are available from the federal government and the University to students who demonstrate financial need. Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants range from \$200 to \$1,000 and University grants range from \$100 to \$1,000.

The Pell Grant ranges from approximately \$250 to \$1,900.

Loans Loans are available to students who demonstrate financial need. IUPUI administers both the National Direct Student Loan and the State Guaranteed Student Loan programs.

Employment Students may earn a portion of their educational cost by working part-time in the College Work-Study Program. Eligibility for this program is also based on the financial need of the student.

Students who do not demonstrate financial need may apply for part-time employment through the JOBS program, which is located in the Business/SPEA Building 2010.

Child-of-Disabled Veteran Award Any student who has been a resident of Indiana for one year and whose parent has a service-connected disability or death is eligible for a partial remission of tuition.

Aid to Veterans The University is approved under the G.I. Bill and the War Orphans Education Program. Information on financial aid available to veterans under government benefits of public laws may be secured through the Veterans Administration Regional Office, 36 South Pennsylvania Avenue, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204.

Academic Calendar for Indianapolis 1987-89

First Semester		1987-88		1988-89
Registration		TBA		TBA
Classes Begin	M	Aug. 24		Aug. 22
Labor Day (classes meet)	M	Sept. 7	M	Sept. 5
Thanksgiving Recess	M	Nov. 23		Nov. 21
Classes Resume	M	Nov. 30	M	Nov. 28
Classes End	N	Dec. 13	N	Dec. 11
Final Exams	M-N	Dec. 14-20	M-N	Dec. 12-18
Second Semester				
Registration		TBA		TBA
Classes Begin	M	Jan. 11	M	Jan. 9
Spring Recess ¹	M	Mar. 7	M	Mar. 6
Classes Resume	M	Mar. 14	M	Mar. 13
Classes End	N	May 1	N	Apr. 30
Final Exams	M-N	May 2-8	M-N	May 1-7
Commencement	N	May 15 ²	N	May 14
Summer Session I		•		
Registration		TBA		TBA
Classes Begin		May 11	W	May 10
Memorial Ďay Holiday	M	May 30	M	May 29
Classes End	W	June 22 ³	W	June 214
Summer Session II				
Registration		TBA		TBA
Classes Begin	M	June 27	T	June 27
Independence Day Holiday		July 4	T	July 4
Classes End	M	Aug. 8	T	Aug. 8

Academic Programs, Medical Center

Cytotechnology

Director: Professor Nordschow

Medical Director: Assistant Professor Clark

Program Director: To be appointed Assistant Professor Crabtree

Cytotechnology is a medical laboratory specialty in which microscopic studies of exfoliated, abraded, and aspirated cells from the human body are performed. The cytotechnologist studies cell samples from various body sites to detect cellular changes indicative of cancer. In providing a means of early detection, cytology makes possible the early diagnosis of cancer, thus increasing the chances of a cure. Cytology also serves as a prognostic tool during the course of cancer treatment programs. It aids in establishing the diagnosis of endocrine

¹ Recess begins after last class this date.

² Tentative dates, TBA—To be announced.

³ Monday, May 30 classes meet on Wednesday, June 22.

⁴ Monday, May 29 classes meet on Wednesday, June 21.

disorders and in the detection of some pathogenic microorganisms and other benign disease processes.

An integral relationship between the program and the cytology service laboratory provides the student with maximum exposure to a functioning cytology laboratory. The learning process follows a structured, logical sequence for the presentation of essential concepts and skills. Individual instruction, demonstrations, lectures, and conferences are all utilized as methods of instruction. Student inquiry and research that will foster greater understanding and possible revision of presented material is encouraged. Opportunity is provided for the student to pursue special interests in the field of cytology.

The graduates of the Cytotechnology Program will possess a comprehensive, fundamental knowledge of clinical cytology and will be eligible for the certification examination administered by the Board of Registry leading to certification and registration in cytotechnology with the American Society of Clinical Pathologists. This knowledge will enable them to function as competent cytotechnologists and will provide a basis for continuing education and professional growth. They will be prepared for management, supervisory, and educational responsibilities and should seek ways to contribute to the growing body of knowledge in clinical cytology. They will realize their position in the total health care structure and understand their legal, ethical, and moral responsibilities to the employers and communities they serve. Cytotechnologists normally practice in hospitals, laboratories, or research laboratories.

The Cytotechnology Program is offered at the Indiana University Medical Center, which has modern educational and medical facilities. Classroom facilities and faculty offices are located on the fourth floor of Fesler Hall. The combined student and cytology service laboratory is located on the third floor of Indiana University Hospital. Cytology laboratories located in Wishard Memorial Hospital and Veterans Administration Hospital are also utilized.

The curriculum of the Cytotechnology Program is accredited by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation of the American Medical Association.

Admission Requirements As grade point average is a reflection of self-motivation, self-discipline, and the desire to achieve, favorable consideration is given to applicants with high grade point averages. In addition, proficiency must be demonstrated in biological and physical sciences. Candidates for this program should work well with others, have a genuine desire to improve the health of mankind, and be willing to accept the responsibilities of providing health care service.

Students must submit division applications between August 1 and December 1 prior to the year for which they seek entrance to the program. Students accepted into the program must complete the division's and the following programmatic admission requirements prior to the first day of classes.

- 1. Complete satisfactorily 90 semester credit hours, including the division's general education requirements and specific program prerequisite courses as stated below. Included in these 90 credit hours must be a minimum of 25 semester hours in the biological sciences. Biology credits earned more than seven years prior to application must be updated by taking three additional semester hours related to cell biology within a period of time not to exceed 12 months prior to admission.
- 2. Attain a cumulative grade point average of 2.0 or better and a biology grade point average of 2.5 or better on a 4.0 scale (applied at interview).
- 3. Attain a minimum grade of 2.0 (C) in all of the program prerequisite courses.
- 4. Appear for an interview with the program admissions committee.
- 5. Meet the programmatic technical requirements.
- 6. Students accepted into the professional program must complete a health form, immunization card, chest X ray, and eye examination before classes begin.

Note: Preference is given to applicants who are Indiana residents. Preference is also given to applicants who complete the majority of applicable course work at a campus of Indiana University.

Awards Recommendations for degrees awarded with distinction are based upon superior academic performance. The Cytotechnology Program recognizes superior academic and

professional conduct with the Outstanding Student Award, which is awarded to a graduating senior.

Curriculum The following prerequisite course of study must be completed to be eligible for admission. Students should consult with their academic counselors for appropriate courses and semester sequence in order to complete prerequisites. The code (G) indicates a course that meets the division's general education requirements.

Prerequisites

Written Communications (G) (3 cr.)

Verbal Communications (G) (3 cr.)

Humanities (G) (3 cr.)

College Algebra (G) (3 cr.)

Introductory Biology (G) (4-5 cr.)

Social-Behavioral Science (G) (6 cr.)

Chemistry I (with lab) for science majors (G) (4-5 cr.)

Chemistry-sequential course(s) for science major beyond above (4 cr. minimum; 5-8 cr. preferred)

Human Anatomy-Physiology (5-10 cr.)

Advanced Science: In addition to the courses listed above, students must take additional upper-level biology courses (not including botany courses) to total a minimum of 25 semester hours. Recommended courses include Microbiology with laboratory, Developmental Anatomy or Embryology with laboratory, Genetics with laboratory, Molecular or Cellular Biology, Histology, and Immunology. Questions regarding alternative biology sciences courses should be directed to the Cytotechnology Program faculty.

Electives While not inclusive or mandatory, the following is a list of suggested areas: medical microbiology, endocrinology, parasitology, virology, cytogenetics, computer science, management, organic chemistry, biochemistry, physics, advanced mathematics, and statistics.

Senior (Professional Program)

Fall	Spring
Hormonal Cytology AHLT A403 1 cr.	Cytology of Body Fluids
Gynecologic Cytology, Normal	AHLT A442
AHLT A412	Urinary Tract Cytology
Gynecologic Cytology, Abnormal	AHLT A454
AHLT A422	Seminar in Cytology AHLT A4702 cr.
Techniques in Medical Cytology	Medical Care II AHLT W471 3 cr.
AHLT A462	Cytology of the Gastrointestinal
Seminar in Cytology AHLT A4702 cr.	Tract AHLT A4532 cr.
Medical Care I AHLT W3743 cr.	Certification Internship
Pulmonary Cytology	AHLT A4656 cr.
AHLT Á432	Investigations in Cytopathology
Total	AHLT A490
	Total
Summer	
Cytology of Fine Needle Aspiration	

For further information, contact the program director of the Cytotechnology Program. Telephone (317) 274-1264.

Health Services Management

Contact the division office for the current status of the Health Services Management Program.

Medical Record Administration

Director: Associate Professor McKenzie Assistant Professors Ashton, Miller

The graduate medical record administrator is a vital member of the health care team. The role of this health professional includes administration of health information systems in accordance with the various medical, administrative, and legal requirements affecting health care delivery. The medical record administrator plans, develops, and directs a medical record system to aid in patient care, to serve as a basis for health care reimbursement, and to assist the medical and health facility staff in research and medical care evaluation. The medical record administrator is also called upon to collect and analyze health care delivery data, manage the human resources of medical record services, and advise on medical administrative and medicolegal matters.

While many medical record administrators are employed in the medical record departments of acute care general hospitals, others provide services to insurance companies, nursing homes, psychiatric facilities, commercial data systems companies, drug companies, professional associations and various governmental agencies. In addition to functioning in the traditional role of medical record administrator, many practitioners coordinate continuing medical education and quality assurance programs, serve as data specialists, collect information for malpractice claims, apply computer techniques to existing data collection programs, teach, serve in various administrative capacities or maintain consulting practices.

Medical record administrators must be able to supervise personnel, manage office resources, communicate effectively, devise systems and function as intermediaries in various organizational settings.

The Medical Record Administration Program is offered at the Indiana University Medical Center, which has modern educational and medical facilities. The program offices and laboratory are located in Coleman Hall. Classes also take place in other Medical Center buildings (Medical Science Building, Fesler Hall, Emerson Hall, and University Hospital). Clinical practice is centered in hospitals and other health care facilities in Indiana. A clinical affiliation is arranged for each student at the end of the senior year. The affiliation site may be located within Indiana or in one of the surrounding states.

The Medical Record Administration Program is accredited by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation of the American Medical Association.

The program graduate may seek registration as a registered record administrator (RRA) by successfully passing a national qualifying examination offered by the American Medical Record Association.

Admission Requirements Admission to the Medical Record Administration Program is based primarily upon grade point average. Indiana University students who have taken the major part of the prerequisite course work in the IU system and Indiana residents will be given preference in the admission process. In addition to the admission policies for the division, applicants must meet the following criteria:

- 1. Satisfactorily complete 90 semester hours of the required prerequisites and electives by the time of registration for the fall semester of the program.
- 2. Maintain a minimum cumulative GPA of C+ (2.3) for all course work completed by the time of interview. For admission purposes, the GPA will be calculated in accordance with the Division of Allied Health Sciences policies.
- 3. Maintain a minimum GPA of C (2.0) for the semester in which the offer for admission is made by the Division of Allied Health Sciences and each individual enrollment period thereafter. The cumulative GPA must be at least C + (2.3).
- 4. Attain a grade of C (2.0) or better in anatomy, physiology, computer science, statistics, administrative systems, and personnel management.
- 5. Interview with the program admissions committee.
- 6. Meet the technical standards of the division, when applicable.
- 7. Seek specialized program planning and course substitution approval from Professor Mary L. McKenzie, program director.
- 8. Submit an application for the program to the Division of Allied Health Sciences office between August 1 and November 1 of the year preceding the planned date of entry.

Awards Based upon superior performance and in accordance with IUPUI policies, the program will recommend qualified students to be awarded degrees with distinction.

Scholarships The Van Ausdall and Farrar Scholarship Fund is established to award scholarships to full-time senior medical record administration students enrolled at the Indianapolis campus of Indiana University. Awards are predicated on demonstrated financial need and successful completion of the program. Preference is given to students who plan employment in Indiana.

Curriculum The following prerequisite courses are required. Students should consult with their academic counselors for appropriate courses and semester sequence in order to complete prerequisites. The code (G) indicates a course which meets the division's general education requirements.

```
Prerequisites
```

English Composition (G) (3 cr.) Mathematics (G) (3 cr.) Psychology (G) (3 cr.) Sociology (G) (3 cr.) Speech (G) (3 cr.) Ethics Or Medical Ethics (G) (3 cr.) Literature, Philosophy, or Art Sequence (G) (6 cr.) Human Anatomy (with lab) (G) (5 cr.) Human Physiology (with lab) (G) (5 cr.) Microbiology (G) (3 cr.) Statistics (G) (3 cr.) Administrative Systems (3 cr.) Typing (or proficiency) (2-3 cr.) Introduction to Accounting I and II (6 cr.) Management and Behavior in Organizations (3 cr.) Personnel or Supervisory Management (3 cr.) Business Communications (3 cr.) Data Processing/Computer Sciences (4-6 cr.) Business/Commercial Law (3 cr.)

Electives The following suggestions for electives are made to aid the student in the courses and in the professional work of medical record administration: finite mathematics (students should check with program adviser to determine need for course), research methods, medical terms from Greek and Latin, foreign languages, abnormal psychology, computer sciences, economics, oral and written communications, chemistry, biology, management of administrative services, management of data systems, personnel management, supervisory management, methods of employee training, principles of risk and insurance, and health administration.

Clinical in Medical Record Technology	
AHLT M357	1 cr.
Total	8 cr.
Summer Session I	
Clinical in Medical Record	
Administration AHLT M459	4 cr.

Senior (Professional Program)

Spring	
Hospital Organization and Management	
AHLT M3222	cr.
Medical Care II AHLT W4713	cr.
Medical Record Science II	
AHLT M4125	cr.
Directed Practice Experience II	
AHLT M4426	cr.
Total16	cr.

For further information, contact Professor Mary L. McKenzie, Program Director, Medical Record Administration Program. Telephone (317) 274-7317.

Medical Technology

Director: Professor Nordschow **Associate Director:** Professor Feeley

Professors Allen, Moorehead, Oei, Pless, Smith; Associate Professors Bartlett, Gartner, Glick, Hocker, Kasper, Leland, Marler, McCarthy, Ryder; Assistant Professors Baenziger, Moriarty

Medical technology is a science aimed at quality performance of clinical laboratory procedures on biologic samples from patients. The results of these procedures provide important patient data which aid the physician in the diagnosis and treatment of disease. The Medical Technology Program is designed to prepare the student to perform the following tasks:

- 1. Demonstrate theoretical knowledge and technical skills in the clinical laboratory by successful completion of written and practical examinations.
- 2. Apply both analytic and practical solutions to problems in laboratory testing.
- Identify normal and abnormal variations in test results and/or patterns of data as being technical, mechanical, or physiological in origin.
- Correlate test results within and between sections of the clinical laboratories, which provide identification and confirmation of a disease process.
- 5. Evaluate analytical procedures and/or instrumentation for the purpose of updating methodologies and for cost-benefit analysis.
- Be adaptable to various laboratory environments with regard to procedures performed, policies set forth, and interpersonal relations.
- 7. Pass National Certification Examinations.

The first three years of the Medical Technology Program curriculum are designed to provide a broad-based background including specific chemistry, mathematics, and biological science requirements, as well as the opportunity to elect courses from the liberal arts. The fourth calendar year is spent in a combined didactic and laboratory experience.

The graduate medical technologist performs laboratory tests that reveal the presence or absence of abnormalities of blood, other fluids, and tissues of the body. In performing these laboratory tests, the medical technologist becomes adept in the operation and maintenance of various types of laboratory equipment such as chemical analyzers, electronic cell counters, and other sophisticated instruments. The medical technologist learns to make appropriate use of quality control measures and to correlate laboratory findings with clinical symptomatology for optimum patient care. Graduates are eligible to apply for National Certification Examinations.

The Medical Technology Program is offered at the Indiana University Medical Center at Indianapolis. The program offices, student laboratory, and classrooms are located on the fourth floor of Fesler Hall. The clinical facilities utilized are the laboratories of the Department of Pathology, Indiana University School of Medicine, University Hospitals.

The curriculum of the Medical Technology Program is accredited by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation of the American Medical Association.

Admission Requirements The Division of Allied Health Sciences Medical Technology Program will consider all eligible students for admission to its integrated program offered in Indianapolis. Pre–allied health students interested in the Medical Technology Program are advised that admission into the professional year is not guaranteed. The program is accredited for 32 students. Students applying for admission must satisfy the following criteria:

- 1. Satisfactorily complete 90 semester hours including the allied health sciences general education requirements and program prerequisites.
- 2. Attain a cumulative grade point average of 2.5 or better and a science grade point average of 2.5 or better on a 4.0 system.
- 3. Attain no less than a grade of C in the life and physical science prerequisite courses.
- 4. Interview with the admissions committee of the Medical Technology Program.
- 5. Submit an application and a complete transcript of course work to the Division of Allied Health Sciences between August 1 and December 1 of the year prior to desired entry into the program.

Note: Preference is given to applicants who are Indiana residents. Preference is also given to applicants who complete the majority of applicable course work at a campus of Indiana University.

Awards Based on academic performance, the program will recommend students for degrees awarded with distinction in accordance with the division's honors criteria. The program recognizes two superior students meeting specific academic performance criteria for the senior/clinical year with the Medical Technology Academic Achievement Award.

Curriculum The following prerequisite courses must be completed. Students should consult with their academic counselors for appropriate courses and semester sequencing for timely completion of prerequisites. The code (G) indicates a course which meets the division's general education requirements.

Prerequisites

Written Communications (G) (3 cr.) Verbal Communications (G) (3 cr.)

Humanities (G) (3 cr.)

Social-Behavioral Science (G) (6 cr.)

Biological Sciences Applicant must complete, by entry date, at least 18 hours (or the equivalent) of biology, to include the following courses:

- 1. Introductory Biology (G)
- 2. Microbiology (with lab)*
- 3. Human Physiology
- 4. Immunology*

Recommended electives include Medical Microbiology, Genetics, Cell Physiology.

Chemistry Applicant must complete, by entry date, at least 18 hours (or the equivalent) of chemistry, to include the following courses:

- 1. Qualitative (with lab) (G)*
- 2. Quantitative (with lab)*
- 3. Organic I (with lab)*
- 4. Biochemistry, Clinical Chemistry, or Organic II to complete the 18 hours.*

Mathematics and Physics Applicant must complete, by entry date, the following courses:

- 1. Physics
- 2. Mathematics (Algebra/Trigonometry or higher) (G)
- 3. Statistics

Electives While not inclusive or mandatory, the following is a list of suggested areas: basic human anatomy, anthropology, developmental anatomy, introduction to computers, endocrinology, medical terminology, psychology, virology, comparative anatomy, embryology.

Professional Curriculum The Medical Technology Professional Program begins in August and is completed in July of each calendar year. Students progress through the professional courses on a sequential basis.

Fall	Spring
Serology AHLT C4091 cr.	Clinical Chemistry AHLT C4064 cr.
Serology Laboratory AHLT C429 1 cr.	Clinical Chemistry Instrumentation and
Hematology AHLT C4072 cr.	Methodologies AHLT C426 2 cr.
Hematologic Techniques and Procedures	Hemostasis AHLT C404 1 cr.
AHLT C4272 cr.	Hemostasis Techniques AHLT C424 1 cr.
Urine Analysis AHLT C4102 cr.	Mycology/Parasitology AHLT C420 2 cr.
Diagnostic Medical Microbiology	General Externship I AHLT C4012 cr.
AHLT C4114 cr.	General Externship II AHLT C402 2 cr.
Diagnostic Microbiology Laboratory	General Externship III AHLT C403 2 cr.
AHLT C4212 cr.	Total
Total	
Summer Session I	
Blood Banking AHLT C408 4 cr.	
Topics in Medical Technology	
AHLT C412 2 cr.	
Total	

For further information, contact Professor Mary Feeley, Associate Program Director, Medical Technology Program. Telephone (317) 274-1264.

^{*} Students who met the program's minimum requirements in microbiology, immunology, or chemistry six or more years before application must update their preparation.

Occupational Therapy

Director: Associate Professor Hamant Associate Professors Kiel, Nathan, Simek; Assistant Professors Hersch, Lamport, Meyers, Swinehart

Occupational therapy is based on the belief that purposeful activity (occupation), including its interpersonal and environmental components, may be used to prevent or ameliorate dysfunction, and to elicit maximum adaptation to one's environment. Its fundamental concern is the capacity throughout the life span to perform with satisfaction to self and others those roles essential to productive living and to the mastery of self and the environment.

The Occupational Therapy faculty believes that purposeful activity is the key to the uniqueness of the profession and relates directly to an individual's occupational performance. Purposeful activity is utilized in the treatment of patients to maintain or restore independent functioning. Using evaluative and therapeutic means, the occupational therapist encourages a healthy balance of time spent in self-care, work, and play/leisure.

In all courses the faculty encourages interpersonal and communication skills, creative problem solving, and understanding of human performance as it relates to health needs.

An appreciation of the importance of activity is developed in the students in both degrees of this program. The baccalaureate degree emphasizes the interpretation and application of theory to evaluation and treatment. The associate degree emphasizes the analysis, adaptation, and teaching of activities.

In the areas where information needs to be presented at the same level, the faculty teaches both groups of students simultaneously. During the education process the combined classes facilitate the complementary relationship that exists between registered occupational therapists (OTRs) and certified occupational therapy assistants (COTAs) in practice.

A student may work toward either a baccalaureate degree or associate degree in the Occupational Therapy Program at Indiana University. The location within a large urban medical center affords opportunity for clinical-academic interaction, as well as exposure to other community agencies. The program (the foundation for which is human development based on biological, psychological, social, and medical function and dysfunction) attempts to balance and consolidate academic and practical learning. Instruction to baccalaureate degree and associate degree students is presented with differing emphases on future needs.

The faculty is committed to creating a milieu for individualized learning and immediate application of knowledge. They assume a responsibility for continuous program reevaluation, self-study, and research to maintain excellence in educational and personal competence. The faculty maintain clinical skills for accountability and intercommunication with fieldwork practitioners and bring expertise in a variety of areas to enhance the program.

The Occupational Therapy Program offices are located in Coleman Hall, third floor. Classrooms are located in Coleman Hall, Ball Residence, and other buildings at the Medical Center. Clinical training occurs in Medical Center hospitals and local health care facilities. Clinical internship training may be located throughout the United States depending on the student's individual assignment.

Baccalaureate Degree

Upon completion of the bacccalaureate Occupational Therapy Program, the graduate will be qualified to meet professional standards for occupational therapy practice. The graduate will demonstrate entry-level competence in basic knowledge and application of physical, behavioral, and medical sciences to the practice of occupational therapy; basic occupational therapy skills; professional communication; occupational therapy theory and process (initial screening, evaluation, planning, implementation, and reevaluation); departmental and program administration; self understanding and the realization of the effect that one's behavior has on the patient/client and others; upholding the standards of the profession and identifying the need for continuing professional education and growth; and relating occupational therapy to the total health care system. Graduates of the baccalaureate program are eligible to complete the certification examination for admission to the Registry of Occupational Therapists maintained by the American Occupational Therapy Association. This examination is held throughout the country in January and July of each year.

The baccalaureate Occupational Therapy Program is accredited by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation of the American Medical Association.

Admission Requirements Admission to the Occupational Therapy Program at the baccalaureate level is based on the cumulative grade point average of previous college work and a personal interview. In addition to the admission policies for the division, applicants must

- 1. Submit an application and a complete transcript of course work to the Division of Allied Health Sciences between August 1 and November 1 of the year prior to desired entry into the program.
- 2. Complete 40 semester hours, 21 of which must be from the prerequisites listed below prior to the admission interview scheduled in January.
- 3. Complete each listed prerequisite with a minimum grade of C (2.0) on a 4.0 scale. Students may not use the pass/fail option with listed prerequisite courses.
- 4. Complete 61 semester hours, including all listed prerequisites prior to beginning course work in the professional program.

Applicants who are residents of the state of Indiana or who are nonresidents but have completed the majority of their course work at a campus of Indiana University must have a minimum cumulative grade point average of 2.7 on a 4.0 scale in order to be eligible for admission to the program.

Applicants who are nonresidents must have a minimum cumulative grade point average of 3.5 on a 4.0 scale in order to be eligible for admission to the program.

The Occupational Therapy Performance Policies, the Technical Standards for Admission and Retention, and the Occupational Therapy Code of Ethics for Students are given to students with their letter of acceptance. These documents are used throughout the professional curriculum to determine eligibility for continuation in the program.

Awards The program faculty will recommend students with superior academic performance to the University for degrees awarded with distinction. The Carol Nathan Leadership Award is presented annually to a senior selected by the senior class and the faculty as having demonstrated outstanding leadership potential. The award is in recognition of Professor Carol Nathan, who was director of the Occupational Therapy Program from 1968 to 1981.

Curriculum The following prerequisite courses must be completed. Students should consult with their academic counselors for appropriate courses and semester sequencing for timely completion of prerequisites. The code (G) indicates a course that meets the division's general education requirements.

Prerequisites

Written Communications (G) (3 cr.)
Public Speaking (G) (2-3 cr.)
Humanities (G) (3 cr.)
College-level Mathematics (G) (3 cr.)
Introductory Biology (G) (4-5 cr.)
Introductory Chemistry (with lab) (G) (4-5 cr.)
Psychology (G) (6 cr.)
Abnormal Psychology (3 cr.)
Sociology (6 cr.)
Human Anatomy (with emphasis on the musculo-skeletal system) (4-5 cr.)
Human Physiology (3-5 cr.)

Electives While not inclusive or mandatory, the following is a list of suggested elective areas: developmental anatomy, anthropology, business, community health, computer science, creative arts, ethics, government, group dynamics, philosophy, psychology, sociology, special education, teaching methods, typing.

Junior (Baccalaureate Degree)	
Fall	Spring
Medical Terminology AHLT S103 1 cr.	Ćlinical Psychiatry for OT
Fundamentals of OT AHLT T2033 cr.	AHLT T300
OT Techniques I (Weaving, Ceramics)	Applied Neuroanatomy AHLT W324 3 cr.
AHLT T3481 cr.	Practicum I AHLT T325 1 cr
OT Techniques II (Woodworking)	OT Techniques III (Minor Crafts)
AHLT T349 1 cr.	AHLT T3511 cr.
Occupational Behavior and Human	OT Techniques IV (Daily Life
Development AHLT T3505 cr.	Skills) AĤLT T3522 cr.
Medical Ĉare I AHLT W3743 cr.	Psychosocial Dysfunction Theory and
Kinesiology AHLT W376 3 cr.	Practice I AHLT T3612.5 cr.
Total	Physical Dysfunction Theory and
	Practice I AHLT T362
	OT Writing and Interview Skills
	AHLT T363
	Medical Care II AHLT W4713 cr.
	Total
Senior (Baccalaureate Degree)	
Fall	Spring
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting)	Field Work Experience I
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353 1 cr. Practicum II AHLT T426 1 cr.	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353 1 cr. Practicum II AHLT T426 1 cr. Management of OT Services 4 cr.	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353 1 cr. Practicum II AHLT T426 1 cr. Management of OT Services AHLT T460 4 cr. Psychosocial Dysfunction Theory and Practice II AHLT T461 3 cr. Physical Dysfunction Theory and Practice II AHLT T462 3 cr. Introduction to Research in Occupational Therapy AHLT T463 1 cr.	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353 1 cr. Practicum II AHLT T426 1 cr. Management of OT Services AHLT T460 4 cr. Psychosocial Dysfunction Theory and Practice II AHLT T461 3 cr. Physical Dysfunction Theory and Practice II AHLT T462 3 cr. Introduction to Research in Occupational Therapy AHLT T463 1 cr. Group Process in OT AHLT T471 1 cr.	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353 1 cr. Practicum II AHLT T426 1 cr. Management of OT Services AHLT T460 4 cr. Psychosocial Dysfunction Theory and Practice II AHLT T461 3 cr. Physical Dysfunction Theory and Practice II AHLT T462 3 cr. Introduction to Research in Occupational Therapy AHLT T463 1 cr. Group Process in OT AHLT T471 1 cr. Medical Care III AHLT W472 2 cr.	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495
Fall OT Techniques V (Splinting) AHLT T353 1 cr. Practicum II AHLT T426 1 cr. Management of OT Services AHLT T460 4 cr. Psychosocial Dysfunction Theory and Practice II AHLT T461 3 cr. Physical Dysfunction Theory and Practice II AHLT T462 3 cr. Introduction to Research in Occupational Therapy AHLT T463 1 cr. Group Process in OT AHLT T471 1 cr. Medical Care III AHLT W472 2 cr.	Field Work Experience I AHLT T495

This baccalaureate degree curriculum is subject to revision.

For further information, contact Professor Cel Hamant, Program Director, Occupational Therapy Program. Telephone (317) 274-8006.

Associate Degree

The associate degree program is two years in length. The graduate occupational therapy assistant is a technically qualified member of the health care team who functions under the supervision or in consultation with a certified/registered occupational therapist. The assistant accepts clinical responsibilities in hospitals, nursing homes, day care centers, rehabilitation centers, or those organizations directed to maintain health and socialization of its members.

Upon completion of the associate degree in the Occupational Therapy Program, the graduate will demonstrate entry-level competence in the analysis of activities and their application to patient needs; occupational therapy concepts and skills (daily living skills, group activities, media used in treatment, and adaptive equipment); direction of activity programs; management of department operations; data collection; self understanding and the realization of the effect that one's behavior has on the patient/client and others; upholding the standards of the profession and identifying the need for continuing professional education and growth; and relating occupational therapy to the total health care system.

Graduates of the associate degree program are eligible to sit for the certification examination leading to admission to the Registry of Occupational Therapy Assistants maintained by the American Occupational Therapy Association. This examination is held throughout the country in January and July of each year.

The associate degree in the Occupational Therapy Technology Program is approved by the Accreditation Committee of the American Occupational Therapy Association.

Admission Requirements Acceptance into the program is based on the applicant's high school grade point average in academic courses and the results of a personal interview. If an applicant has accumulated 12 or more college credits, the GPA from these credits is used in the admission criteria rather than the high school grade point average. In this case, a minimum GPA of 2.0 (on a 4.0 scale) is required for admission. Applications must be submitted by March 1 of the year of anticipated entry to the program.

Preference is given to applicants who are Indiana residents or applicants who complete the majority of applicable course work at an Indiana University campus. Applicants will not be discriminated against based on race, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability.

The Occupational Therapy Performance Policies, the Technical Standards for Admission and Retention, and the Occupational Therapy Code of Ethics for Students are given to students with their letter of acceptance. These documents are used throughout the duration of the technical curriculum to determine eligibility for continuation in the program.

Awards The Erna Simek Outstanding Student Award is presented annually to a second-year student who has been selected by peers and faculty as having demonstrated outstanding performance.

Curriculum The code (G) indicates courses which meet the division's general education requirements.

First Year (Associate Degree) Fall Speech COMM C110 (G) .3 cr. Medical Terminology AHLT S103 .1 cr. Psychology PSY B104 (G) .3 cr. Basics of OT AHLT S110 .3 cr. English Composition ENG W131 (G) .3 cr. Human Biology BIOL N212 (G) .2 cr. Human Biology BIOL N213 (G) .1 cr. Total .16 cr.	Spring OT Art and Craft Techniques AHLT \$101
Second Year (Associate Degree) Fall Therapeutic Group Activities AHLT S102 3 cr. Clinical Observation AHLT S131 1 cr. Applied Kinesiology AHLT S160 2 cr. Daily Life Skills AHLT S205 2 cr. Therapeutic Activities I (Leather) AHLT S209 1 cr. Psychopathology PSY N303 2 cr. OT Techniques II (Woodworking) AHLT T349 1 cr. Medical Care I AHLT W374 3 cr. Total	Spring Adaptive Equipment AHLT S206

Summer Session

Field Work Experience in OT I AHLT S291 (2 cr.)

Field Work Experience in OT II AHLT S292 (2 cr.)

(Two 6-8 week field experiences in assigned occupational therapy clinical areas.)

This associate degree curriculum is subject to revision.

For more information, contact Professor Cel Hamant, Program Director, Occupational Therapy Program. Telephone (317) 274-8006.

Physical Therapy

Director: Associate Professor Porter

Professors Emeritus Ekstam, Ladue, Magee, Young; Associate Professor Santiesteban; Assistant Professors Bruckner, Halcarz, Korba, Marzouk

As a member of the health care team, physical therapists help restore clients to normal functioning of the musculoskeletal and other systems through treatment utilizing therapeutic exercise, physical agents, and assistive devices. The client's physical therapy needs are determined through evaluating muscle strength and tone, joint status, posture, sensory status, functional mobility, exercise tolerance as it relates to cardiorespiratory status, skin condition, pain, and other medical conditions which impair physical function. Physical therapists are concerned with health promotion and disease prevention as well as restoration of function following disease, injury, or loss of a body part. In addition to patient care, the physical therapist participates in administrative, teaching, and research activities and provides consultative services. Physical therapists work in hospitals, outpatient facilities, industrial clinics, governmental and voluntary health agencies, educational settings, extended care facilities, physicians' offices, and private practice settings.

While many specialties exist in the practice of physical therapy, the educational experiences of the Physical Therapy Program curriculum are designed to graduate a generalist. Specialization in a certain area of physical therapy is developed through continuing or graduate education. The curriculum integrates lecture and laboratory course work with patient care experiences. Full-time clinical affiliations occur during the summer of the junior year and the second semester of the senior year. The Physical Therapy Program course of study develops an understanding of normal and abnormal physical structure and function by progressing learning from simple to complex concepts. The curriculum focuses on the management of patient problems rather than procedures. The graduate of the Physical Therapy Program demonstrates technical competencies in physical therapy procedures, the basic skills of research, administration and teaching, and the ability and interest to continue his or her own professional development.

The legal practice of physical therapy in Indiana is regulated by the Physical Therapy Practice Act. To qualify for licensure, an individual must be a graduate of an accredited educational program and successfully complete the licensure examination.

Physical Therapy Program offices are located in Indianapolis at Coleman Hall at the Medical Center. Lecture and laboratory classes are located in Coleman Hall, Ball Annex, and other buildings at the Medical Center. Clinical education occurs throughout the professional course of study in facilities located in Indiana and other states.

The Physical Therapy Program is accredited by the American Physical Therapy Association and the American Medical Association.

Admission Requirements Admission into the Division of Allied Health Sciences Physical Therapy Program is based on the overall grade point average, the mathematics and science grade point average, and an interview. The number of admissions each year is limited, and completion of prerequisites does not guarantee admission. Prior to admission the applicant must meet the following criteria:

- Complete the prerequisites and electives to total 64 credit hours. The following courses may not be counted in the 64 credit hours: physical education activity courses; Math M001, M110, M111, M123, M130, M131, M132; English W001; Biology N100; Chemistry C100; Education U205, X150, X152; and COAS Q294.
- 2. The applicant must have a minimum cumulative grade point average of 3.0 on a 4.0 scale in all attempted hours. The minimum grade point average must be met at the time of application and maintained until admission.
- 3. The applicant must have a minimum cumulative grade point average of 3.0 on a 4.0 scale in all hours attempted in mathematics and science. The minimum grade point average must be met at the time of application and maintained until admission.
- 4. A minimum interview performance standard must be met.
- 5. By January 1 of the year of anticipated entry into the program, the applicant must have completed two thirds of the prerequisite mathematics and science course work.

- 6. Completed applications must be filed in the Division of Allied Health Sciences between August 1 and October 15 of the year prior to anticipated entry into the program.
- 7. Applicants who have NOT been officially admitted to the Indiana University system (including adult nondegree and transient students) must ALSO file a completed undergraduate application for admission to Indiana University-Purdue University at Indianapolis (IUPUI) by October 15 of the year prior to anticipated entry into the program.
- 8. Accepted applicants and applicants on the alternate list must maintain a 2.0 grade point average in each semester following notification of their status.

Nonresident, direct transfer applicants will be considered for admission only if the class cannot be filled with applicants who are residents of Indiana or who complete the majority of applicable course work at a campus of Indiana University.

The Physical Therapy Program accepts academic bankruptcy as a potential consideration in the admission process. Applicants with a grade point average of at least 2.0 on a 4.0 scale may petition the program for academic bankruptcy for up to one academic year based on compelling nonacademic reasons. (An academic year is defined as two regular semesters and two summer sessions. The academic sessions can be nonsequential.)

Applicants who have repeated courses and whose grade point average is at least 2.0 on a 4.0 scale will have the admission grade point average calculated on the basis of the Division of Allied Health Sciences Repeated Course Policy (see Division of Allied Health Sciences Admission Policies).

Awards The program recommends to the University superior academic students for degrees awarded with distinction.

The Constance Brown Memorial Scholarship, established in memory of a deceased classmate, is awarded to an outstanding junior physical therapy student.

The Frances C. Ekstam Scholarship, in honor of the Physical Therapy Program's first director, is awarded to an outstanding senior physical therapy student.

Curriculum Prior to entering the program, the student must complete the following minimum prerequisites. Courses coded with (G) meet the division's general education requirements.

Prerequisites

Written Communication (G) (2 cr.) Verbal Communication (G) (2 cr.) Sociology Electives (G) (3 cr.) Psychology Electives (G) (6 cr.) Animal Biology (G) (4 cr.) Human Anatomy (4 cr.)*

Chemistry (with a lab and an introduction to organic chemistry) (G) (8 cr.) Physics (with a lab and covering heat, light, sound, electricity, and simple machines) (8 cr.)* Introductory Statistics (including descriptive and inferential statistics) (G) (3 cr.)*

Humanities (G) (2 cr.)

^{*} These courses must be completed no more than seven years prior to the date of entry into the Physical Therapy Program.

Junior (Professional Program)	
Fall	Spring
Human Anatomy ANAT D323 5 cr.	Medical Care II AHLT W4713 cr
Human Physiology PHYS F305 5 cr.	Applied Neuroanatomy AHLT W324 3 cr
Medical Care I AHLT W3743 cr.	Human Development AHLT P3002 cr
Physical Therapy Arts I	Physical Therapy Management of
AHLT P3091 cr.	Orthopedic Conditions AHLT P3133 cr
Orientation to Physical Therapy	Physical Therapy Management
AHLT P3101 cr.	of Soft Tissue Injuries AHLT P3143 cr
Applied Anatomy for Physical	Physical Therapy Management
Therapists AHLT P311	of Arthritic Conditions AHLT P3151 cr.
Physical Therapy Theories and Procedures AHLT P312	Physical Therapy Management of Gait Deviations AHLT P319 3.5 cr.
Total	
Total	Physical Therapy Management of Sports Injuries AHLT P3201 cr.
	Physical Therapy Arts II AHLT P3291 cr.
	Total
	10tai
Summer Session	
Clinical Education I AHLT P4912 cr.	
Physical Therapy Management of	
Peripheral Disorders AHLT P3162 cr.	
Physical Therapy Management	
of Neck and Trunk	
Problems AHLT P318 2 cr.	
Total	
Senior (Professional Program)	
Fall	Spring
Medical Care III AHLT W472 2 cr.	Clinical Education II AHLT P492 8 cr.
Psychopathology PSY N3032 cr.	Physical Therapy Senior Projects
Physical Therapy Management of	AHLT P4904 cr.
Cardiopulmonary Problems	Total
AHLT P4212 cr.	
Physical Therapy Management of	•
Spinal Cord Injuries AHLT P422 2 cr.	
Physical Therapy Management of the	
Multihandicapped Patient	
AHLT P4232 cr.	
Applied Physical Therapy	
AHLT P4852 cr.	
Applied Neurophysiology	
AHLT P483	
Total	

For further information, contact Professor Rebecca Porter, Program Director, Physical Therapy Program. Telephone (317) 274-8913.

Radiologic Sciences

Medical Director: Distinguished Professor Klatte

Educational Coordinator: Assistant Professor Hernandez

Coordinator, Baccalaureate Programs: Assistant Professor Kehrein

Professor Wellman; Associate Professor Holden; Assistant Professors Appledorn, Baker, Kosegi, Long

The Radiologic Sciences Program prepares qualified technologists. As a health-related profession, radiologic science is dedicated to the health and welfare of the patient through the diagnosis and treatment of disease.

Radiologic Sciences offers two program options to students interested in the diagnostic application of ionizing radiation and/or radionuclides. These options include an associate

degree in radiologic technology and a baccalaureate degree with a major in either diagnostic clinical specialty or nuclear medicine technology.

The faculty believes that educational opportunities should be provided not only in the preparation of technologists for entry-level positions but also for the technologist who wishes to gain additional expertise. Toward this aim, two undergraduate levels of study are offered. The curriculum for the Associate of Science degree is designed to meet the guidelines of the Joint Review Committee on Education in Radiologic Technology and to provide a foundation in liberal arts for personal growth. The Bachelor of Science option with majors in clinical specialty and nuclear medicine provide several opportunities for experienced technologists to expand their abilities. Educational objectives are developed to provide an atmosphere which combines didactic instruction in the technical aspects of these radiologic sciences with appropriate clinical education so that the student's ability to assume responsibility for patient care is increased.

Graduates of the Radiologic Sciences Program are expected to respond to the needs of their patients with technical competency, compassion, and an ethical manner. They are aware of the need to update their knowledge and skills through active participation in professional societies and continuing education activities.

The Radiologic Sciences Program is offered in Indianapolis at the Medical Center, which consists of modern educational and clinical facilities. The program offices are located in the Clinical Building 197J. Students obtain clinical experience in the radiology departments located in University, Riley, Wishard, and Veterans Administration hospitals, and Regenstrief Health Center. All of these clinical facilities are located at the Indiana University Medical Center in Indianapolis.

Applicants for the Radiologic Sciences Program should have an interest and ability in the life, physical, and behavioral sciences, and should possess a desire to contribute to the health care of all people. Students are chosen on the basis of academic ability and their interest in the profession.

Awards The faculty will recommend to the University graduating students with superior academic performance for degrees awarded with distinction. Also, students with outstanding academic and clinical achievement during their professional program may be recognized by the program at the time of graduation.

Associate Degree Option—Radiologic Technology

Radiologic technology is a science involving the medical use of X rays in the diagnosis of disease. A radiologist is a physician specializing in this science, and a radiologic technologist (radiographer) is the technical assistant to the radiologist.

The curriculum follows a pattern designed to train the technologist to become adept in the performance of any technical-medical radiologic procedure. Courses in radiologic principles, technological procedures, clinical application of theory, and general education are included in the curriculum.

The graduate radiologic technologist (radiographer) is a skilled person qualified to provide patient services using ionizing radiation in the form of X rays. Effective radiographers utilize principles of radiation protection as they determine exposure factors and position patients for a variety of examinations. They also are capable of assessing the technical quality of the image and of providing basic patient care. The technologist must function as a member of the health care team.

Upon successful completion of this option, a student receives the degree Associate of Science in Radiologic Sciences and is eligible to take the certification examination of the American Registry of Radiologic Technologists (ARRT) to become certified as a registered radiographer, R.T.(R).

The associate degree in radiologic technology is accredited by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation of the American Medical Association.

Admission

Graduates of approved high schools or college students who are interested in an allied health sciences profession are eligible to apply for admission to the Radiologic Technology Program.

Admission to the associate degree program is based upon the applicant's academic background and a personal interview. Applications must be submitted between August 1 and December 1 of the year prior to anticipated entry to the program.

Minimum Qualifications Applicants must meet minimum academic requirements to be eligible to be considered for admission to the Radiologic Technology Program. These minimum requirements may be completed in high school or through college course work. Refer to the minimum criteria identified below.

Applicants With High School Background or General Education Development (GED)

Certificate All applicants applying directly from high school must meet all of the standard criteria and be eligible for regular admission to IUPUI. Those not meeting the standard criteria in one or more areas my substitute the corresponding alternate criteria.

Standard Criteria

- Completion of a college preparatory high school curriculum in the following areas: 8 semesters of English
 - 4 semesters of laboratory science
 - 4 semesters of mathematics (algebra, geometry, etc.)
 10 semesters of additional academic courses
- Scholastic Aptitude Test
 Minimum scores: 400 Verbal and 400 Math
 or high school rank in the upper 30
 percent.
- 3. Minimum cumulative grade point average of 3.0 on a 4.0 scale.
- 4. Minimum cumulative math/science grade point average of 3.0 on a 4.0 scale.
- An admission math placement score necessary to be admitted to MATH 110 or higher.
- Applicants with a General Educational Development (GED) certificate will not be considered for direct admission and must seek admission using alternate criteria.

Alternate Criteria

- 1. Completion of one semester as a full-time college student (12 credit hours) or completion of 24 total credit hours as a part-time student. If the high school preparation lacks the minimum number of semesters in one or more areas, the above credit hours must include course work in that area.
- Completion of one semester as a full-time college student (12 credit hours) or completion of 24 total credit hours as a part-time student. A 2.3 cumulative grade point average must be achieved.
- 3. Completion of one semester as a full-time college student (12 credit hours) or completion of 24 total credit hours as a part-time student. A 2.3 cumulative grade point average must be achieved.
- Completion of at least 4 college credit hours of course work in math or science, and a cumulative math/science grade point average of 2.0 on a 4.0 scale for all math/ science course work.
- Completion of remedial math courses which would prepare student for entry into MATH 110 (IUPUI course).
- 6. Completion of one semester as a full-time college student (12 credit hours) or completion of 24 total credit hours as a part-time student. Completion of one college math course and one college science course. The overall grade point average must be 2.3 on a 4.0 scale and a C grade must be attained in the science and math courses. Note: the science and math courses do not need to be a part of the 12 credit semester.

Applicants with College Background These criteria are to be used by all applicants with college background even though they qualify by high school record.

Criteria

- 1. Meet minimum high school qualifications or alternate criteria.
- 2. Have a minimum cumulative grade point average of 2.3 on a 4.0 scale for all courses attempted in a college setting. (If more than one college has been attended, a combined cumulative grade point average will be determined and must be 2.3 and the Indiana

- University cumulative grade point average must be at least 2.0 (4.0 scale).) These averages must be achieved before an interview will be scheduled.
- 3. Have a science/math cumulative grade point average of 2.0 on a 4.0 scale if any of these courses have been taken.

All of the above represent minimum criteria that will qualify the applicant for completion of the admission process. With the exception of the grade point averages, applicants may be in the process of meeting the criteria when they apply and will be considered, provided the minimum criteria can be met before the first enrollment of the class to which application is being made.

Curriculum	
Courses coded with (G) meet division general e	ducation requirements.
Summer Session II Patient Care in Radiologic Sciences AHLT R104	
Introduction to Clinical Radiography AHLT R1032 cr.	
Medical Terminology AHLT R185	
Fall Radiographic Procedures I AHLT R101	Spring Radiographic Procedures II AHLT R201 3 cr. Principles of Radiography 2 AHLT R202 3 cr. Clinical Experience: Basic II AHLT R182 3 cr. Human Biology N214 2 cr. Human Biology N215 1 cr. Physics Applied to Radiology AHLT R250 3 cr. Total 15 cr.
Second Year (Professional Program) Summer Session I Clin Exp: Orthopedic Radiography AHLT R281	Summer Session II Clin Exp: Orthopedic Correlation AHLT R2812 cr. Total2 cr.
Fall Principles of Radiography 3 AHLT R222 3 cr. Pathology AHLT R200 2 cr. Clin Exp: Abdominal Radiography AHLT R282 3 cr. Clin Exp: Abdominal Correlation AHLT R282 2 cr. English Composition ENG W131 (G) 3 cr. Speech Comm C110 or or C180 (G) 3 cr. Total 16 cr.	Spring Radiation Biology and Protection in Diagnostic Radiology AHLT R260 1 cr. Radiographic Procedures III AHLT R205 3 cr. Clin Exp: Ped/Special Radiography AHLT R283 3 cr. Clin Exp: Ped/Special Correlation AHLT R283 2 cr. Experiments and Quality Control AHLT R253 1 cr. Social/Behavioral Science Elective 3 cr. Total 13 cr.
Summer Session I Comprehensive Experience AHLT R290	

For further information, contact Professor Emily Hernandez, Educational Coordinator, Radiologic Sciences Program. Telephone (317) 274-3801.

Baccalaureate Degree Option—Radiologic Sciences

The baccalaureate degree offers two clinical curricular majors. The majors include diagnostic clinical specialty in radiologic sciences and nuclear medicine technology. Specific information concerning admission and degree requirements for each major is indicated below. Evidence of, or eligibility for, registration by the American Registry of Radiologic Technologists is required for admission to the diagnostic clinical specialty major while no previous medical registration is required for the nuclear medicine technology major. A Bachelor of Science in Radiologic Sciences degree will be awarded upon successful completion of the diagnostic clinical specialty or nuclear medicine technology major.

Major I: Diagnostic Clinical Specialty

This major is designed to prepare qualified diagnostic clinical specialty technologists. The principal aim of the program is to provide students with educational experiences which will permit them to develop the competencies required to function effectively in advanced imaging areas.

The graduate diagnostic clinical specialist in radiologic science is a skilled person qualified to provide patient service in digital vascular and neurological procedures, computed axial tomography, ultrasonography and magnetic resonance imaging. These areas represent the most advanced imaging in diagnostic radiology. Effective specialty radiographers utilize principles of radiation protection as they determine exposure factors and position patients for a variety of examinations. They are also capable of assisting in the surgical procedures performed during the examination, assessing the technical quality of the image, and providing basic patient care. The technologist must function as a member of the health care team.

Admission Requirements Admission to the major is based on the following criteria.

- 1. Satisfactorily complete 90 semester hours of the required prerequisites and electives by the beginning of the program.
- Submit an application and a complete transcript of course work to the Division of Allied Health Sciences between August 1 and December 1 of the year prior to desired entry into the program.
- Supply evidence of registration in radiography by the American Registry of Radiologic Technology (ARRT).
- 4. Interview with the admission committee of the Radiologic Science Program.
- 5. Attain a minimum cumulative grade point average of 2.3 and a minimum science grade point average of 2.3 on a 4.0 scale by the time of the interview.
- 6. Attain a minimum grade of C in specific life and physical science prerequisite courses.
- 7. Attain a cumulative grade point average of 2.5 for all radiologic technology courses and 3.0 for all clinically related courses.

Note: Preference is given to applicants who are Indiana residents. Preference is also given to applicants who complete the majority of applicable course work at a campus of Indiana University.

Curriculum Students should consult their academic counselors for appropriate courses and semester sequence in order to complete prerequisites in a timely manner. The code (G) indicates a course which meets the division's general education requirements.

Prerequisites

General Education
Verbal Communication (G) (2-3 cr.)
Written Communication (G) (2-3 cr.)
Humanities Elective (G) (3 cr.)
Social/Behavioral Science Elective (G) (3 cr.)
Introductory Psychology (G) (3 cr.)
College Algebra and Trigonometry (G) (3-5 cr.)
General Physics (with lab) (G) (4-5 cr.)
Elementary Chemistry (with lab) (G) (4-5 cr.)
Human Anatomy (with lab) (4-5 cr.)
Human Physiology (with lab) (4-5 cr.)

Technical Specialty (48 cr.)

This area is complete for applicants who have 48 semester hours of earned college credit hours in radiologic technology.

Students who received their technical training in noncredit awarding programs, and who have full credentials in radiography (ARRT) may be awarded credit for their credentials and experience and/or may petition to test out of technical specialty courses.

Students must select additional courses in radiologic sciences with permission of instructor or in areas which support, complement, or extend their technical preparation if they lack 48 semester hours of earned college credit in radiologic technology.

Electives (to bring total credits up to 90)

The number of elective hours will differ for each student to complete a total of 90 semester hours of prerequisite course work. Additional electives may also be required, before or during the professional program, to complete a minimum of 122 credit hours of academic work for graduation.

Students who have not fulfilled the above requirements may be admitted to University Division depending on the number of earned credits. When the students satisfactorily fulfill these requirements, they may apply for admission to the baccalaureate radiologic sciences option.

Senior (Professional Major)

Summer Session II	
Sectional Imaging Anatomy	
AHLT R404	
Computer Science for Allied Health	
CSCI 205	
Total	
Fall	Spring
Medical Care I AHLT W3743 cr.	Medical Care II AHLT W4713 cr.
Diagnostic Imaging Applications I	Research in Radiologic
AHLT R4053 cr.	Technology AHLT R409 3 cr.
Advanced Clinical Practicum 1	Diagnostic Imaging Applications II
AHLT R401	AHLT R406 3 cr.
Total	Advanced Clinical Practicum 2
	AHLT R4025 cr.
	Total 14 cr

For further information, contact Professor Suetta Kehrein, Baccalaureate Coordinator, Radiologic Sciences Program. Telephone (317) 274-3801.

Major II: Nuclear Medicine Technology

This major is designed to prepare qualified nuclear medicine technologists. This major provides students with educational experiences which will permit them to develop the competencies required to function effectively as nuclear medicine technologists. The curriculum is basically designed for those persons with no previous experience in nuclear medicine, although experienced technologists may apply for admission.

The graduate nuclear medicine technologist is a skilled person qualified to provide patient diagnostic and therapeutic services using ionizing radiation in the form of gamma rays, X rays, and beta rays. These radiations emanate from radioactive materials. Nuclear medicine technologists perform patient organ imaging procedures, radioactive analysis of biological specimens (blood, urine), and some therapeutic applications of radioactive materials. Effective nuclear medicine technologists utilize principles of radiation protection as they prepare and administer radioactive materials for a variety of examinations. They are capable of performing quality control procedures on the instrumentation and on the radioactive materials. Nuclear medicine technologists also assist the physicians in surgical procedures during examinations, give intravenous injections, draw blood, assess the technical quality of the studies, and provide basic patient care. The technologist must function as a member of the health care team.

The bachelor's degree major in nuclear medicine technology is approved as an educational program by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation.

Admission Requirements Admission to this major is based on the following criteria.

1. Satisfactorily complete 88 semester hours of the required prerequisites and electives by the

beginning of the program.

2. Submit an application and a complete transcript of course work to the Division of Allied Health Sciences between August 1 and December 1 of the year prior to desired entry into

3. Observe in a nuclear medicine facility prior to interview.

Radionuclides AHLT R432......4 cr.

Practicum 1 AHLT R445......5 cr.

In Vivo and In Vitro Studies

Clinical Application of

Clinical Nuclear Medicine

4. Interview with the admission committee of the Radiologic Sciences Program.
5. Attain a minimum cumulative grade point average of 2.5 and a minimum science grade point average of 2.5 on a 4.0 scale by the time of the interview.

6. Attain a minimum grade of C in specific life and physical science prerequisite courses.

Note: Preference is given to applicants who are Indiana residents. Preference is also given to applicants who complete the majority of applicable course work at a campus of Indiana University.

Curriculum Students should consult their academic counselors for appropriate courses and semester sequence in order to complete prerequisites in a timely manner. The code (G) indicates a course which meets the division's general education requirements.

Prerequisites Humanities (9 cr.) Verbal Communication (G) (2-3 cr.) Written Communication (G) (2-3 cr.) Humanities Elective (G) (3-5 cr.) Social and Behavioral Sciences (9 cr.) Introductory Psychology (G) (3 cr.) Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective (6 cr.) Life and Physical Sciences (40 cr.) Elementary Chemistry I (with lab) (G) (4-5 cr.) Elementary Chemistry II (with lab) (4-5 cr.) Physics (with lab) (one or two courses, depending on course content) (4-8 cr.) Human Anatomy (with lab) (4-5 cr.) Human Physiology (with lab) (4-5 cr.) College Algebra and Trigonometry and/or Calculus (G) (5-6 cr.) (one or two courses depending on course content) Life and Physical Sciences Electives—To complete the total 40 semester hours; elective areas include selected allied health, anatomy, biology, chemistry, genetics, mathematics, microbiology, nursing, pathology, pharmacology, physiology, and physics. Computer science and/or statistics are highly recommended. Other areas may be approved. Electives (30 cr.) While not inclusive or mandatory, the following is a list of suggested elective areas: selected allied health courses, medical terminology, introduction to computers, psychology, sociology, microbiology, genetics, statistics, anthropology, philosophy, education, supervision, ethics, etc. Senior (Professional Maior) The 35 credits listed below are obtained within a 14-month period and fulfill eligibility requirements for the registry examination in nuclear medicine technology. Summer Session II Patient Care in Radiologic Science Medical Terminology AHLT R185 1 cr. Computer Science for Allied Health CSCI 205......2 cr. Fall Spring Physics and Instrumentation Physics and Instrumentation of Nuclear Medicine I of Nuclear Medicine II

Medicine AHLT R4371 cr.

Practicum 2 AHLT R446 5 cr.

Radiopharmaceuticals AHLT R427.....2 cr.

Radionuclide Measurements

Radiation Protection in Nuclear

Clinical Nuclear Medicine

Summer Session I	Summer Session II
Radiobiology in Nuclear	Clinical Nuclear Medicine
Medicine AHLT R440 1 cr.	Practicum 3 AHLT R4472 cr.
Clinical Nuclear Medicine	Topics: Nuclear Medicine Management
Practicum 3 AHLT R4472 cr.	ÀHLT R408
Total 3 cr.	Total

For further information, contact Professor Suetta Kehrein, Baccalaureate Coordinator, Radiologic Science Programs. Telephone (317) 274-3801.

Respiratory Therapy

Programs Director: Assistant Professor Gruver Interim Clinical Coordinator: Gaither Medical Director: Professor LoSasso

Professor Schreiner; Associate Professors Eigen, Gibbs, Koss, Lemons, Moorthy; Assistant

Professor Sullivan; Instructor Miller; Lecturer Kisling

Respiratory therapists are instrumental in the diagnosis, treatment, management, and preventive care of patients with heart and lung problems. These patients may be found within the hospital in the newborn nursery, surgical and medical units, emergency room, outpatient departments, and intensive care units. They may be suffering from a variety of acute or chronic conditions that are either life threatening or disabling. The respiratory therapist is involved in the treatment of cardiac and pulmonary edema, emphysema, asthma, hemorrhage, shock, and many other abnormalities that result in deficiencies of the respiratory and cardiovascular systems of the body. In essence, the respiratory therapist is a life support specialist.

Additionally, respiratory therapists are becoming increasingly involved in rehabilitative and respiratory home care.

The Respiratory Therapy Program offices and laboratory are located in Coleman Hall.

Awards and Honors Based upon superior academic performance, the faculty will recommend students for degrees awarded with distinction.

The Outstanding Respiratory Therapy Student Award is presented annually to a graduating student who has demonstrated excellence in academic achievement and clinical performance in professional course work.

Associate Degree Program

Through completion of the two-year Respiratory Therapy Program students earn an Associate of Science degree. It consists of one year of prerequisite and general education courses and one year of professional studies. The curriculum is structured to provide graduates with the didactic and clinical experiences necessary to enable them to function as responsible, conscientious therapists. Graduates are qualified to administer all phases of respiratory care, including gas and aerosol therapy, positive pressure breathing treatments, chest physiotherapy, continuous ventilatory support, and pulmonary rehabilitation. In addition, they are able to perform blood gas analysis, cardiopulmonary resuscitation, and pulmonary function studies.

The Respiratory Therapy Program is accredited by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation of the American Medical Association. Graduates are eligible to take the credentialing examinations offered by the National Board for Respiratory Care.

Admission Requirements Admission to the program is competitive and based on the applicant's grade point average and the results of a personal interview with representatives of the Respiratory Therapy Admissions Committee. Generally there are more applicants to the program than can be accepted. The admissions process is conducted during February and March to select the students who will begin their professional studies the following June, during the second summer session. Preference is given to applicants who are Indiana residents. Preference is also given to applicants who complete the majority of applicable course work at a campus of Indiana University.

Applicants must meet the following admission requirements:

- 1. Comply with admission requirements of Indiana University and the Division of Allied Health Sciences. NOTE: Applications are NOT accepted from students in the Guided Studies Program.
- 2. Complete all prerequisite courses with a minimum grade of C or higher prior to starting the professional year.
- 3. Comply with the technical standards of the program.
- 4. Achieve a minimum cumulative grade point average of 2.0 on a 4.0 scale at the time of interview.
- 5. Maintain minimum cumulative and semester grade point averages of 2.0 on a 4.0 scale following the offer of admission to the Division of Allied Health Sciences.
- 6. Submit a completed application to the Division of Allied Health Sciences between August 1 and December 1 of the year before starting the professional year. (Apply before December 1—if accepted, start the professional program the following June.)

Curriculum Students should consult their academic counselors for appropriate courses and semester sequence in order to complete prerequisites. The code (G) indicates a course which meets the division's general education requirements.

Prerequisites Courses The following courses must be completed with a minimum grade of C - prior to the start of the second (professional) year of the program. Human Anatomy 5 cr. Human Physiology5 cr. Algebra/Trigonometry......3 cr. Elementary Chemistry 4-5 cr. General Physics 5 cr. Medical Terminology......1 cr. Courses for Graduation The following courses must be completed with a minimum grade of C - prior to completing

the A.S. degree. Ideally they could, but are not required to, be completed prior to starting the professional year.

Total8-9 cr	r.
Public Speaking, COMM C110 (G) 2-3 cr	۲.
MICR J2003 cr	
Microbiology, BIOL N251 or	
English Comp, ENG W131 (G) cr	٢.

Professional Program (Second Year)

Eall.

Summer Session II
Introduction to Respiratory Therapy I
AHLT F205
Gas Therapy AHLT F270 3 cr.
Cardiopulmonary Physiology
AHLT F242
Total 7 cr.

1 1111
Pharmacology/Respiratory Care
AHLT F200
Respiratory Therapy Treatment
Modalities AHLT F2433 cr.
Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation and
Airway Management AHLT F2411 cr.
Diagnostic Testing and Monitoring
AHLT F2532 cr.
Respiratory Therapy Clinical
Education I, AHLT F2124 cr.
Total 19 am

Spring
Principles of Ventilators AHLT F2734 cr.
Cardiopulmonary Pathophysiology
AHLT F2723 cr.
Respiratory Therapy Supervisory
Skills AHLT F259
Respiratory Therapy Clinical
Education II AHLT F2134 cr.
Total

Graduation requirements include the successful completion of at least 62 credit hours.

For further information, contact Professor Gary Gruver, Respiratory Therapy, Associate Degree Program. Telephone (317) 274-7381.

Baccalaureate Degree Program

The baccalaureate degree program is undergoing review. Contact the program director for the current status.

Indiana University Northwest

Division Office

Acting Director, Division of Allied Health Sciences, T. Kay Carl, B.S., (317) 274-4702 Northwest Campus Division Chairperson, LaVerne Ramaeker, Ed.D., (219) 980-6542.

The Division of Allied Health Sciences is currently offering associate degree programs in the following disciplines: medical laboratory technology, medical record technology, radiologic technology, respiratory therapy.

The IUN programs follow the basic structure of programs described earlier in this text. Concentration options are developed utilizing hospital resources throughout northwest Indiana for clinical training and the campus resources of Indiana University Northwest.

Complete information on division programs at IUN may be obtained by contacting:

Chairperson Division of Allied Health Sciences Indiana University Northwest 3400 Broadway Gary, Indiana 46408 Telephone: (219) 980-6542

Admission Policies

Students must adhere to the Division of Allied Health Sciences' admission policies as described elsewhere in this *Bulletin*.

Admission Procedure

Application for any allied health program at Indiana University Northwest campus is a two-step procedure.

- 1. Application and admission to Indiana University must be completed first.
- After being admitted to Indiana University, an IU Northwest Division of Allied Health Sciences application may be secured from the Office of Admissions or the Division of Allied Health Sciences.

All allied health applications must be received no later than March 15 of the year the student hopes to begin work in an allied health program.

The correct address for applications is 3400 Broadway, Gary, Indiana 46408.

Admission to Indiana University Northwest and/or the Division of Allied Health Sciences does not constitute automatic admission to a division program. The number of clinical facilities participating jointly in the program accounts for the limited class enrollments and necessitates a selection process. Selection committees for each of the programs review high school and college transcripts and request interviews with prospective students as necessary prior to final selection.

General Degree, Education, and Academic Requirements

Students must meet the Division of Allied Health Sciences general requirements for degrees, general education requirements, academic regulations, and student rights and responsibilities as expressed in other sections of this *Bulletin*. Students should read these sections as well as the one concerning academic standing. Students must also comply with Indiana University Northwest policies and procedures.

Accreditation The Division of Allied Health Sciences shares with the other schools of the University the accreditation accorded Indiana University as a member of the North Central Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools.

The programs in medical laboratory technology, medical record technology, radiologic technology, and respiratory therapy are, in addition, approved by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation in cooperation with their respective review committees.

Cost The instructional costs of the associate degree programs are based on credit hours and are paid on a semester basis. Other program costs include books and uniforms. Students are responsible for transportation costs and living expenses.

Honors Program Programs will recommend to the University students with superior academic performance for degrees awarded with distinction. Students should read the Honors Program section of this *Bulletin* for specific details.

Program-specific honors may also be awarded, and students should refer to the following program descriptions for criteria.

Withdrawal from Courses Students may withdraw from any course during the first nine weeks of the semester (fourth week of a six-week summer session and fifth week of an eightweek summer session) and will automatically receive a grade of W. After the ninth week, the grade shall be W or F as determined by the instructor.

At any time during the semester, students may secure a schedule adjustment form from the Office of the Registrar. A completed form must be submitted to the Office of the Bursar within seven days from the date of issuance in order for the change to be valid. The effective date of the form for grading and refund purposes will be the date of receipt in the Office of the Bursar. Withdrawals during the automatic W period require the signatures of the student and the academic adviser. In addition, after the automatic withdrawal period, the signatures of the instructor and student's divisional chairperson are required.

Students who alter their original class schedule, whether by personal incentive or by University directive, must do so officially by the procedure outlined above. Students who do not assume this responsibility are jeopardizing their records by the possibility of incurring an F in a course not properly dropped and/or not receiving credit in a course improperly added.

Transfer Programs The Division of Allied Health Sciences at Indiana University Northwest is part of the School of Medicine systemwide division. In addition to the allied health programs offered at IUN, other allied health programs are available through the Division of Allied Health Sciences in Indianapolis. The curricula of these programs require from one to three years of prerequisite courses followed by professional studies. Students having an interest in allied health programs at the Medical Center, Indianapolis, may choose to fulfill the prerequisite course requirements at IU Northwest prior to applying for the professional portion of the program in Indianapolis. Students should seek academic counseling for specific program planning from the Division of Allied Health Sciences Program Office, 3400 Broadway, Gary, Indiana 46408.

The following allied health programs are offered at the Medical Center, Indianapolis, for which certain prerequisites can be met at Indiana University Northwest:

Cytotechnology Program Medical Record Administration Program Medical Technology Program Occupational Therapy Program Physical Therapy Program Radiologic Sciences (B.S.) Program

Indiana University Northwest—General Information

History

Indiana University Northwest is the result of a process of growth and change that began in 1922 when the University offered its first formal classes in Lake County as part of a program sponsored by the Gary Public School System. Under various names and in various locations, Indiana University has been serving the needs of higher education in northwest Indiana ever since.

In 1932 Indiana University initiated the Calumet Center in East Chicago; and by 1939, through funds granted by the state legislature and the federal government, the Calumet Center was serving students in a building in Tod Park on a site donated by the city of East Chicago.

When Gary College was founded in 1933, Indiana University discontinued classes in Gary except for a few advanced courses. But in 1948, at the request of the Gary School Board, the

University assumed the management of Gary College, which became the Gary Center of Indiana University. Gary Center classes were held after school hours and in the evenings at the Horace Mann High School until 1949, when all the main facilities of the Center were moved to the commercial wing of the City Methodist Church, a move which allowed for a considerable expansion of the Center's program. In 1955, with approval from the Gary Board of Park Commissioners, the Common Council of the city authorized the sale of 27 acres of Gleason Park to Indiana University for the purpose of establishing a Gary Center campus (the present site of Indiana University Northwest). In May of 1959, the first classes were held in the new location.

Recognizing the growth of such centers and the increasing demands for higher education throughout the state, Indiana University in 1963 reorganized its various "extension" centers into regional campuses, and the Gary Center and the Calumet Center became the Northwest Campus of Indiana University. Soon after this reorganization, the first degree programs were authorized and the Northwest Campus became a four-year college. The first commencement was held at the Northwest Campus in June of 1967. In 1968, the IU Board of Trustees changed the name of the Northwest Campus to Indiana University Northwest.

Campus and Buildings

The campus of Indiana University Northwest in Gary is situated adjacent to 240 wooded acres of park land, much of which as currently developed includes municipal playing fields, baseball diamonds, and golf courses. The city of Gary has already given 32.8 acres of this park property to Indiana University for the campus. The Gleason Park site is bounded on the north by an interstate expressway (I 80-94), on the east by a major north-south artery (Broadway-Ind. 53), and on the south and west by residential housing. The northeast and northwest corners of the 240-acre tract lie adjacent to expressway cloverleaf exchanges east and west.

Six of the buildings utilized by IUN are located on the 27-acre main campus site. The buildings referred to are the original classroom/office building occupied in 1959; a second classroom/office building and a student union building, which were put into operation in 1969; a four-story classroom/office building which was occupied in 1976, and which includes a Computer Center, linked to the computer facilities in Bloomington and Indianapolis; a Library/Conference Center completed in the spring of 1980; and the Northwest Center for Medical Education. The center is also the site of the Medical Resource Center. Adjacent to the campus is a building that houses the Dental Auxiliary Education Program of the IU School of Dentistry. Also adjacent to the campus is a building for divisional, departmental, and faculty offices. Two other structures contain University offices, research offices, and campus support services. There are also a greenhouse and physical plant facilities. The Master Plan for the Physical Development of the campus calls for expansion of the campus, the construction of other buildings, and the acquisition of other properties.

Student Activities

Student life at the University goes beyond the classroom. There are lounges and recreational facilities for casual and informal socializing. Student government and student publications provide a more structured opportunity for direct participation in University governance and the promotion of student interests. Student generated organizations cover a broad spectrum. All appeal to particular interests or attitudes such as intramural athletics, ethnic and cultural groups, fraternities, sororities, social action or political alliances, professional and academic societies. The student affairs staff offers aid to all students requesting assistance in any area of activity.

Student Services Administration

Student Services Administration consists of an array of people, programs, and services designed to meet the procedural and affective needs of students. In addition to providing direct services to students, the Student Services Administration assumes an advocacy role, i.e. articulating student needs to the faculty and administration. Moreover, the staff is supportive of faculty and the academic mission of the University.

The dean for student services provides administrative leadership for the student services area and is the person to whom students and others should address questions or concerns relative to student life/development. Student services governed by the administration include admissions, financial aids, guided studies, the Special Services Program, student activities,

psychological services, career and placement services, and University Division. Other functions include student discipline, recreation, and intramurals.

Scholarships and Financial Aids

In addition to developing local assistance programs, the Northwest campus participates in a wide variety of federal- and state-sponsored programs. The financial aid program is designed to serve students from the most diverse parts of society. Every student who applies for aid on or before the priority date and who has demonstrated financial need is assured some type of financial assistance. Students applying after the priority date will be considered for aid according to their degree of need and the availability of funds.

Applications for assistance are available in the financial aid office. Completed applications should be submitted by March 1 for the following academic year.

Financial assistance, in various forms, is available to students attending Indiana University at any of its campuses. Because scholarship and grant funds are limited, the student's entire need for funds cannot always be met from these sources. Therefore, several types of financial aid may be combined. It is not uncommmon for a student, particularly with a large need, to receive assistance in the forms of scholarship, grant, loan, and employment earnings, or some combination of these types. In offering students a particular financial aid "package," the University Committee on Scholarships and Financial Aids attempts to arrange the combination of aid in such a manner as will be most beneficial to the student.

High school students and individuals who have not begun their university studies may obtain applications and related materials at their local high school or the Office of Scholarships and Financial Aids, Indiana University Northwest. The completed application must be submitted by March 1 in order to be considered for financial assistance for the following academic year.

Currently enrolled University students or those who have completed some university-level work may obtain the necessary forms at the Office of Scholarships and Financial Aids, Indiana University Northwest. The completed application should be submitted by March 1 for the following academic year.

Any student planning to attend the Northwest campus and applying for financial assistance should submit an application directly to the Office of Scholarships and Financial Aids at Indiana University Northwest.

The all-purpose Indiana University Application for Scholarships and Financial Aids is used for most types of financial assistance; some programs, however, require separate applications. Detailed information on the types of financial assistance available and application procedures may be obtained by contacting the Office of Scholarships and Financial Aids, Indiana University Northwest.

In order to be considered for financial assistance in excess of \$250, a student must submit a Financial Aid Form (FAF). These forms are available through the local high schools or the Office of Scholarships and Financial Aids at Indiana University Northwest.

Scholarships

All scholarships are awarded on the basis of the applicant's academic achievement and potential for college success. In cases where financial need exists, the amount of the stipend will be based upon the need of the student for funds as determined by analysis of the Financial Aid Form, other information, and total amount of funds available to the University. Scholarships with stipends of approximately \$250 may be awarded to students even though analysis of all data indicates that the resources of the student's family are sufficient to enable him or her to attend Indiana University Northwest without financial assistance. Students interested only in scholarships with a stipend of approximately \$250 need not submit a Financial Aid Form.

Local Scholarships Scholarship funds, established and provided by individuals, organizations, business, industry, and other private organizations in the area, are available to students attending Indiana University Northwest. These scholarships may be offered in addition to the scholarships awarded by the University.

Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants All undergraduate students admitted to the University are eligible to be considered for this award on the basis of financial need. The amount of the grant is determined by the student's need for funds.

Child-of-Disabled-Veteran Award Students who are children of disabled/deceased veterans of World War I or II, the Korean Conflict, or the Vietnam era who have suffered a service-connected disability or death are eligible for partial remission of fees.

Federal Work-Study Program The federal government has provided funds to stimulate and promote part-time employment of students in institutions of higher education. To be eligible for this program, students must be enrolled during the semester in which they wish to be employed. The student must also verify a need for financial assistance. Under this program, employment is limited to an average of 20 hours per week whenever regular classes are in session.

Nursing Loans and Tuition Scholarships

The Nursing Loan Program assists students who need financial aid to pursue a course of study leading to a degree in nursing. The goal is to increase the opportunities for students seeking careers in nursing by providing long-term, low-interest loans to students who are in need of such assistance. To qualify, a student must be working toward a degree in nursing. Repayment of loans at 6 percent interest starts six months after completion of the degree or upon enrollment of less than half-time status.

A limited number of scholarships are also available. These are for tuition only. Information is available in the School of Nursing office.

National Direct Student Loan This program was established by the federal government to provide long-term loans at low-interest rates to students enrolled in 6 credit hours or more. An applicant must verify need for financial assistance and is required to maintain good academic standing. No interest accrues during the time of enrollment. Repayment may be made over a ten-year period at 5 percent interest beginning six months after the borrower ceases to be enrolled in at least 6 credit hours.

Short-Term Loan Program Indiana University provides a short-term loan service to aid students who need temporary assistance in meeting current educational expenses. Information concerning the loan is available at the Office of Scholarships and Financial Aids, Indiana University Northwest, as is information on the Margaret Playe Memorial Emergency short-term loan.

Guaranteed Loans Students may apply to their hometown lending institutions (banks, savings and loan associations, credit unions, etc.) for loans up to \$2,500 for an academic year. Repayment begins six months after the student completes the program or is enrolled below half-time status. When repayment begins, the student will pay 7, 8, or 9 percent interest on the unpaid balance. Financial need may be a criterion.

Vocational Rehabilitation A person with a handicap may qualify for financial assistance through the Vocational Rehabilitation Program. Application must be made directly to the Vocational Rehabilitation Division in the student's area. In the Gary area Vocational Rehabilitation Offices are located at 3660 Grant Street, Gary, and 911 Ridge Road, Munster.

Pell Grant The Pell Grant program is a federal aid program designed to provide financial assistance to those who need it to attend post–high school educational institutions. Grants are intended to be the "floor" of a financial aid package and may be combined with other forms of aid in order to meet the full costs of education. The amount of the grant is determined on the basis of the student's own and the family's financial resources.

In accordance with federal guidelines, students receiving financial aid are monitored to see if they are meeting minimum enrollment requirements as well as making reasonable academic progress toward degree requirements.

The University is aware of its consumer information responsibility and continuously tries to communicate basic information in the most complete and accurate manner possible.

Academic Programs, IU Northwest Medical Laboratory Technology

Program Director: Lecturer Newell Clinical Coordinator: Instructor Glinski

A medical laboratory technician is an indispensable member of the health care team. Working under the direct supervision of a pathologist and medical technologist, the technician is capable of performing a large variety of laboratory tests, thereby contributing toward meeting patients' needs.

The associate degree Medical Laboratory Technology Program is one which prepares the student for a satisfying career in laboratory medicine. It is designed to provide students with the proper balance of academic background and practical experience necessary to successfully complete the course. Students accepted into the Medical Laboratory Technology Program begin the course of study in the fall semester. The curriculum consists of general education courses, technical courses in laboratory technology, and clinical experience in one of a number of hospitals in the Lake County area.

Graduate medical laboratory technicians perform tests in each laboratory department including hematology, chemistry, microbiology, immunohematology, and serology. They use manual techniques as well as advanced electronic equipment in performing the various tests. In addition, a medical laboratory technician is adept at collecting blood and helping to assess the laboratory's quality control program. Program graduates are eligible to apply for the national registry examination in laboratory technology.

The Medical Laboratory Technology Program offices and classrooms are located in Hawthorn Hall at Indiana University Northwest. Laboratory and clinical training occur in local affiliated hospitals in the Lake County area.

The Indiana University Medical Laboratory Technology Program is accredited by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation of the American Medical Association.

Admission Requirements Students may apply for admission to the Medical Laboratory Technology Program after qualifying for regular admission to Indiana University.

Admission to the program is based upon each applicant's high school and/or college course work, SAT score, and a personal interview. Preference is given to applicants who are Indiana residents. Preference is also given to applicants who complete the majority of applicable course work at a campus of Indiana University. Applicants should have completed high school chemistry and algebra. Applications are due March 15 of the year of anticipated entry to the program.

It is the policy of the Medical Laboratory Technology Program that a minimum grade point average of 2.0 on a 4.0 scale be required for admission into the program. This policy is implemented by the program admissions committee when the incoming class of students is selected from the applicant pool.

Awards The program will recommend students with superior academic performance for degrees awarded with distinction.

Curriculum (Two-Year Semester Sequence)

Courses coded with (G) meet division general education requirements.

First Year (Professional Program)

Fall	Spring
Human Anatomy and	Human Anatomy and
Physiology I, PHSL P2614 cr.	Physiology II, PHSL P2624 cr.
Basic Mathematics, MATH M100	Elementary Chemistry II,
(or M118, M119) 4 cr.	CHEM C102 ¹ (lecture) 3 cr.
Elementary Chemistry I,	Elementary Chemistry II,
CHEM C101 ¹ (lecture) 3 cr.	CHEM C122 ¹ (laboratory)2 cr.
Elementary Chemistry I,	Elementary Composition,
CHEM C121 ¹ (laboratory)2 cr.	ENG W131 (G)
Medical Terminology, AHLT R1851 cr.	Hematology, AHSP C1311 (G)3 cr.
Introduction to the Clinical	Total
Laboratory, AHSP C18012 cr.	
Total	
Summer Session I	Summer Session II
Clinical Microbiology,	Clinical Education I,
AHSP C151 ¹	AHSP C181 ¹ 4 cr.
Body Fluids, AHSP C161 ¹ 2 cr.	Clinical Immunoserology,
Total4 cr.	AHSP C141 ¹
	Total6 cr.
Second Year (Professional Program)	
Fall	Spring
Clinical Education II, AHSP C18214 cr.	Clinical Education III,
Interpersonal Communications,	AHSP L28114 cr.
SPCH S122 (G) 3 cr.	Clinical Microbiology II,
Immunohematology AHSP C140 ¹ 2 cr.	AHSP C1521
Clinical Chemistry I,	Introductory Psychology,
AHSP C121 ¹	PSY P101 (G)3 cr.
Total	Advanced Clinical Topics
	AHSP L202 ¹
	Clinical Chemistry II,
	AHSP C122 ¹
	Total

For further information, contact Professor Newell, Program Director, Medical Laboratory Technology Program.

Medical Record Technology

Program Director: Associate Professor Skurka Clinical Coordinator Wellman

A medical record is a permanent document of the history and progress of one person's illness or injury made to preserve information of medical, scientific, legal, and planning value. Medical record technicians are responsible for maintaining medical, scientific, and legal documents regarding a patient's injury or illness.

Students accepted into the Medical Record Technology Program begin the course of study in the fall semester. The curriculum consists of general education courses, technical courses in medical record technology, and clinical experience in hospitals in the Lake County area. The Medical Record Technology Program is designed to:

- 1. Provide educational experiences designed to prepare students for beginning a career as a medical record technician.
- Provide concentrated clinical experiences by a rotation schedule through the hospitals and other health care institutions in the community.

¹ Professional core course: A minimum grade of C (2.0) is required in order to take professional core courses that occur later in the course sequence for this major.

- 3. Provide the medical community with individuals qualified to effectively carry out the functions of the medical record discipline.
- 4. Contribute to the liberal education of the students by providing a core of general education courses.
- 5. Qualify the students for transfer to a college or university offering a baccalaureate degree in the field.
- 6. Assist students in reaching their goals by providing academic, occupational, and personal guidance.

The entry-level medical record technician generally works in the medical record department of a hospital, clinic, or other health care facility. Some of their functions include analyzing medical records for completeness and accuracy, coding and classifying all diagnoses and operative procedures, preparing health care facility statistics, performing quality of care studies, and supervising department employees.

The Medical Record Technology Program offices and classrooms are located in Hawthorn Hall at IU Northwest. Clinical experience occurs in health care facilities located in Lake and Porter Counties of Indiana and Cook County, Illinois.

The curriculum of the Medical Record Technology Program is accredited by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation of the American Medical Association. A student, upon successful completion of this two-year program, will be eligible to take a national accreditation examination. Upon passing this, the student may use the initials A.R.T., accredited record technician, and becomes a member of a growing health profession.

Admission Requirements Students may apply for admission to the Medical Record Technology Program after qualifying for regular admission to Indiana University.

Admission to the program is based upon each applicant's high school and/or college grade point average, SAT score, and a personal interview. Applications are due by March 15 of the year of anticipated entry to the program at the Division of Allied Health Sciences office.

It is the policy of the Medical Record Technology Program that a minimum grade point average of 2.0 on a 4.0 scale be required for admission into the program. This policy is implemented by the program's admissions committee when the incoming class of students is selected from the applicant pool. The program also computes a selected course GPA based on courses the student may have taken that are required by the program. Preference is given to applicants who are Indiana residents. Preference is also given to applicants who complete the majority of applicable course work at a campus of Indiana University.

Awards The program will recommend students with superior academic performance for degrees awarded with distinction.

Curriculum (Two-year Semester Sequence)

First Year (Professional Program)

Fall

Courses coded with (G) meet division general education requirements.

Elementary Composition I
ENG W131 (G) ¹ 3 cr.
Human Anatomy and Physiology I
PHSL P261 (G) 4 cr.
Anatomy and Physiology Enrichment
Lab PHSL P263 (G)1 cr.
Medical Terminology
AHSP M195 ¹
Introductory Psychology I

Human Anatomy and Physiology I
PHSL P261 (G) 4 cr.
Anatomy and Physiology Enrichment
Lab PHSL P263 (G)1 cr.
Medical Terminology
AHSP M195 ¹
Introductory Psychology I
PSY P101 (G)3 cr.
Total
Summer Session
Directed Practice in Medical
Record Science I AHSP M10414 cr.
Total4 cr.

Spring
Human Anatomy and Physiology II
PHSL P2624 cr.
Anatomy and Physiology Enrichment
Lab PHSL P2631 cr.
Medical Record Science I
AHSP M101 ¹
Principles of Sociology SOC S1613 cr.
Introduction to Computers
and their Uses CSCI C106 3 cr.
Medical Transcription/Word Processing
(Lab) AHSP M107 ¹ 2 cr.
Total

¹ Professional core course: A minimum grade of C (2.0) is required in order to take professional core courses that occur later in the course sequence for this major.

Second Year (Professional Program) Spring Medical Record Science II Medical Record Science III AHSP M1021 4 cr. Directed Practice in Medical Directed Practice in Medical Record Science II AHSP M1051......5 cr. Record Science III AHSP M1061 2 cr. Statistics for Medical Record Legal Aspects of Medical Record Science AHSP M1201......2 cr. Office Organization AHSP M20013 cr. Pathology AHLT R2001......3 cr. Elective (Suggested Elective: Organizational Behavior and W231 Professional Writing Skills). 3 cr. Leadership BUS Z301 3 cr. Public Speaking SPCH S121 (G) 3 cr.

For further information, contact Professor Skurka, Director, Medical Record Technology Program.

Radiologic Technology

Program Director: Assistant Professor McKenna Clinical Coordinator: Assistant Professor Ledbetter

Radiology is a science involving the medical use of X rays, radium, and radioactive isotopes in the diagnosis and treatment of disease. A radiologic technologist (radiographer) is the technical assistant to the radiologist.

Radiographers are essential members of the health care team. They are experts in the performance of examinations requiring the use of X rays and highly complex machinery to produce a quality x-ray film (radiograph) of the internal parts of the body for interpretation by a medical doctor. Radiographers can find employment possibilities in various medical settings ranging from doctors' offices to large medical centers. In addition, some radiographers seek employment in industry or in the marketing and sales of x-ray products. Radiographers can further specialize in areas such as angiography, ultrasound, computer tomography, magnetic resonance imaging, nuclear medicine, radiation therapy, education, and administration. For the most part, these specialties require additional course work. The associate degree may apply for entry to the baccalaureate program in Radiologic Sciences. Graduates are eligible to write the National Examination of the American Registry of Radiologic Technologists.

The curriculum follows a pattern designated to train the technologist to become adept in the performance of any technical-medical diagnostic radiologic procedure. Courses in radiologic principles, radiographic procedures, clinical application of theory, and general education are included in the curriculum.

The Radiologic Technology Program curriculum objectives are designed to:

- Provide educational experiences designed to prepare students for entering a career as radiographers.
- 2. Provide concentrated clinical experiences by a rotation schedule through the hospitals in the community.
- Provide the medical community with individuals qualified to perform radiographic procedures.
- Contribute to the liberal education of the students by providing a score of general education courses.
- Qualify the students for transfer to a college or university offering a baccalaureate degree in the field.
- Assist students in reaching their goals by providing academic, occupational, and personal guidance.
- 7. Instill in students a lifelong desire to achieve professional and academic excellence.

The Radiologic Technology Program offices and classrooms are located in Hawthorn Hall at IU Northwest. Clinical experiences occur in local hospitals, including The Community Hospital in

¹ Professional core course: A minimum grade of C (2.0) is required in order to take professional core courses that occur later in the course sequence for this major.

Munster, St. Margaret Hospital in Hammond, St. Catherine Hospital in East Chicago, and Methodist Hospital of Gary, Inc. in Gary and Merrillville.

The Radiologic Technology Program is accredited by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation of the American Medical Association.

Admission Requirements Students may apply for admission to the Radiologic Technology Program after qualifying for regular admission to Indiana University.

Admission to the program is based upon each applicant's high school and/or college course work, and a personal interview. Preference is given to applicants who are Indiana residents. Preference is also given to applicants who complete the majority of applicable course work at a campus of Indiana University. To be eligible for admission, applicants should have completed high school courses in algebra (one year), geometry (one year), biology (one year), and English (four years). In addition, physics, chemistry, typing, and a second year of algebra are recommended. Applications are due by March 15 of the year of anticipated entry to the program.

It is the policy of the Radiologic Technology Program that a minimum grade point average of 2.0 on a 4.0 scale be required for admission into the program. This policy is implemented by the program admissions committee when the incoming class of students is selected from the applicant pool.

Awards The program will recommend to the University graduating students with superior academic performance for degrees awarded with distinction. Also, students with outstanding academic and clinical achievement during their professional program may be recognized by the program at the time of graduation.

Curriculum (Two-Year Semester Sequence)

Courses coded with (G) meet division general education requirements.

First Year (Professional Program)

Summer Session II
Basic Mathematics MATH M1001 4 cr.
Total
Fall
Orientation to Radiologic
Technology AHLT R1001
Radiographic Procedures I
AHLT R101' 3 cr.
Principles of Radiography 1
AHLT R102 ¹ 3 cr.
Clinical Experience I
AHLT R181 ¹ 2 cr.
Human Anatomy and Physiology I
PHSL P261 (G) 4 cr.
Medical Terminology
AHLT R185 ¹ 1 cr.
Total
Summer Sessions
Clinical Experience III

AHLT R281¹......4 cr.

Spring
Radiographic Procedures II
AHĽT R201 ¹
Principles of Radiography 2
AHLT R202 ¹
Clinical Experience II
AHLT R18214 cr.
Human Anatomy and Physiology II
PHSL P2624 cr.
Total14 cr.

¹ Professional core course: A minimum grade of C (2.0) is required in order to take professional core courses that occur later in the course sequence for this major.

Program.

Second Year (Professional Program)	
Fall	Spring
Radiographic Procedures III AHLT R205 ¹	Radiobiology and Protection AHLT R260'
Principles of Radiography 3	Pathology AHLT R2003 cr.
AHLT R222 ¹ 3 cr.	Clinical Experience V
Physics Applied to Radiography	AHLT R28314 cr.
AHLT R250'3 cr.	Introductory Psychology
Clinical Experience IV	PSY P101 (G)3 cr.
AHLT R282 ¹ 4 cr.	Communication Requirement
English Composition	SPCH S121 or S122 (G)3 cr.
ENG W131(G) ¹	Total
Total	
Summer Sessions	
Comprehensive Experience AHLT R290 ¹ 4 cr.	
Total4 cr.	
For further information, contact Professor Mck	Cenna, Director, Radiologic Technology

 $^{^{\}rm I}$ Professional core course: A minimum grade of C (2.0) is required in order to take professional core courses that occur later in the course sequence for this major.

Respiratory Therapy

Program Director: Associate Professor Neff Clinical Coordinator: Instructor Gregory Adjunct Clinical Instructors Chin, Green, Harris, Laudani

In the Respiratory Therapy Program individuals receive training in the treatment, management, control, and care of patients with deficiencies and abnormalities associated with respiration. Proper care of patients is emphasized in all phases of the program.

A respiratory therapist is an allied health professional who works under medical direction in the treatment, diagnostic study, evaluation, management, and care of patients with cardiopulmonary diseases and abnormalities.

A minimum of two years is required to complete work for the Associate of Science in Respiratory Therapy. Students considering part-time enrollment may elect to complete the courses of the preprofessional first year on a part-time basis. The professional year of the program requires a full-time commitment of twelve consecutive months. The program curriculum is designed to teach the therapeutic use of medical gases, air and oxygen-administering apparatus, environmental control systems, humidification and aerosols, drugs and medications, ventilatory assistance and ventilatory control, postural drainage, chest physiotherapy and breathing exercise, pulmonary rehabilitation and home care, assist with cardiopulmonary resuscitation, and maintenance of natural, artificial, and mechanical airways.

Graduate respiratory therapists will be responsible for emergency airway care; preparation and administration of aerosolized medications; bronchopulmonary drainage and pulmonary rehabilitation; blood gas analysis; critical care ventilatory management; and pulmonary function testing. Graduates will be eligible to take the entry-level and registry examinations offered by the National Board of Respiratory Care.

The Respiratory Therapy Program offices and classroom/laboratory are located in Hawthorn Hall. Clinical experience occurs in four hospitals and various health care facilities in the northwestern Indiana area.

The Respiratory Therapy Program is accredited by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation of the American Medical Association.

Admission Requirements Students may apply for admission to the Respiratory Therapy Program after completion of regular admission to Indiana University and first-year preprofessional courses as indicated under Curriculum. It is strongly suggested that the applicant have a high school background in chemistry, physics, two courses in algebra, and biology. A student applying to IU who does not have the recommended high school course work will not be denied admission to the program on that basis. However, it is the belief of the program faculty that these high school courses will enhance performance in the science courses at IUN. Admission to the program is based on consideration of each applicant's GPA and math/science GPA. Preference is given to applicants who are Indiana residents. Preference is also given to applicants who complete the majority of applicable course work at a campus of Indiana University. Applications are due prior to March 15 of the year of anticipated entry to the second year (professional year) of the program.

It is the policy of the Respiratory Therapy Program that a minimum grade point average of 2.0 on a 4.0 scale be required for admission into the program. This policy is implemented by the program admissions committee when the incoming class of students is selected from the applicant pool. All applications are reviewed by the admission committee for the Respiratory Therapy Program. The number of students admitted each year is limited to the number of clinical positions available.

Awards The program will recommend students with superior academic performance for degrees awarded with distinction.

Curriculum Students should consult with their academic counselors for proper academic courses and semester sequence in order to complete the first-year program prerequisite courses in a timely manner. Courses coded with (G) meet division general education requirements.

First Year (Pre-professional Course Work)
Elementary Composition ENG W131 (G) (3 cr.)¹
Physics in the Modern World PHYS P101 (4 cr.)¹
Human Anatomy and Physiology I PHSL P261 (G) (4 cr.)¹
Principles of Anatomy and Physiology—Special Topics PHSL P263 (1 cr.)¹
Basic Algebra MATH M014 (4 cr.)¹
Human Anatomy and Physiology II PHSL P262 (4 cr.)¹
Topics for Respiratory Therapy PHSL P263 (1 cr.)¹
Elementary Chemistry I CHEM C101 (3 cr.)¹
Elementary Chemistry Lab CHEM C121 (2 cr.)¹
Introductory Microbiology MICR M120 (3 cr.)¹
Introductory Microbiology Lab MICR M121 (1 cr.)¹
Medical Terminology AHLT R185 (1 cr.)

Second Year (Professional Program) Summer Session I	Summer Session II
Introduction to Respiratory	Respiratory Therapy II
Therapy I AHLT F205 ¹	AHLT F202 ¹
Gas Therapy AHLT F270 ¹ 2 cr.	Pharmacology AHLT F105 ¹ 2 cr.
Resuscitation and Airway	Clinical Education I AHLT F181
Management AHLT F271 ¹ 1 cr.	(24 hrs./wk. x 7 = 168 hours) 2 cr.
Total6 cr.	Total
Fall	Spring
Cardiopulmonary Pathophysiology	Pediatric Respiratory Care
AHLT F272 ¹ 3 cr.	AHLT F274 ¹
Principles of Ventilators	Comprehensive Clinical
AHLT F27314 cr.	Education III AHLT F2751
Diagnostic Testing and	$(32 \text{ hrs./wk. } x 14 = 448 \text{ hours}) \dots 5 \text{ cr.}$
Monitoring AHLT F25315 cr.	Introductory Psychology I
Clinical Education II AHLT F1821	PYS P101 (G)3 cr.
$(24 \text{ hrs./wk. } \times 14 = 336 \text{ hours}) \dots 4 \text{ cr.}$	Verbal Communications Elective (G)3 cr.
(Semester break-9 days = 72 hours)	Total
Total	

For further information, contact Professor Neff, Director, Respiratory Therapy Program.

¹ Professional core course: A grade of C or higher is required in order to take professional core courses that occur later in the course sequence for this major.

Courses Offered, 1987-89

The letters preceding the number of each of the courses in the Division of Allied Health Sciences indicate the program. The letters used and their meanings are as follows:

AHLT A—Cytotechnology
AHLT C—Medical Technology
AHLT F—Respiratory Therapy
AHLT M—Medical Record Administration
AHLT P—Physical Therapy
AHLT R—Radiologic Sciences

AHLT S—Occupational Therapy Technology AHLT T—Occupational Therapy AHLT W—Interdisciplinary Courses AHLT X—Health Services Management AHSP L—Medical Laboratory Technology AHSP M—Medical Record Technology

The abbreviation "P" in the course descriptions refers to course prerequisites; "R" refers to requirements which are suggested as desirable prior to enrollment, but not necessary for enrollment; and "C" refers to course requirements taken concurrently.

Interdisciplinary Courses

AHLT W324 Applied Neuroanatomy (3 cr.) Permission of instructor. Emphasis on structure and gross function of nervous system as a basis for clinical neurology.

AHLT W374 Medical Care I (3 cr.) Interdisciplinary approach to the study of selected disease processes and conditions in all age groups and a survey of the medical and/or surgical management of these conditions.

AHLT W376 Kinesiology (3 cr.) Analysis and synthesis of human motion.

AHLT W471 Medical Care II (3 cr.)
Continuation of Medical Care I.
Interdisciplinary approach to the study of
selected disease processes and conditions in
all age groups and a survey of the medical
and/or surgical management of these
conditions.

AHLT W472 Medical Care III (2 cr.) Lectures and clinical presentation in orthopedics and neurology.

Cytotechnology

AHLT A403 Hormonal Cytology (1 cr.) The anatomic, histologic, and physiologic properties of endocrine tissues and their influence on the epithelium of the female genital tract.

AHLT A412 Gynecologic Cytology, Normal (3 cr.) Detailed microscopic study of normal squamous endocervical and endometrial epithelial cells; as well as other non-epithelial cells. Cellular changes seen with microbiological infections, repair, inflammation, degeneration, artifact and vitamin deficiency status.

AHLT A422 Gynecologic Cytology, Abnormal (3 cr.) Histopathology and cytopathology of lesions of the female genital tract. Detailed studies in the cytologic diagnosis of dysplasia, carcinoma in situ and invasive cancer of this anatomic area. Differential diagnosis of these lesions include the severity, site of origin, and grade where appropriate.

AHLT A432 Pulmonary Cytology (3 cr.) Systematic study of normal, nonmalignant, and malignant cells in lower respiratory system.

AHLT A442 Cytology of Body Fluids (2 cr.) Cytology of the eye, central nervous system, synovial membranes and serosal cavities in fluids associated with nonmalignant and malignant disease processes.

AHLT A453 Cytology of the Gastrointestinal Tract (2 cr.) Study of cells associated with nonmalignant and malignant diseases of the gastrointestinal tract, including the oral cavity, esophagus, stomach, and small and large intestines.

AHLT A454 Urinary Tract Cytology (2 cr.) Clinical cytologic study of cells from normal, nonmalignant, and malignant diseases of the urinary tract, to include the urethra, ureters, renal pelvis, bladder, prostate, seminal vessicles, and kidney.

ALTH A455 Cytology of Fine Needle Aspiration (2 cr.) The study of nonmalignant and malignant cells aspirated from lung, thyroid, salivary glands, breast, liver, prostate, lymph nodes, soft tissue masses and miscellaneous organs; and the study of fine needle aspiration techniques.

AHLT A462 Techniques in Medical Cytology (2 cr.) Fixation and staining procedures, preparation of smears and cell blocks from fluids and other exfoliates; use of filter techniques and fluorescence microscopy.

AHLT A465 Certification Internship (6 cr.) Includes six months of internships required by the Registry. Students gain further practical experience by working with routine cytology material. Conferences and research papers are used to provide additional experience.

AHLT A470 Seminar in Cytology (2 cr.) Review of current literature pertaining to

diagnostic cytology. Reports and discussions by students and faculty.

AHLT A490 Investigations in Cytopathology (1-3 cr.) P: AHLT A470. To provide the student with an experience in the realm of scientific investigation related to cytopathology. The investigation may be conducted as a research project (1-3 cr.) or as a literature review (1-2 cr.)

Health Services Management

AHLT X300 Health Organization and Management (2 cr.) An overview of health organization and management with emphasis on the hospital organization and departmental management.

AHLT X400 Health Care Management Communication (3 cr.) An examination of written and oral communication and languages of words and numbers as they apply to health organizations.

AHLT X410 Health Care Organization and Management Theory (3 cr.) An overview of health care organization and management theory; emphasis at departmental level.

AHLT X420 Hospital Organization and Administration (3 cr.) An orientation to hospitals; their functions, organization, and management.

AHLT X430 Financial Management of Health Care Organizations (3 cr.) An evaluation of quantitative data for health planning, program development, and fiscal management.

AHLT X440 Health Issues and Problems (3 cr.) An examination of the role of health care in society; emphasis on trends and issues that effect health organizations and management.

AHLT X450 Health Care Personnel Management and Decision Making (3 cr.) An analysis of personnel problems in health organizations; emphasis on principles of decision making.

AHLT X490 Independent Study in Health Care Management (3-9 cr.) Supervised reading or research in health organization and management.

Medical Laboratory Technology The following courses are offered at Indiana University Northwest only.

AHSP C121 Clinical Chemistry I (2 cr.) Introduction to laboratory automation including macro and microtechniques for chemical analyses. Focuses on importance of quality control as it relates to instrumentation in the determination of various biochemical constituents.

AHSP C122 Clinical Chemistry II (1-3 cr.) Introduction to clinical chemistry and basic laboratory methods. Fundamentals of primary blood constituents, their significance in health and disease, and procedures for determinations. Emphasis is on general rules for clinical analysis. Lab included.

AHSP C131 Hematology (2 cr.) Introduction to blood characteristics. Emphasis on the complete blood count and study of abnormal blood cells. Overview of automated methodologies and corresponding quality control procedures. Theory of blood coagulation and related procedures. Lab included.

AHSP C140 Immunohematology (2 cr.) Introduction to principles of immunology at the level of antibody formation and reaction. Primarily a discussion of blood grouping, Rh typing, and detection of irregular antibodies in human serum by compatibility testing. Blood group system and blood components are discussed. Lab included.

AHSP C141 Clinical Immunoserology (2 cr.) Introduction to principles of immunology at the level of antibody formation and reaction. Laboratory focus is on serologic testing used to detach abnormalities present because of antigen-antibody interaction. Lab included.

AHSP C151 Clinical Microbiology I (2 cr.) Topics focus on basic clinical bacteriology and parasitology with inclusion of Protozoan Helminths and Arthropods as agents of infection. Lab included.

AHSP C152 Clinical Microbiology II (2 cr.) Emphasis is placed on virology, medical mycology, and the pathologic organisms encountered as clinical disease agents. Lab included.

AHSP C161 Body Fluids (2 cr.) General renal physiology and urine formation. Emphasis is on the routine urinalysis and its role in the early detection of disease. Fundamentals of kidney function studies, gastric analysis, and other body fluids are discussed. Labs include physical, chemical, and microscopic examinations of urine, gastric, and spinal fluids. Lab included.

AHSP C180 Introduction to the Clinical Laboratory (2 cr.) A survey of the practical aspects of laboratory testing. Lectures and labs acquaint students with techniques, equipment, and instruments common to the medical laboratory. Hospital orientation included. Lab included.

AHSP C181 Clinical Education I (1-4 cr.) Clinical application of laboratory techniques in all phases of laboratory testing. Procedures performed in each department of the medical laboratory under the direct supervision of a

registered technologist. Proficiency levels established.

AHSP C182 Clinical Education II (1-4 cr.) P: C181. Clinical application of laboratory techniques in all phases of laboratory testing. Procedures performed in each department of the medical laboratory under the direct supervision of a registered technologist. Proficiency levels established.

AHSP L201 Advanced Laboratory Techniques I (1-3 cr.) Themes in physiologic biochemistry concentrate on interpretation of testing profiles and advanced techniques for detection of abnormalities. Themes in microbiology focus on parasites and fungi that invade men. Clinical correlation of lab results with patient illness and disease emphasized.

AHSP L202 Advanced Clinical Topics (1-3 cr.) Themes in clinical chemistry concentrate on advanced techniques for the detection of abnormalities, nuclear medicine, toxicology and profile testing. Topics in RIA. Computer technology, Immunochematology advances, hepatitis update, and introduction to research are discussed.

AHSP L281 Clinical Education III (4 cr.) P: C182. Clinical application of laboratory techniques in all phases of laboratory testing. Procedures performed in each department of the medical laboratory under the direct supervision of a registered technologist. Proficiency levels established.

AHSP L282 Clinical Education IV (4 cr.) P: L281. Clinical application of laboratory techniques in all phases of laboratory testing. Procedures performed in each department of the medical laboratory under the direct supervision of a registered technologist. Proficiency levels established.

Medical Record Administration AHLT M322 Hospital Organization and Management (2 cr.) Orientation to hospital departments; hospital organization; inter-

and intra-relationships of hospital and community agencies.

AHLT M330 Medical Terminology (3 cr.) (2 lectures—2 lab. hrs.) Understanding and use of medical vocabulary; emphasis on speaking, reading, and writing skills.

AHLT M357 Clinical in Medical Record Technology (1 cr.) Professionally supervised assignments in the technical aspects of medical record services in an approved clinical site.

AHLT M411 Medical Record Science I (5 cr.) History, content, form, numbering, filing, securing, preserving, coding, and indexing medical records; computer applications and

statistics; the professional medical record administrator and his/her relationship to the health facility, the medical staff, and committees

AHLT M412 Medical Record Science II (5 cr.) Principles and practices of medical record department administration in the hospital and in specialized health-care facilities.

AHLT M441 Directed Practice Experience I (4 cr.) Supervised laboratory practice with on-site observations of medical record technical and administrative systems. Application of medical record management procedures in the clinical setting.

AHLT M442 Directed Practice Experience II (6 cr.) Seminar in medical record administration topics. Planning and layout of medical record services. Inservice presentations for medical record personnel. Computer applications in medical and administrative systems. Individualized instruction in medical record practice. Clinical project assignments in quality control in hospital medical record departments.

AHLT M445 Medicine and the Law (2 cr.) Presentation of concepts of law in medical and/or health-related areas as applied to the physician, the hospital, health institutions, the medical record, and the individual health worker.

AHLT M459 Clinical in Medical Record Administration (4 cr.) Professionally supervised internship in an approved clinical site for management experiences in medical record services.

Medical Record Technology

The following courses are offered at Indiana University Northwest only.

AHSP M101 Medical Record Science I (4 cr.) (3 lecture hrs.—2 lab hrs.) P: M195: concurrent enrollment in M107. Introduction to the health care field and direct care institutions; history of medicine in medical records; content, form securing, numbering, and filing of medical records; the role of the medical record technician in a health-related institution; regulations—state, federal, and JCAH—impacting the medical record.

AHSP M102 Medical Record Science II (4 cr.) (3 lecture hrs.—2 lab hrs.) P: M101; concurrent enrollment in M120, M200, M105. Methods of preservation and indexing of medical records; nomenclatures; coding and classification systems; DRG assignment and analysis. Emphasis on proficiency in coding, sequencing, and classification systems.

AHSP M103 Medical Record Science III (4 cr.) (3 lecture hrs.—2 lab hrs.) P: M102; concurrent enrollment in M106, M145. Medical staff organization and committee relationships to medical records, release of information, ancillary and long-term care medical record systems, medical care evaluation, utilization review, quality assurance, and PPS/DRGs.

AHSP M104 Directed Practice in Medical Record Science I (4 cr.) P: M101. Directed experience in quantitative and qualitative analysis.

AHSP M105 Directed Practice in Medical Record Science II (5 cr.) P: M104; concurrent enrollment in M102, M120, M200. Directed experience in nomenclatures, coding, classification, statistics, tumor registry, and DRG assignment.

AHSP M106 Directed Practice in Medical Record Science III (2 cr.) P: M105; concurrent enrollment in M145, M103. Directed experience in completion of patient care and utilization statistics, supervisory experience, case-mix analysis, long-term care consulting. Additional experience to meet the student needs as evaluated by the instructor.

AHSP M107 Medical Transcription/Word Processing (2 cr.) (4 lab hrs.) P: M105; concurrent enrollment in M101. Practice in transcription and word processing of medical reports and correspondence related to the medical record. Emphasis on understanding, speed, and skills in use of transcription, dictation, and word processing equipment.

AHSP M120 Statistics for Medical Record Science (2 cr.) P: M104; concurrent enrollment in M102, M105, M200. Methods of collection of statistical data reflecting patient care and utilization of services; procedures of completion of vital statistics on birth, death, and reportable diseases.

AHSP M145 Legal Aspects of Medical Record Science (2 cr.) P: M102, M105, M20, M200; concurrent enrollment in M103, M106. Presentation of concepts of law in medical and/or health-related areas as applied to the physician, the hospital, health institutions, the medical record, and the individual health worker.

AHSP M195 Medical Terminology for Medical Record Technicians (3 cr.) (2 lecture hrs.—2 lab hrs.) Understanding and use of medical-professional vocabulary; emphasis on speaking, reading, and writing skills.

AHSP M200 Office Organization (3 cr.) P: M104, concurrent enrollment in M102, M105, M120. Study of the role of a supervisor in an organization and a survey of supervisory principles, services, and functions; the role of the medical record practitioner as a supervisor; space planning

for medical record services in a health-related facility; seminar.

Medical Technology

AHLT C401 General Externship I (2 cr.) Supervised clinical experience in clinical chemistry. Student rotates through various areas of clinical chemistry.

AHLT C402 General Externship II (2 cr.) Supervised clinical experience in clinical hematology. Student rotates through various areas of clinical hematology and coagulation.

AHLT C403 General Externship III (2 cr.) Supervised clinical experience in clinical microbiology. Student rotates through various areas of microbiology, serology, virology, and parasitology.

AHLT C404 Hemostasis (1 cr.) Hemostasis is a course covering the basic principles of the hemostasis mechanism, including an overview of the laboratory techniques used to evaluate disorders of hemostasis. Emphasis will focus on the major components of hemostasis, interaction of these components, and laboratory evaluation of the major hemostatic disorders.

AHLT C406 Clinical Chemistry (4 cr.) Emphasis on metabolic processes which maintain chemical homeostasis in humans, the application of clinical chemistry assay values in evaluating the integrity of these processes, and the correlation of abnormal results with metabolic dysfunction and/or disease states.

AHLT C407 Hematology (2 cr.) Study of functions, maturation and morphology of blood cells in addition to factors regulating production, metabolism, and kinetics of blood cells. The etiologic and morphologic classifications of blood disorders and diseases; correlations with bone marrows and cytochemistries. Study of cellular contents of other body fluids.

AHLT C408 Blood Banking (4 cr.) Review of serologic principles and technical fundamentals of transfusion practice; comprehensive consideration of blood groups and Rh factors; extensive practice with pretransfusion techniques and safety practices. Other blood types, antigen-antibody relationships and techniques for demonstrating them. Also includes practice in blood donor room procedures. Elementary knowledge of genetics is helpful.

AHLT C409 Serology (1 cr.) Lectures describing and comparing all pertinent serologic procedures utilized in diagnosis of rheumatoid arthritis, rubella, streptococcal disease, syphilis, various febrile conditions, fungal infections, parasite infections, and

infectious mononucleosis. Selected lectures in viral culturing methods.

AHLT C410 Urine Analysis (2 cr.) Routine urine examination and special tests; laboratory and special lectures.

AHLT C411 Diagnostic Medical Microbiology (4 cr.) An in-depth study of the clinically significant microorganisms with special emphasis on their clinical significant, cultural and biochemical characteristics and susceptibility testing patterns.

AHLT C412 Topics in Medical Technology (2 cr.) Selected topics in medical technology covered by lecture and clinical experience.

AHLT C413 Clinical Correlation and Theory (2 cr.) Lectures in theoretical and clinical areas designed to emphasize relationship between laboratory tests and disease states.

AHLT C420 Mycology/Parasitology (2 cr.) Lecture and laboratory experience covering clinically significant fungi and parasites. Clinical manifestations, collection and procedures for processing of specimens and identification techniques will be employed.

AHLT C421 Diagnostic Microbiology Laboratory (2 cr.) Laboratory experience in the performance of skills and procedures needed for the isolation, identification, and susceptibility testing of clinically significant microorganisms.

AHLT C424 Hemostasis Techniques (1 cr.) Laboratory course emphasizing the major screening and definitive test for the evaluation of normal and abnormal hemostasis. Tests will include evaluation of platelets, blood vessels, coagulation and fibrinolysis.

AHLT C426 Clinical Chemistry
Instrumentation and Methodologies (2 cr.)
Emphasis is on utilization of basic and
intermediate methodologies and
instrumentation and their application to
assaying a variety of body constituents in a
clinical chemistry laboratory.

AHLT C427 Hematologic Techniques and Procedures (2 cr.) Experience in blood cell identification on stained smears; blood cell, platelet, and reticulocyte counting procedures. Techniques of sedimentation rates, hematocrits, corpuscular indices, hemoglobin determination, smear preparation staining. Introduction to instrumentation and quality control. Special procedures including bone marrow preparations, flow cytometry, automated differential counters.

AHLT C429 Serology Laboratory (1 cr.) Laboratory experience in performance of various testing procedures utilized in serologic diagnosis of infectious diseases and various syndromes. Techniques include precipitation, flocculation, and various hemagglutination and hemagglutination inhibition techniques, fluorescent antibody testing and complement fixation.

The following medical technology courses are offered intermittently and are NOT part of the standard curriculum:

AHLT C431 Hematology I (2 cr.) Collecting, staining, and counting blood cells; supervised experience with patients. Experience with specimens of spinal fluid, special determinations (platelets, reticulocytes), and pathologic smears.

AHLT C432 Hematology II (2 cr.) P: C431; C432 and C434 offer more experience than C431 allows in the same techniques, and offer additional techniques such as sedimentation rate, hematocrit, and the figuring of indices.

AHLT C434 Hematology III (2 cr.) P: C431, C432. Continuation of practice and experience in hematologic techniques. Individual projects assigned if student is sufficiently advanced.

AHLT C440 Bacteriology I (2 cr.) Diagnostic procedures as means to familiarize student with techniques; work on specimens received from hospital patients under supervision; practical experience with all types of human specimens for bacteriologic and mycologic study.

AHLT C441 Bacteriology II (2 cr.) P: C440. Agglutination and precipitin techniques and their special application to agglutination titers and the use of antibotics. Special assignments to provide experience with organisms infrequently encountered.

AHLT C442 Bacteriology III (2 cr.) P: C440, C441. Student should be able to handle usual and somewhat unusual hospital bacteriologic and mycologic problems independently.

AHLT C450 Serology I (2 cr.) Introduction to serologic and immunologic principles.

AHLT C451 Serology II (2 cr.) P: C450. Additional experience (for students with satisfactory proficiency in C450) in adapting complement fixation, agglutination, hemagglutination, precipitin, and flocculation techniques to diagnostic procedures.

AHLT C471 Clinical Chemistry I (2 cr.) Training and experience with more frequently used chemistry tests, e.g., determination of sugar and urea nitrogen; automated and manual methods.

AHLT C472 Clinical Chemistry II (2 cr.) P: C471. Limited experience with less frequent special procedures.

AHLT C473 Clinical Chemistry III (2 cr.) P: C471 and C472. Special equipment utilization; preparation and maintenance of stock and solutions.

AHLT C474 Radioisotopes I (1 cr.) Information and techniques applicable to use of radioactive materials in clinical laboratory.

AHLT C475 Radioisotopes II (2 cr.) P: C474. Extended experience and practice with radioactive materials under special supervision. Enrollment must be arranged by conference with faculty.

AHLT C476 Chemistry IV (2 cr.) P: C471, C472. Advanced procedures, method developments, special projects.

AHLT C477 Chemistry V (2 cr.) P: C471, C472. Training and experience in special micro procedures, technical and methodological.

AHLT C491 Blood Bank I (2 cr.) Review of serologic principles and technical fundamentals of transfusion practice; comprehensive consideration of blood groups and Rh factors, extensive practice with pretransfusion techniques and safety practices. Other blood types, antigen-antibody relationships with techniques for demonstrating them. Elementary knowledge of genetics is helpful.

AHLT C492 Blood Bank II (2 cr.) P: proficiency in C491. Transfusion service bloods provide problem cases in isoimmunization and sensitization, Rh titration, etc. Responsibility for blood bank operation and application to special transfusion problems placed before the student.

AHLT C493 Blood Bank III (2 cr.) P: C491, C492. Required for students working toward special certificate in blood banking. Emphasis on supervision, reference techniques, and such accessory functions as plasma production.

Occupational Therapy

AHLT S101 Occupational Therapy Art and Craft Techniques (3 cr.) Presentation of art, design, and minor crafts as utilized in occupational therapy treatment.

AHLT S102 Therapeutic Group Activities (3 cr.) Analysis and use of a variety of group activities used in occupational therapy treatment.

AHLT S103 Medical Terminology (1 cr.) Introduction to origin and derivation of medical words as well as their meaning. Programmed text.

AHLT S110 Basics of Occupational Therapy (3 cr.) Examines the concept of occupational therapy and establishes a philosophical base

for subsequent course work by introducing concepts basic to the occupational therapy assistant student.

AHLT S131 Clinical Observation (1 cr.)
Overview of occupational therapy programs in a variety of facilities. Emphasis on observation skills, note-writing skills, and therapeutic use of self.

AHLT S160 Applied Kinesiology (2 cr.) Analysis of human motion with emphasis on the range of motion and muscle strength related to occupational performance.

AHLT S205 Daily Life Skills (2 cr.) Laboratory course offering supervised learning experiences in therapeutic application of daily life skills.

AHLT S206 Adaptative Equipment (1 cr.) P: AHLT S205. Laboratory course that presents learning experiences in various adaptations to assist the patient in daily life skills with emphasis on equipment adaptations.

AHLT S209 Therapeutic Activities I (1 cr.) Laboratory course that provides supervised learning experiences in leather media skills.

AHLT S210 Therapeutic Activities II (1 cr.) Laboratory course that provides supervised learning experiences in fiber crafts.

AHLT S211 Therapeutic Activities III (1 cr.) Laboratory course that provides supervised learning experiences in ceramics.

AHLT S212 Basic Hand Splinting for OTAs (1 cr.) Laboratory course that provides supervised learning experiences in therapeutic use of splints and splinting techniques as used by a COTA in practice.

AHLT S231 Community Practicum (1 cr.) Role identification as an occupational therapy assistant relating to community agencies and health disciplines.

AHLT S234 Field Practicum (1 cr.) P: AHLT S131 and AHLT S231. Clinical observation and practice of the occupational therapy skills and theory presented in previous and concurrent courses in the associate curriculum. Attendance at a weekly seminar is required.

AHLT S251 Occupational Therapy Assistant Theory I (2 cr.) P: PSY N303. Introduction to psychiatric occupational therapy process and the role of the occupational therapy assistant in assessment and treatment.

AHLT S252 Occupational Therapy Assistant Theory II (2 cr.) Assistant-level theory for management of clinical physical dysfunction cases referred to occupational therapy. Includes initial screening, evaluation, planning, and implementation of programs for patients/clients.

AHLT S272 Clinic Management (2 cr.) Presentation of basic theory, techniques, and skills necessary for management of an occupational therapy clinic. Emphasis is placed on the impact management has on a COTA position.

AHLT S291 Field Work Experience in Occupational Therapy I (2 cr.) Six to eight weeks of continuous participation in an occupational therapy clinic.

AHLT S292 Field Work Experience in Occupational Therapy II (2 cr.) An additional six to eight weeks of continuous participation in an occupational therapy clinic.

AHLT T203 Fundamentals of Occupational therapy (3 cr.) Examines the concept of occupational therapy and establishes a philosophical base for subsequent course work by introducing concepts fundamental to the practice of occupational therapy.

AHLT T300 Clinical Psychiatry for Occupational Therapy (2 cr.) Review and expansion of major psychiatric disorders including nomenclature, clinical description, etiology, medical management and treatment. Clinical team approach and legal issues of psychiatry are presented.

AHLT T325 Practicum I (1 cr.) P: AHLT T203. Clinical observation and practice of the occupational therapy skills and theory presented in OT theory and OT technique courses.

AHLT T348 Occupational Therapy Techniques I (1 cr.) Laboratory course that provides occupational therapy students supervised learning experiences in the therapeutic use of selected crafts and other media (ceramics and weaving).

AHLT T349 Occupational Therapy Techniques II (1 cr.) Laboratory course that provides supervised learning experiences utilizing woodworking as a therapeutic modality.

AHLT T350 Occupational Behavior and Human Development (5 cr.) Investigation of dynamic interrelationships among the biological, psychological, and sociological aspects of human development and its impact on occupational behavior and performance.

AHLT T351 Occupational Therapy Techniques III (1 cr.) A laboratory course that provides occupational therapy students supervised learning experiences in the therapeutic use of selected crafts and other media (i.e., printing, mosaic, metal work, leather, basketry, yarn crafts, needle work.)

AHLT T352 Occupational Therapy Techniques IV (2 cr.) P: AHLT T350. Lecture and laboratory experiences providing knowledge and skills necessary to implement treatment in the area of daily life skills.

AHLT T353 Occupational Therapy Techniques V (1 cr.) P: AHLT T351. Lecture and laboratory course that provides supervised learning experiences in the construction of splints and their use as a therapeutic modality.

AHLT T361 Psychosocial Dysfunction Theory and Practice I (2.5 cr.) P: AHLT T350 and AHLT T203. Introduction to the psychiatric occupational therapy process including various frames of reference and diagnostic categories.

AHLT T362 Physical Dysfunction Theory and Practice I (2.5 cr.) P: AHLT T350 and AHLT T203. Principles of occupational therapy evaluation and treatment for selected diagnostic categories in the area of physical disabilities.

AHLT T363 Occupational Therapy Writing and Interview Skills (1 cr.) P: AHLT S103 and AHLT T203. Instruction in professional writing and interviewing skills necessary in the practice of occupational therapy.

AHLT T426 Practicum II (1 cr.) P: AHLT T325. Continuation of AHLT T325. Clinical observation and practice of the occupational therapy skills and theory presented in the OT theory and OT techniques courses.

AHLT T450 Functional Neuroanatomy (3 cr.) Major functional concepts of neuroanatomy presented in longitudinal systems with implications for abnormality and subsequent therapy treatment.

AHLT T453 Topics in Occuaptional Therapy (1-5 cr.) Special electives in occupational therapy offered by occupational therapy faculty and clinicians. Students may repeat this course as desired as long as the topic changes each time it is repeated. Permission required. Prerequisities may vary with topic.

AHLT T460 Management of Occupational Therapy Services (4 cr.) P: Senior Standing. Study of the occupational therapist's role in service management, the health care system, and professional values, attitudes, and standards.

AHLT T461 Psychosocial Dysfunction Theory and Practice II (3 cr.) P: AHLT T361. Evaluation and treatment techniques used in occupational therapy as related to specific frames of reference and diagnostic categories.

AHLT T462 Physical Dysfunction Theory and Practice II (3 cr.) P: AHLT T362 and AHLT W324 or AHLT T450. Principles of occupational therapy evaluation and treatment in physical disabilities based on sensory motor theories.

AHLT T463 Introduction to Research in Occupational Therapy (1 cr.) Examines and studies the research process and its implication and application in clinical and academic settings.

AHLT T471 Group Process in Occupational Therapy (1 cr.) P: AHLT T361. Principles of group content and process related to occupational therapy.

AHLT T495 Field Work Experience I (5 cr.) A three-month internship in psycho-social or physical dysfunction occupational therapy facilities.

AHLT T496 Field Work Experience II (5 cr.) A three-month internship in psycho-social or physical dysfunction occupational therapy facilities. At its successful completion, the student will have demonstrated the competency of an entry-level occupational therapist.

Physical Therapy

AHLT P300 Human Development (2 cr.) Development of the individual from conception to death is discussed. The development of motor behavior from birth to five years is emphasized. Processes underlying all aspects of human development are discussed and related to the normal and exceptional individual.

AHLT P309 Physical Therapy Arts I (1 cr.) Introduction to physical therapy patient management via lecture, laboratory practice, and on-site clinical experience at a physical therapy facility. Emphasis on observational, verbal, written communication, and patient interaction skills.

AHLT P310 Orientation to Physical Therapy (1 cr.) Introduction to the physical therapy profession and the professional curriculum at Indiana University. Analysis of the medical model and alternatives for the delivery of health care including the role of physical therapy. Discussion of the student's needs and professional and curricular factors which will both enable and inhibit the student in meeting those needs.

AHLT P311 Applied Anatomy for Physical Therapists (2 cr.) Application of anatomical concepts to the living, moving human body. Topics covered include surface anatomy, goniometry, manual muscle testing, and massage. Taught concurrently with Anatomy D323 following a similar regional approach. Emphasis is placed on developing specific skills and knowledge of the relationships between deep and superficial structures.

AHLT P312 Physical Therapy Theories and Procedures (2 cr.) A general survey of theories underlying the practice of physical

therapy including the problem solving approach to patient care and documentation, physiology of pain, and physiological responses to various types of heat, cold, and exercise. This course covers theoretical concepts basic to the remainder of the professional curriculum.

AHLT P313 Physical Therapy Management of Orthopedic Conditions (3 cr.) Physical therapist's approach to the management of orthopedic problems. Review of normal anatomy and physiology of bone with emphasis on bone healing. Evaluation and treatment of orthopedic conditions and secondary complications. Patient management, crutch training, basic exercise procedures, uses of specific heat and cold modalities. Problem solving approach to treatment is emphasized. Case studies required.

AHLT P314 Physical Therapy Management of Soft Tissue Injuries (3 cr.) Management of soft tissue injuries including a review of normal soft tissue anatomy and physiology, pathology and general medical management. Kinesiology of the extremities. Physical therapy evaluation and treatment including goal setting, program planning and implementation. Introduction to phonophoresis, electroanalgesia, joint mobilization, project including review of literature and case study required.

AHLT P315 Physical Therapy Management of Arthritic Conditions (1 cr.) Review of normal joint structure and function.

Discussion of pathological and functional changes related to the arthritic and collagen diseases. Physical therapy and medical management with emphasis on the physical therapist's interaction with the arthritis team. Introduction to social-psychological effects of long-term disability. Case study required.

AHLT P316 Physical Therapy Management of Peripheral Disorders (2 cr.) Review of normal structure, function, and common pathologies of peripheral nervous, muscular, vascular and lymphatics systems. Emphasis is on electrical testing and treatment, ultraviolet therapy, and pressure gradient therapy. Use of medical resources for researching patient history is stressed as part of program planning and implementation.

AHLT P318 Physical Therapy Management

of Neck and Trunk Problems (2 cr.) Normal structure and kinesiology of the neck and trunk. Survey of pathology of the vertebral column and related structures. Evaluation of patient problems through taking history, testing flexibility, strength, and sensation. Specific tests for spinal column function. Treatment considerations with introduction

to traction, pain modulation, biofeedback, and spinal mobilization.

AHLT P319 Physical Therapy Management of Gait Deviations (3.5 cr.) Introduction to the normal parameters of gait and common gait deviations. Course includes normal gait, lower limb orthotics and lower limb prosthetics. Clinical analysis of gait based on objective parameters. Practical experience in analyzing gait through laboratory experiences and use of media. Physical therapy intervention for common gait deviations, orthotic and prosthetic management.

AHLT P320 Physical Therapy Management of Sports Injuries (1 cr.) Physical therapy approach to treating the athlete and athletic injuries. Emphasis on emergency procedures and early physical therapy evaluation and intervention in traumatic injuries. Screening procedures and techniques used in preventing and treating sports injuries. Comparison of the reactions of athletes and non-athletes to injury. Introductions to the analysis of research. Case study required.

AHLT P329 Physical Therapy Arts II (1 cr.) Continuation of physical therapy patient management via lecture and on-site clinical experience at a physical therapy facility. Emphasis on increased independence and integration of observational, verbal, and written communication skills. Focus also on advancing skills in patient interaction through beginning clinical application of physical therapy techniques.

AHLT P403 Interdisciplinary Care of Multihandicapped Children (2 cr.)
Exploration of the multiple educational and health care disciplines and facilities related to services for the pediatric population. Field trips to centers in Indiana provide on-site observation and appropriate program participation.

AHLT P421 Physical Therapy Management of Cardiopulmonary Problems (2 cr.) Review of normal structure, function, and common pathologies of the cariorespiratory system with an emphasis on abnormal responses to exercise. Program planning for the cardiorespiratory patient including inpatient, outpatient, and home programs. Introduction to postural drainage, breathing retraining program, and chest mobilization procedures.

AHLT P422 Physical Therapy Management of Spinal Cord Injuries (2 cr.) Review of normal structure and function of the spinal cord and related structure. Functional implications of lesions at various levels. Rehabilitation approach to the spinal cord patient with emphasis on program planning and progression in long-term disability.

Introduction to orthotic devices and adaptive equipment.

AHLT P423 Physical Therapy Management of the Multihandicapped Patient (2 cr.) Physical therapy approach to the patient with multiple handicaps with an emphasis on setting priorities in program planning. Case studies emphasizing approaches to the pediatric and geriatric patient. Introduction to pre- and post-partum therapy. Projects required.

AHLT P483 Applied Neurophysiology (4 cr.) Emphasis on neurophysiological concepts for developing treatment procedures in physical therapy; introduction to neuromuscular facilitation procedures. Lecture and laboratory.

AHLT P485 Applied Physical Therapy (2 cr.) Lectures and discussion concerning the ethical, legal, teaching, managerial, and consultative aspects of physical therapy practice.

AHLT P490 Physical Therapy Senior Projects (4 cr.) Individually designed projects in education, administration, and/or clinical research. Project proposals require the approval of the program director and the faculty adviser.

AHLT P491 Clinical Education I (2 cr.) Introductory experience in a clinical setting supervised by registered physical therapists in facilities affiliated with the educational program.

AHLT P492 Clinical Education II (8 cr.) Advanced experience in a clinical setting supervised by registered physical therapists in facilities affiliated with the educational program.

Radiologic Sciences

AHLT R100 Orientation to Radiologic Technology (2 cr.) C or P: R101, R102, R181. Introduction to the field of radiology and its history. Students learn proper ethical standards, become acquainted with the duties and responsibilities in personal care for the patient, and investigate radiation protection for the patient and personnel. Degree credit will not be given for both R100 and R104.

AHLT R101 Radiographic Procedures I (3-4 cr.) C or P: R100 or R104, R102, R181. Concepts in radiography with emphasis on the radiographic procedures used to demonstrate the skeletal system.

AHLT R102 Principles of Radiography 1 (3 cr.) C or P: Math, R101, R181. Basic concepts of radiation, its production, and its interactions with matter. Includes the

production of the radiographic image and film processing.

AHLT R103 Introduction to Clinical Radiography (2 cr.) Introduction to the functions and basic procedures of a diagnostic radiography department. Emphasis is placed on radiographic equipment, radiation protection, positioning terminology and procedures used on typical radiographic examinations.

AHLT R104 Patient Care in Radiologic Science (2 cr.) Introduction to health care practices in the radiology department. Includes an overview of the field of radiology, ethics, patient care, and professional standards. Degree credit will not be given for both R100 and R104.

AHLT R181 Clinical Experience in Radiography (1-6 cr.) C or P: R100 or R104. Clinical application of radiographic positioning, exposure techniques, and departmental procedures in all phases of radiologic technology, under the direct supervision of a registered technologist until mastery of clinical objectives is reached.

AHLT R182 Clinical Experience in Radiography (1-6 cr.) P: R101 and R181. Clinical application of radiographic positioning, exposure techniques, and departmental procedures in all phases of radiologic technology, under the direct supervision of a registered technologist until mastery of clinical objectives is reached.

AHLT R185 Medical Terminology (1 cr.) Introduction to origin and derivation of medical words as well as their meaning.

AHLT R200 Pathology (2-3 cr.) P: Anatomy/ Physiology. A survey of the changes that occur in the diseased state to include general concepts of disease, causes of disease, clinical symptoms and treatment, and diseases that affect specific body systems.

AHLT R201 Radiographic Procedures II (3 cr.) C or P: R101, R202, R182. Concepts in radiography with emphasis on radiographic procedures used to demonstrate the skull and those requiring the use of contrast media.

AHLT R202 Principles of Radiography 2 (3 cr.) C or P: R102, R201, R181. Continuation of R102 with emphasis on the properties that affect the quality of the radiographic image.

AHLT R205 Radiographic Procedures III (3 cr.) C or P: R201, R222. Concepts in radiography with emphasis on special radiographic procedures and related imaging modalities.

AHLT R222 Principles of Radiography 3 (3 cr.) P: R202. Continuation of R202 with

emphasis on the application of radiography principles of imaging equipment.

AHLT R250 Physics Applied to Radiology (2-4 cr.) P: MATH Fundamentals of radiation physics, x-ray generation, and equipment quality control.

AHLT R253 Radiation Experiments and Quality Control (1 cr.) P: R250. A laboratory course emphasizing the major characteristics of diagnostic x-ray systems and methods of assuring adequate function of radiographic equipment. Major topics include: anode heel effect, inverse square law, half-value layer, film sensitometry, radiation intensity, and quality control testing.

AHLT R260 Radiation Biology and Protection in Diagnostic Radiology (1-3 cr.) P: R250. Study of the biological effects of ionizing radiation and the standards and methods of protection. Emphasis is placed on x-ray interactions. Also included are discussions on radiation exposure standards and radiation monitoring.

AHLT R281 Clinical Experience in Radiography (1-6 cr.) P: R201 and R182. Clinical application of radiographic positioning, exposure techniques, and departmental procedures in all phases of radiologic technology, under the direct supervision of a registered technologist until mastery of clinical objectives is reached.

AHLT R282 Clinical Experience in Radiography (1-6 cr.) P: R201 and R182. Clinical application of radiographic positioning, exposure techniques, and departmental procedures in all phases of radiologic technology, under the direct supervision of a registered technologist until mastery of clinical objectives is reached.

AHLT R283 Clinical Experience in Radiography (1-6 cr.) P: R201 and R182. Clinical application of radiographic positioning, exposure techniques, and departmental procedures in all phases of radiologic technology, under the direct supervision of a registered technologist until mastery of clinical objectives is reached.

AHLT R290 Comprehensive Experience (1-8 cr.) P: R281, R282, and R283. CLinical application of radiographic positioning, exposure techniques, anddepartmental procedures in all phases of radiologic technology under the direct supervision of a registered technologist. Successful completion involues mastery of all clinical aspects of the program.

AHLT R401 Advanced Clinical Practicum 1 (1-8 cr.) Lecture and clinical experience relative to advanced procedures in Radiologic Technology. Included are techniques of

vascular and neurological radiography, ultrasound, C.A.T., N.M.R., etc. Other areas may be included at the request of the student and depending upon the availability of instruction.

AHLT R402 Advanced Clinical Practicum 2 (1-8 cr.) Continuation of AHLT R401.

AHLT R403 Advanced Clinical Practicum 3 (1-8 cr.) Continuation of AHLT R402.

AHLT R405 Diagnostic Imaging Applications I (3 cr.) Lectures and film critique concerning application of computer axial tomography and ultrasound. Student presentations and journal reports required.

AHLT R406 Diagnostic Imaging
Applications II (3 cr.) Lectures and film
critique concerning application of ultrasound,
vascular and neurological angiography,
digital vascular imaging, myelography,
lymphography and nuclear magnetic
resonance. Student presentations and journal
reports required.

AHLT R407 Seminar in Radiologic Technology (3 cr.) Individual and group study focusing upon film critique, selected readings, and procedures relevant to radiologic technology.

AHLT R408 Topics in Radiologic Sciences (0.5-4 cr.) Study of selected topics in Radiologic Sciences. May be repeated once for credit if topics differ.

AHLT R409 Research in Radiologic Technology (3 cr.) Individual research in radiologic technology.

AHLT R412 Physics and Instrumentation of Nuclear Medicine I (3 cr.) An introduction to the physical disciplines of nuclear medicine. Lectures and laboratory exercises on radiation physics, computer programming and the statistics of radiation measurements.

AHLT R417 Physics and Instrumentation of Nuclear Medicine II (3 cr.) A continuation of AHLT R412. Lectures and exercises on electronic principles, the operational fundamentals of radiation counting devices and imaging systems, and quality assurance programs.

AHLT R422 Radionuclide Measurements (2 cr.) Lectures and laboratory sessions emphasizing the clinical utilization of nuclear counting and imaging systems, including counting and imaging systems and principles of quantitative measurements.

AHLT R427 Radiopharmaceuticals (2 cr.) Lectures and laboratories concerning properties and preparation of radiopharmaceuticals.

AHLT R430 In Vivo and In Vitro Studies (2 cr.) This course will introduce the principles of tracer methodology and apply

that methodology to the measurement of dynamic and steady state systems within the body. Special emphasis will be placed on measuring endocrine and hemological functions.

AHLT R432 Clinical Application of Radionuclides (4 cr.) Lectures covering the clinical aspects of nuclear medicine procedures, including the physiological and technical procedures for each type of study.

AHLT R437 Radiation Protection in Nuclear Medicine (1 cr.) Lectures on the principles of radiation protection in nuclear medicine.

AHLT R440 Radiobiology in Nuclear Medicine (1 cr.) Lectures on the biological effects of ionizing radiation.

AHLT R445 Clinical Nuclear Medicine Practicum 1 (4-8 cr.) Practical clinical application of nuclear medicine theory.

AHLT R446 Clinical Nuclear Medicine Practicum 2 (4-8 cr.) Coninuation of AHLT R445.

AHLT R447 Clinical Nuclear Medicine Practicum 3 (2-8 cr.) Continuation of AHLT R446.

Respiratory Therapy, Medical Center, Indianapolis

AHLT F200 Pharmacology/Respiratory Care (2 cr.) Designed for the respiratory therapist, this course presents a basic overview of pharmacologic principles as applied to general body systems and indepth coverage of pharmacologic agents used in cardiopulmonary disorders management is presented through a didactic and laboratory classroom format.

AHLT F205 Introduction to Respiratory Therapy I (2-3 cr.) Introduction to respiratory therapy; governing agencies; emphasis on professionalism and ethics; theory and application of regulation of gas flow, cylinders, regulators and flowmeters; patient care; concepts of illness, record keeping; and sterilization of respiratory therapy equipment.

AHLT F212 Respiratory Therapy Clinical Education I (4 cr.) P: F270, C: F241. Clinical experience in the areas of gas and aerosol therapy, chest physiotherapy, intermittent positive pressure breathing treatments, incentive spirometry, airway management and cardiopulmonary resuscitation.

AHLT F213 Respiratory Therapy Clinical Education II (4 cr.) P: F212, F243, C: 273. Clinical experience in treatment modalities, and introduction to ventilation therapy.

AHLT F241 Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation and Airway Management (1 cr.) Presentation

of cardiopulmonary resuscitation and certification at the basic rescuer level; study of types of mechanical airways, complications, suctioning techniques and airway care; manual resuscitators and emergency boxes.

AHLT F242 Cardiopulmonary Physiology (2 cr.) A review of cardiopulmonary physiology with emphasis on the electrophysiology of the heart, pulmonary circulation, cardiovascular failures, cardiac arrhythmias, congenital diseases of the heart; ventilation and respiration; respiration and metabolism, CNS regulation, blood gases and acid base balance; oxygen and carbon dioxide transportation; renal system functions in acid base and clinical application.

AHLT F243 Respiratory Therapy Treatment Modalities (3 cr.) Discussion of the modalities utilized in chest physiotherapy, contraindications, breath sounds and incentive spirometry; theory and rationale of IPPB therapy; IPPB equipment, IPPB techniques; spirometers.

AHLT F253 Diagnostic Testing and Monitoring (2-6 cr.) Comprehensive study of pulmonary functions; detailed blood gas analysis and related equipment; pulmonary rehabilitation.

AHLT F258 Respiratory Therapy Clinical Education III (3 cr.) P: F213, F273. A comprehensive seven-week session which emphasizes ventilator/patient management techniques and related procedures. In addition, students will gain experience in those clinical areas which support course material in other Respiratory Therapy modalities.

AHLT F259 Respiratory Therapy Supervisory Skills (1-3 cr.) Development of principles of managing people. Focused on providing the respiratory therapy supervisor with the knowledge to effectively perform the functions of staffing, motivating, directing, performance appraisal, discipline and communication.

AHLT F270 Gas Therapy (3 cr.) Indications and hazards of oxygen therapy; theory and application of oxygen appliances and techniques, helium-oxygen therapy, carbon dioxide therapy and theory and application of IPPB therapy.

AHLT F272 Cardiopulmonary
Pathophysiology (3 cr.) To acquaint the student with the disease process, etiology, diagnosis and treatment, so as to provide the necessary information for the respiratory therapist to relate respiratory therapy techniques and treatment methods to clinical methods.

AHLT F273 Principles of Ventilators (4 cr.) A study of various types of mechanical ventilators and their indications for specific use. The application of ventilators to the clinical situation.

AHLT F300 Readings in Respiratory Therapy (1-5 cr.) Designed to enable the student to actively review and critique literature pertinent to respiratory therapy. The student may identify a particular subject to pursue or review either selected or general topics in respiratory therapy. Reports and discussion by students and faculty.

AHLT F310 Seminars in Respiratory Therapy (1-5 cr.) The student selects and reviews current seminars or lectures pertaining to respiratory therapy. The student may identify and review respiratory therapy lectures on or off campus. Reports and discussion by students and faculty.

AHLT F370 Respiratory Therapy Departmental Organization and Management (1 cr.) Specific theory and practice applied to directing and managing a respiratory therapy department. Will apply the managerial functions of budgeting, controlling, cost analysis, organization, labor relations, decision making and planning. Designed to augment information presented in AHLT X300.

AHLT F400 Physiologic Aspects of Respiratory Care (2-4 cr.) Prerequisite C102 or equivalent. An advanced physiology course for the respiratory therapist. Topics include tissue oxygenation, physiologic stress, selected case studies, arterialization, regional perfusion, 0₂ extraction and utilization, CO₂ production, stress testing and monitoring of cardiopulmonary function.

AHLT F410 Independent Study in Respiratory Therapy (1-5 cr.) An opportunity for the student of respiratory therapy to identify a relevant area of concern within the field and to develop a tangible solution to or outcome of the concern. Reports and discussion by students and faculty.

AHLT F450 Cardiorespiratory Management of the Neonate (3 cr.) An indepth study of normal and abnormal fetal and neonatal respiratory distress. Oxygen therapy, continuous positive airway pressure, mechanical ventilation, continuous blood gas monitoring and transport of the high risk infant are discussed in detail.

AHLT F455 Advanced Neonatal Clinical Experience (3 cr.) Advanced clinical experience with critically ill neonates requiring all modes of respiratory intensive care including oxygen therapy, CPAP, mechanical ventilation, continuous blood gas

and respiratory monitoring and transport between facilities. The student will assess the critically ill newborn's clinical condition, interpret physiologic data, and justify modification in the patient's respiratory care. Applies knowledge learned in AHLT F450 (satisfactory completion or concurrent enrollment required).

AHLT F460 Advanced Emergency Care of Cardiopulmonary Disorders (3-5 cr.) Lecture and lab course designed to provide the respiratory practitioner with advanced knowledge and skills in all aspects of cardiopulmonary emergencies. Content areas include intubation and other airway maintenance techniques, dysrhthymia monitoring and recognition, defibrillation and cardioversion, intravenous techniques, emergency pharmacological agents and acute and chest trauma management.

Respiratory Therapy (IUN)

The following courses are offered at Indiana University Northwest:

AHLT F105 Pharmacology (2 cr.) P: F205, F270, F271. Brief history of pharmacology with a study of drugs affecting primarily the respiratory, circulatory, and nervous systems.

AHLT F181 Clinical Education I (2 cr.) P: F205, F270, F271; concurrent enrollment in Summer Session II course. Practical experience conducted at a hospital affiliated with the respiratory therapy program under the direct supervision of a registered respiratory therapist instructor for approximately 24 hours per week. Emphasis is on material covered in the first and second summer session.

AHLT F182 Clinical Education II (4 cr.)
P: F105, F181, F202; concurrent enrollment in Fall courses. Practical experience conducted at a hospital affiliated with the respiratory therapy program under the direct supervision of a registered respiratory therapist instructor for approximately 24 hours per week. Emphasis is on material covered in Summer Session II and the Fall semester.

AHLT F202 Respiratory Therapy II (3 cr.) P: F205, F270, F271. Various forms of humidification therapy, including aerosols, nebulizers, and humidifiers. Detailed study of lung segments and their physical drainage with the use of vibration and percussion. Rationale and application of pulmonary rehabilitation.

AHLT F205 Respiratory Therapy I (3 cr.) Introduction to respiratory therapy; governing agencies; emphasis on

professionalism and ethics; theory and application of regulation of gas flow, cylinders, regulators and flowmeters; patient care; concepts of illness, record keeping; and sterilization of respiratory therapy equipment.

AHLT F253 Diagnostic Testing and Monitoring (5 cr.) P: F105, F181, F202. Methods of lung function studies; testing procedures and reading of pulmonary function tests. Study of acid-base balance in the body; blood gas analysis procedures and calculation; cardiovascular monitoring and application of these test results with day-to-day evaluation of patients on continuous artificial ventilation.

AHLT F270 Gas Therapy (2 cr.) Indications and hazards of oxygen therapy; theory and application of oxygen appliances and techniques, helium-oxygen therapy, carbon dioxide therapy and theory and application of IPPB therapy.

AHLT F271 Airway Management (1 cr.) A study of indications and hazards of artificial airways; emergency airway care and life support techniques in respiratory and cardiac failure. Includes theory, demonstration and practical application.

AHLT F272 Cardiopulmonary Pathophysiology (3 cr.) P: F105, F181, F202. To acquaint the student with the disease process, etiology, diagnosis and treatment, so as to provide the necessary information for the respiratory therapist to relate respiratory therapy techniques and treatment methods to clinical methods.

AHLT F273 Principles and Management of Ventilators (4 cr.) P: F105, F181, F202. A study of various types of mechanical ventilators and their indications for specific use. The application of ventilators to the clinical situation.

AHLT F274 Pediatric Respiratory Care (2 cr.) P: F182, F253, F272, F273. A study of pediatric and neonatal anatomy and physiology. Emphasis on care of the newborn and treatment procedures of newborns and pediatric patients with cardiopulmonary disorders.

AHLT F275 Comprehensive Clinical Education III (5 cr.) P: F182, F253, F272, F273; concurrent enrollment in Spring courses. Practical experience under the direct supervision of a registered respiratory therapist instructor, totaling approximately 32 hours per week.

School of Medicine Courses

Courses in the basic science department of the Indiana University School of Medicine: Anatomy, Physiology, and Psychiatry. Enrollment is limited to students in the Division of Allied Health Sciences in the following courses:

ANAT D323 Anatomy (5 cr.) Gross human anatomy for physical and occupational therapy students. Predissected material utilized. Enrollment limited to students in the Division of Allied Health Sciences.

PHYS F305 Human Physiology (5 cr.) For physical and occupational therapy students. Animal and human physiology; neuromuscular systems, respiration, circulation, digestion, metabolism, excretion, and endocrines. Laboratory work concerned with exercises and demonstrations on neurophysiology and physiology of muscular activity. Enrollment limited to students in the Division of Allied Health Sciences.

PSY N303 Psychopathology (2 cr.) Review of diagnoses found in DSM III including symptoms and treatment implications. Lecture and case presentations. Enrollment limited to students in the Division of Allied Health Sciences.

Faculty, 1987-89

Credential Abbreviations

A.B.R.—American Board of Radiology

A.R.T.—Accredited Record Technician C(ASCP)—Technologist in Chemistry C.L.S.—Clinical Laboratory Scientist C.O.T.A.—Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant C.T. (ASCP)—Cytotechnologist I(ASCP)—Technologist in Immunology

(ASCP)—Cytotechnologist ((ASCP)—Technologist in Immunology L.P.T.—Licensed Physical Therapist M(ASCP)—Technologist in Microbiology M.L.T.(ASCP)—Medical Laboratory Technician

M.T.(ASCP)—Medical Technologist C.N.M.T. (NMTCB)—Certified Nuclear Medicine Technologist

R.T.(N)(ARRT)—Registered Nuclear Medicine Technologist S.B.B.(ASCP)—Specialist in Blood Banking

SC(ASCP)—Specialist in Chemistry SH(ASCP)—Specialist in Hematology S.I.(ASCP)—Specialist in Immunology SM(ASCP)—Specialist in Microbiology O.T.R.—Registered Occupational Therapist P.T.—Physical Therapist R.R.A.—Registered Record Administrator

R.R.T.—Registered Respiratory Therapist

R.T.(R)(ARRT)—Registered Radiographer

Division of Allied Health Sciences Emeritus Faculty

Ekstam, Frances C., M.S. (Indiana University, 1960), P.T. (1944), Professor Emeritus of Physical Therapy

Ladue, Ruth A., M.A. (Stanford University, 1967), P.T. (1945), Assistant Professor Emeritus of Physical Therapy

Lehman, Rachel M., B.S. (Indiana State University, 1929), M.T. (ASCP) 1936, Assistant Professor Emeritus of Medical Technology

Magee, Marion, R., A.M. (Smith College, 1961), P.T. (1956), Associate Professor Emeritus of Physical Therapy

Young, Mary K., A.M. (University of Michigan, 1937), P.T. (1936), Assistant Professor Emeritus of Physical Therapy

Young, Mildred R., M.S. (Butler University, 1966), M.T. (ASCP) (1942), SH (ASCP) (1980), Assistant Professor Emeritus of Medical Technology

Faculty

Alber, David, B.S. (Indiana University, 1974), M.T. (ASCP) 1974, SC(ASCP) 1979, Supervisor, Department of Pathology, University Hospital, Indianapolis Allen, Stephen D., M.D. (Indiana University, 1970), Professor of Pathology

Appledorn, C. Robert, M.S. (University of New Mexico, 1977), A.B.R. (1980), Assistant Professor of Radiology

Ashton, Janatha, M.S. (Indiana University, 1978), R.R.A. (1965), Assistant Professor of Medical Record Administration

Baker, Sarah S., M.S. (Indiana University, 1979), R.T.(R)(ARRT) (1973), Assistant Professor of Radiologic Sciences

Barth, Kathleen A., B.S. (St. Mary-of-the-Woods College, 1975), M.T. (ASCP) 1976, Department of Pathology, Riley Hospital, Indianapolis

Bartlett, Marilyn, M.S. (Indiana University, 1974), M.T. (ASCP) 1951, SM(ASCP), Associate Professor of Medical Technology

Baenziger, John, M.D. (University of Iowa, 1977), Assistant Professor of Pathology

Brashear, R.E., M.D. (Ohio State University, 1958), Associate Professor of Medicine

Bruckner, Janice S., M.S. (Sargent College of Allied Health Professions, Boston University, 1977), P.T. (1977), Assistant Professor of Physical Therapy

Carl, T. Kay, B.S. (Indiana University, 1967), O.T.R. (1967), Acting Director, Division of Allied Health Sciences and Assistant Professor of Occupational Therapy

Carr, Jacqueline H., B.A. (Shimer College, 1967), M.T. (ASCP) (1969), SH (ASCP) (1985), Instructor in Hematology

Clark, Steven A., M.D. (Indiana University, 1979), Assistant Professor of Pathology, Medical Director of Cytotechnology

Crabtree, William N., M.S. (Indiana University, 1983), S.C.T. (ASCP) 1977, Assistant Professor of Cytotechnology

Davis, Thomas H., M.D. (West Virginia University, 1980), Assistant Professor of Pathology

Eigen, Howard, M.D. (State University of New York, 1968), Professor of Pediatrics and Respiratory Therapy

Feeley, Mary, Ed.D. (Indiana University, 1986), M.T. (ASCP) 1946, Professor and Associate Director of Medical Technology

French, Morris L.V., Ph.D. (University of Michigan, 1969), Professor of Pathology

Gaither, Connie B., B.S. (Indiana University, 1983), R.R.T. (1981), Interim Clinical Coordinator in Respiratory Therapy

Gartner, Donald J., M.S. (Indiana University, 1972), M.T. (ASCP) 1967, Associate Professor of Medical Technology

Gibbs, Phillip S., M.D. (Indiana University, 1968), Associate Professor of Anesthesiology and Respiratory Therapy

Glinski, Barbara M., B.S. (DePaul University, 1974), M.T. (ASCP) 1975, M(ASCP) 1978, Instructor and Clinical Coordinator, Medical Laboratory Technology (IUN)

Gregory Earl B., B.S. (Saginaw Valley State College, 1976), R.R.T. (1980), Instructor and Clinical Coordinator, Respiratory Therapy (IUN) Gruver, Gary, M.Ed. (University of Missouri, 1979), R.R.T. (1979), Assistant Professor of Respiratory Therapy and Director of Associate Degree Program

Halcarz, Patricia, M.S. (Indiana University, 1986), P.T. (1978), Assistant Professor of Physical Therapy

Hamant, Celestine, M.S. (Butler University, 1971), O.T.R. (1963), Director and Associate Professor of Occupational Therapy

Haskins, Sharon, M.S. (Indiana University, 1979), M.T. (ASCP) 1968, Supervisor, Department of Pathology, University Hospital, Indianapolis

Hawkins, Barbara, B.S. (Indiana University, 1982), Supervisor Department of Pathology, Riley Hospital, Indianapolis

Hernandez, Emily, M.S. (Indiana University, 1978), R.T.(R)ARRT (1970), Assistant Professor and Educational Coordinator of Radiologic Sciences

Hersch, Gayle, M.S. (Indiana University, 1979), O.T.R. (1964), Assistant Professor of Occupational Therapy

Hocker, Narcissa, M.S. (Indiana University, 1964), M.T. (ASCP) 1945, S.B.B. (ASCP) 1955, Associate Professor of Medical Technology

Holden, Robert W., M.D. (Indiana University, 1963), Associate Professor of Radiology

Hostetler, Mary, B.S. (Indiana State University, 1964), M.T. (ASCP) 1964, S.C. (ASCP) 1975, Supervisor, Department of Pathology, University Hospital, Indianapolis

Jacobs, Eldred F., M.S. (Indiana University, 1974), M(ASCP) 1974, Technologist, Department of Pathology, University Hospital, Indianapolis Jones, Joyce, B.S. (Indiana University, 1969), M.T. (ASCP) 1969, S.C. (ASCP) 1976, Supervisor, Department of Pathology, University Hospital, Indianapolis

Kasper, Linda M., M.S. (Indiana University, 1977), M.T. (ASCP) 1963, S.C. (ASCP) 1975, Associate Professor and Assistant Director of Medical Technology

Kehrein, Suetta, M.S. (Indiana University, 1975), R.T.(R)ARRT (1964), Assistant Professor of Radiologic Sciences and Coordinator of Baccalaureate Programs Kiel, Judith, M.S., (Indiana University, 1979), O.T.R. (1969), Associate Professor of Occupational Therapy, part time

Klatte, Eugene C., M.D. (Indiana University, 1952), Chairperson, and Distinguished Professor of Radiology, Director of Radiologic Sciences
Korba, Elaine M., M.S. (Indiana University, 1983), P.T. (1977), Assistant Professor of Physical Therapy

Kosegi, Judith E., M.S. (Indiana University, 1978), C.N.M.T.(NMTCB)(1978), R.T.(N)(ARRT) 1973, Assistant Professor of Radiologic Sciences

Koss, Joseph A., M.S. (Indiana University, 1977), R.R.T., Associate Professor of Respiratory Therapy and Director of Baccalaureate Degree Program

Lamport, Nancy, M.S., (Butler University, 1984) O.T.R. 1953, Assistant Professor of Occupational Therapy

Ledbetter, Marlene, M.Ed. (University of Illinois, 1981), A.R.R.T., (1973), Assistant Professor of Allied Health (IUN) and Clinical Coordinator, Radiologic Technology Program

Leland, Diane, Ph.D. (Indiana University, 1986), M.T. (ASCP) 1970, SM (ASCP) 1978, Associate Professor of Medical Technology, part time

Lemons, James A., M.D. (Northwestern University, 1969), Associate Professor of Pediatrics and Respiratory Therapy

Long, Bruce, M.S. (Eastern Illinois University, 1983), R.T. (R) (ARRT) (1980), Assistant Professor of Radiologic Sciences

LoSasso, Alvin M., M.D. (The Ohio State University, 1963), Medical Director of the Respiratory Therapy Program and Professor of Anesthesiology and Respiratory Therapy

McCarthy, Leo J., M.D. (University of Nebraska, 1961), Associate Professor of Pathology

McKenna, Arlene M., M.Ed. (University of Illinois, 1981), A.R.R.T. (1973), Assistant Professor of Allied Health and Program Director of Radiologic Technology (IUN)

McKenzie, Mary L., M.S. (Indiana University, 1973), R.R.A. (1954), Associate Professor and Director of Medical Record Administration

Marler, Linda M., M.S. (Indiana University, 1978), M.T. (ASCP) 1973, SM(ASCP) 1979, Associate Professor of Medical Technology

Markanich, Marianne, B.S. (Indiana University, 1962), M.T. (ASCP) 1962, S.C. (ASCP) 1976, Supervisor, Department of Pathology, University Hospital, Indianapolis

Marzouk, Donna Keefe, M.S. (Sargent College of Allied Health Professions, Boston University, 1981), P.T. (1961), Assistant Professor of Physical Therapy Meyers, Susan, M.B.A. (University of Missouri, St. Louis, 1983), O.T.R. (1977), Assistant Professor of Occupational Therapy Miller, M. Devon, M.S. (Indiana University, 1966), Assistant Professor of Medical Record Administration

Miller, Maurice, B.S. (Indiana University, 1981), R.R.T., Instructor in Respiratory Therapy, part time

Moorehead, Wells R., Ph.D. (University of Tennessee, 1965), Professor of Pathology Moorthy, Sreenivasa S., M.D. (M.B.B.S. Andhra Medical College, Visakhapatnam, India, 1957), Associate Professor of Anesthesiology and Respiratory Therapy

Moriarty, Ann Therese, M.D. (Indiana University, 1981), Assistant Professor of Pathology

Nathan, Carol., A.M. (University of Southern California, 1968), O.T.R. (1958), Associate Dean of the Faculties and Associate Professor of Occupational Therapy

Neff, Paula E., J.D. (The John Marshall Law School, 1982), R.R.T., Associate Professor of Allied Health and Program Director of Respiratory Therapy (IUN)

Newell, Judith M., B.S. (Northern Illinois University, 1972), C.L.S., M.T. (ASCP) 1972, SM(ASCP) 1979, SI (1982), Lecturer and Program Director of Medical Laboratory Technology (IUN)

Nordschow, Carleton, M.D. (University of Iowa, 1953), Ph.D., (University of Iowa, 1964), Director of Medical Technology, Chairperson and Professor of Pathology

Oei, Tjien O., M.D. (University of Indonesia, 1958), Professor of Pathology

Pless, John E., M.D. (Indiana University, 1960), Professor of Pathology

Porter, Rebecca E., M.S (Indiana University, 1977), P.T. (1972), Associate Professor and Director of Physical Therapy

Ramaeker, LaVerne M., Ed.D. (University of Illinois, 1987), Associate Professor of Allied Health and Chairman (IUN)

Ryder, Kenneth, Ph.D. (Indiana University, 1972), M.D. (University of Illinois, 1975), Associate Professor of Pathology

Sample, Martha M., B.S. (Indiana University, 1974), M.T. (ASCP) 1974, N.M. (ASCP) 1978, Supervisor, Department of Pathology, Indianapolis

Sample, R. H., Ph.D. (Indiana University, 1985), Visiting Assistant Scientist, Department of Pathology, Indianapolis

Santiesteban, Joseph, Ph.D. (University of Florida, 1974), P.T. (1977), Associate Professor of Physical Therapy

Schreiner, Richard L., M.D. (Washington University, 1971), Professor of Pediatrics and Respiratory Therapy

Siders, Jean A., M.S. (Indiana University, 1976), M.T. (ASCP) 1971, Supervisor, Department of Pathology, University Hospital, Indianapolis

Simek, Erna, M.H.A. (Washington University, 1954), O.T.R. (1944), Associate Professor of Occupational Therapy

Skurka, Margaret A., M.S. (Purdue University, 1979), R.R.A. (1974), Associate Professor of Allied Health and Program Director of Medical Record Technology (IUN)

Smith, James W., M.D. (University of Iowa, 1959), Professor of Pathology

Steinfield, Jeanne, M.S. (Indiana University, 1976), M.T. (ASCP) 1967, S.M. (ASCP) 1975, Supervisor, Department of Pathology, University Hospital, Indianapolis

Swinehart, Susan, M.S. (Indiana University, 1986), O.T.R. (1974), Assistant Professor of Occupational Therapy, part time

Wellman, Henry N., M.D. (St. Louis University, 1961), Director of Nuclear Medicine, and Professor of Radiology

Wellman, Sara J., A.S. (Indiana University, 1974), A.R.T. (1974), Clinical Coordinator for Medical Record Technology Program (IUN)

Wilson, Edward R., M.A. (Indiana Central University, 1976), M.T. (ASCP) 1965, S.M. (ASCP) 1979, Supervisor, Department of Pathology, University Hospital, Indianapolis Zimmerman, Sarah E., Ph.D. (Wayne State University, 1969), Department of Pathology, Riley Hospital, Indianapolis

Adjunct Faculty

Ambrozaitis, Kazys G., M.D., (University of Tiubinen, West Germany 1947), Clinical Assistant Professor of Radiologic Technology (IUN)

Atkins, Judith A., B.S. (Indiana University, 1968), O.T.R. (1968), Adjunct Instructor in Occupational Therapy

Auksel, Pamela J., B.S. (Purdue University, 1976), Education Coordinator, St. Joseph's Hospital and Health Center, Kokomo, Adjunct Lecturer in Medical Technology

Brinkman, Karen, A.S. (Indiana University Northwest, 1973), R.T.(R)(ARRT)(1970), Clinical Instructor in Radiologic Technology (IUN)

Brown, Kathryn, A.S. (Indiana University, 1979), A.R.T. (1979), Adjunct Instructor in Medical Record Technology

Chin, Samuel, A.S. (Columbus Technical Institute, 1978), R.R.T. (1983), Clinical Instructor in Respiratory Therapy (IUN) Cox, Jane, R.T. (R)(ARRT)(1966), Lecturer in Radiologic Sciences, V.A. Hospital, Indianapolis Green, Edward, A.S. (Indiana University Northwest, 1975), R.R.T. (1977), Clinical Instructor in Respiratory Therapy (IUN) Griswold, Patricia A., M.S. (Butler University

Griswold, Patricia A., M.S. (Butler University, 1971), O.T.R. (1963), Adjunct Assistant Professor of Occupational Therapy

Harris, Danita, B.S. (Cabrini College, 1970), R.R.T. (1979), Clinical Instructor in Respiratory Therapy (IUN)

Hoban, Ann T., M.S. (Wayne State University, 1981), M.T.(ASCP) (1972), Instructor in Medical Laboratory Technology (IUN)

Kisling, Jeffrey A., A.S. (Indiana University, 1975), R.R.T. (1976), Lecturer in Respiratory Therapy

Laudani, JoAnn, A.S. (Indiana University Northwest, 1981), R.R.T. (1983), Clinical Instructor in Respiratory Therapy (IUN)

Lewis, Sidney, B.A. (Indiana University, 1972), R.T.(N)(ARRT)(1974),

C.N.M.T.(NMTCB)(1978), Instructor in Radiologic Sciences

Lilly, Jon, B.A. (Wabash College, 1975), R.T.(R)(ARRT)(1981), Clinical Instructor in Radiologic Technology (IUN)

Mosqueda, Joseph, A.S. (Indiana University Northwest, 1976), R.T.(R)(ARRT)(1975), Clinical Instructor in Radiologic Technology (IUN)

Peiffer, Geraldine Marie, M.D. (Loyola University, Stritch School of Medicine, 1949), Medical Director, Respiratory Therapy Program, Director, Department of Anesthesiology, St. Margaret Hospital, Hammond (IUN) Roller, Douglas R., B.S. (Indiana University, 1976), R.T.(N)(ARRT)(1976), C.N.M.T.(NMTCB)(1978), Instructor in Radiologic Sciences

Sarno, Sara, B.S. (University of Rochester, 1961), C.N.M.T., (NMTCB))(1978), R.T.(N)(ARRT) (1978), Instructor in Radiologic Sciences

Schmidl, Karen Joy, A.S. (Indiana University Northwest, 1973), R.T.(R)(ARRT)(1958), Clinical Instructor in Radiologic Technology (IUN)

Smith, Darryl Rex, M.D. (The Ohio State University, 1976) Adjunct Assistant Professor of Medical Technology, Parkview Hospital, Ft. Wayne

Squires, Jeffrey P., M.D. (Indiana University, 1978), Medical Director of School of Medical Technology at St. Joseph's Hospital and Health Center, Kokomo, Adjunct Assistant Professor of Medical Technology

Torrance, Martha S., M.S. (Indiana University, 1985), O.T.R. (1979), Adjunct Assistant Professor of Occupational Therapy

Williams, Fran M., M.S. (Purdue University 1978), Education Coordinator, Parkview Hospital, Ft. Wayne, Adjunct Instructor in Medical Technology

Wilson, Sue, A.S. (Indiana University Northwest, 1975), R.T.(R)(ARRT)(1976), Clinical Instructor in Radiologic Technology (IUN)

Indiana University

When you become a student at Indiana University, you join an academic community internationally known for the excellence and diversity of its programs. With 882 degree programs and 39 certificate programs, the University attracts students from all 50 states and around the world. The full-time faculty numbers over 3,000 and includes members of many academic societies such as the American Academy of Arts and Sciences, the American Philosophical Society, and the National Academy of Sciences.

Indiana University was founded at Bloomington in 1820 and is one of the oldest and largest of the state-supported universities. It serves more than 80,000 students on eight campuses. The residential campus at Bloomington and the urban center at Indianapolis form the core of the University system. Regional campuses in Gary, Fort Wayne, Kokomo, New Albany, Richmond, and South Bend join Bloomington and Indianapolis in bringing an education of high quality within reach of all of Indiana's citizens.

The Bloomington Campus

The environment and facilities of the Bloomington campus make it a dynamic place to live and study. Over 32,000 students pursue undergraduate and graduate degrees at Bloomington.

The academic resources of the campus provide both opportunity and challenge. The library system, with 42 libraries throughout Indiana, is one of the most extensive in the country. The Lilly Library is internationally known for its collection of rare books and manuscripts. Departments such as biology, chemistry, and physics are engaged in work at the frontiers of knowledge. Particularly notable is the 200-million-volt, variable particle cyclotron, which attracts scientists from around the world. The Schools of Business and Public and Environmental Affairs enjoy high prestige with business and government leaders. Programs of distinction are also offered in arts and sciences; education; health, physical education, and recreation; journalism; law; library and information science; and optometry. The School of Music is the nation's largest and one of its best. There are 75 research centers and institutes on the Bloomington campus, including the Kinsey Institute for Sex, Gender, and Reproduction.

An extraordinary variety of lectures and seminars complement classroom and laboratory inquiry. The University Theatre, the Art Museum, the William Hammond Mathers Museum, and the Musical Arts Center (home of the IU Opera Theater) serve as major resources for the University's programs in the performing and fine arts. The IU Auditorium presents many of the nation's finest touring artists and attractions.

Housing is provided on the Bloomington campus in residence halls, sororities, and fraternities. For married students and their families the University offers apartments and trailers. Students also rent off-campus housing in Bloomington.

The Bloomington campus provides many services for its students. The University Division gives special support and counseling to incoming freshmen, helping them to plan and carry through a sound academic program. Student Health Services, Career and Placement Support Services, Student Legal Services, Counseling and Psychological Services, Disabled Student Services, and services for minority students, women, and veterans are described in the student handbook, which is available from the Dean of Students office.

Indiana University Bloomington is a member of the Big Ten Conference. Men's and women's varsity teams participate in 18 sports. A large intramural sports program provides recreation for students, faculty, and staff. Tennis and squash courts, swimming pools, sports fields, running tracks, basketball courts, and an 18-hole golf course are available. Within a few miles of Bloomington are several thousand acres of state forest, wilderness trails, and lakes for swimming, boating, and fishing.

The Indianapolis Campus

Indiana University-Purdue University at Indianapolis (IUPUI) is an innovative urban campus. IU and Purdue programs and facilities merged at Indianapolis in 1969, and the campus continues to grow in both the range of academic offerings and the physical facilities. IUPUI also offers programs at Columbus, Indiana.

The IUPUI library system consists of six libraries serving the special interests of individual schools. In addition, the entire Indiana University library system is readily available through the interlibrary loan system.

The IU School of Medicine is the second largest in the nation with six teaching hospitals and almost 100 clinics. Significant research in the medical sciences is carried out in 11 federally funded, research institutes. Research projects are also conducted in many other fields, some in cooperation with government, business, and industry.

Schools at IUPUI are deeply involved in service to citizens, working closely with public and private agencies in providing expertise to solve problems. Such service projects enable students to enrich their education with practical experience.

Lectures, theatre presentations, and other special events are available on campus, and the city provides many locations and programs for the arts, sports, and entertainment. IUPUI has three major athletic facilities, all of which have been the sites of major national and international competitions, including the U.S. Open Clay Court Championships and the 1987 Pan Am Games. Men's and women's varsity teams participate in six sports, and an intramural sports program offers recreation for all students.

IUPUI provides on-campus housing for a limited number of students. The Housing Office maintains a list of apartments available off campus in the Indianapolis area.

Services for students are described in the student handbook, available from the Dean for Student Services. They include special services for disabled persons, veterans, women, and foreign students; a day care center; personal counseling; career counseling and job placement; financial aid; and the Student/Employee Health Center.

Policies of the University

Nondiscrimination Policy Indiana University provides its services without regard to sex, age, race, religion, ethnic origin, veteran status, or disability. An Affirmative Action Office on each campus monitors the University's policies and assists individuals who have questions or problems related to discrimination.

Confidentiality of Student Records In accordance with federal statutes and regulations, student records are confidential and available for disclosure to persons other than the student only under stated conditions.

Student Rights and Responsibilities A statement of students' rights and responsibilities is included in the student

handbook, *Ins & Outs*, which contains a description of due process hearings in the event of disciplinary action.

Degree Requirements Students are responsible for understanding all requirements for graduation and for completing them by the time they expect to graduate. Information about a specific school or division can be found in the front section of the bulletin for that school.

Requests for deviation from department, program, or school requirements may be granted only by written approval from the respective chairperson, director, or dean (or their respective administrative representative). Disposition at each level is final

Residency Status

Prospective students from out of state should be aware that the criteria for establishing instate residency and thus qualifying for instate fee rates are very strict. Except under specific circumstances, persons who have moved to Indiana for the primary purpose of attending a college, university, or other institution of higher education will not be able to qualify for in-state fees during their academic career. Rules for determining residency are listed below.

Rules Determining Residency Status

These rules establish the policy under which students shall be classified as residents or nonresidents upon all campuses of Indiana University for University fee purposes. Nonresident students shall pay a nonresident fee in addition to fees paid by a resident student.

These rules shall take effect February 1, 1974; provided, that no person properly classified as a resident student before February 1, 1974, shall be adversely affected by these rules, if he or she attended the University before that date and while he or she remains continuously enrolled in the University.

1. "Residence" as the term, or any of its variations (e.g., "resided"), as used in the context of these rules, means the place where an individual has his or her permanent home, at which he or she remains when not called elsewhere for labor, studies, or other special or temporary purposes, and to which he or she returns in seasons of repose. It is the place a person has voluntarily fixed as a permanent habitation for himself or herself with an intent to remain in such

place for an indefinite period. A person at any one time has but one residence, and a residence cannot be lost until another is gained.

(a) A person entering the state from another state or country does not at that time acquire residence for the purpose of these rules, but except as provided in rule 2(c), such person must be a resident for 12 months in order to qualify as a resident student for fee purposes.

(b) Physical presence in Indiana for the predominant purpose of attending a college, university, or other institution of higher education, shall not be counted in determining the 12-month period of residence; nor shall absence from Indiana for such purpose deprive a person of resident student status.

- 2. A person shall be classified as a "resident student" if he or she has continuously resided in Indiana for at least 12 consecutive months immediately preceding the first scheduled day of classes of the semester or other session in which the individual registers in the University, subject to the exception in (c) below.
 - (a) The residence of an unemancipated person under 21 years of age follows that of the parents or of a legal guardian who has actual custody of such person or administered the property of such person. In the case of divorce or separation, if either parent meets the residence requirements, such person will be considered a resident.
 - (b) If such person comes from another state or country for the predominant purpose of attending the University, he or she shall not be admitted to resident student status upon the basis of the residence of a guardian in fact, except upon appeal to the Standing Committee on Residence in each case.
 - (c) Such person may be classified as a resident student without meeting the 12-month residence requirement within Indiana if his or her presence in Indiana results from the establishment by his or her parents of their residence within the state and if he or she proves that the move was predominantly for reasons other than to enable such person to become entitled to the status of "resident student."

- (d) When it shall appear that the parents of a person properly classified as a "resident student" under subparagraph (c) above have removed their residence from Indiana, such person shall then be reclassified to the status of nonresident; provided, that no such reclassification shall be effective until the beginning of a semester next following such removal.
- (e) A person once properly classified as a resident student shall be deemed to remain a resident student so long as remaining continuously enrolled in the University until such person's degree shall have been earned, subject to the provisions of subparagraph (d) above.
- The foreign citizenship of a person shall not be a factor in determining resident student status if such person has legal capacity to remain permanently in the United States.
- 4. A person classified as a nonresident student may show that he or she is exempt from paying the nonresident fee by clear and convincing evidence that he or she has been a resident (see rule 1 above) of Indiana for the 12 months prior to the first scheduled day of classes of the semester in which his or her fee status is to be changed. Such a student will be allowed to present his or her evidence only after the expiration of 12 months from the residence qualifying date, i.e., the date upon which the student commenced the 12-month period for residence. The following factors will be considered relevant in evaluating a requested change in a student's nonresident status and in evaluating whether his or her physical presence in Indiana is for the predominant purpose of attending a college, university, or other institution of higher education. The existence of one or more of these factors will not require a finding of resident student status, nor shall the nonexistence of one of more require a finding of nonresident student status. All factors will be considered in combination, and ordinarily resident student status will not result from the doing of acts which are required or routinely done by sojourners in the state or which are merely auxiliary to the fulfillment of educational purposes.
 - (a) The residence of a student's parents or guardians.
 - (b) The situs of the source of the student's income.

- (c) To whom a student pays his or her taxes, including property taxes.
- (d) The state in which a student's automobile is registered.
- (e) The state issuing the student's driver's license.
- (f) Where the student is registered to vote.
- (g) The marriage of the student to a resident of Indiana.
- (h) Ownership of property in Indiana and outside of Indiana.
- The residence claimed by the student on loan applications, federal income tax returns, and other documents.
- The place of the student's summer employment, attendance at summer school, or vacation.
- (k) The student's future plans including committed place of future employment or future studies.
- (l) Admission to a licensed profession in Indiana.
- (m) Membership in civic, community, and other organizations in Indiana or elsewhere.
- (n) All present and intended future connections or contacts outside of Indiana.
- (o) The facts and documents pertaining to the person's past and existing status as a student.
- (p) Parents' tax returns and other information, particularly when emancipation is claimed.
- The fact that a person pays taxes and votes in the state does not in itself establish residence, but will be considered as hereinbefore set forth.
- 6. The registrar or the person fulfilling those duties on each campus shall classify each student as resident or nonresident and may require proof of all relevant facts. The burden of proof is upon the student making a claim to a resident student status.
- 7. A Standing Committee on Residence shall be appointed by the president of the University and shall include two students from among such as may be nominated by the student body presidents of one or more of the campuses of the University. If fewer than four are nominated, the President may appoint from among students not nominated.
- A student who is not satisfied by the determination of the registrar has the right to lodge a written appeal with the Standing Committee on Residence within

- 30 days of receipt of written notice of the registrar's determination which committee shall review the appeal in a fair manner and shall afford to the student a personal hearing upon written request. A student may be represented by counsel at such hearing. The committee shall report its determination to the student in writing. If no appeal is taken within the time provided herein, the decision of the registrar shall be final and binding.
- 9. The Standing Committee on Residence is authorized to classify a student as a resident student, though not meeting the specific requirements herein set forth, if such student's situation presents unusual circumstances and the individual classification is within the general scope of these rules. The decision of the committee shall be final and shall be deemed equivalent to a decision of the Trustees of Indiana University.
- 10. A student or prospective student who shall knowingly provide false information or shall refuse to provide or shall conceal information for the purpose of improperly achieving resident student status shall be subject to the full range of penalties, including expulsion, provided for by the University, as well as to such other punishment which may be provided for by law.
- 11. A student who does not pay additional monies which may be due because of his or her classification as a nonresident student within 30 days after demand, shall thereupon be indefinitely suspended.
- 12. A student or prospective student who fails to request resident student status within a particular semester or session and to pursue a timely appeal (see rule 8) to the Standing Committee on Residence shall be deemed to have waived any alleged overpayment of fees for that semester or session.
- 13. If any provision of these rules or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect other provisions or applications of these rules which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of these rules are severable.

Transfer to Other Indiana University Campuses

The policy stated below concerning transfer credit pertains to undergraduate students only.

Each year many Indiana University students transfer from one campus of the University to another to continue their studies toward a degree. These transfers are often necessitated by financial difficulties, illness, or other personal problems, but just as often they are a matter of personal preference. Few of the other multicampus universities are organized to facilitate this volume of student migration. Indiana University credits transferred from one campus of Indiana University to another will be evaluated and accepted in terms at least as favorable as credits transferred from other accredited institutions in the United States. No review of the credits will be undertaken except in good faith terms of the same criteria used in evaluating external credits. In fact, students transferring within the Indiana University system are treated much more favorably because of the similarity of course work on the eight campuses.

Students who wish to transfer to another campus should follow these procedures:

- Inform your academic adviser of your decision as soon as possible. Degree requirements may vary from one campus to another but if your adviser knows of your plan, your academic program can be designed to meet the requirements of the campus you will eventually attend.
- Contact the department chairperson (or the designated adviser) at the campus you plan to attend. Discuss your plan and ask about any special procedures. For example, transfers in fine arts must submit portfolios of their work. Music transfer students must be auditioned.
- 3. As the date of transfer approaches, check with your campus registrar to get information on registration dates and procedures on the other campus. If there is a preregistration or pre-enrollment procedure at the other campus, you should plan to take advantage of it. Contact the registrar of the other campus to determine whether you can fulfill any of these responsibilities by phone. Your registrar has a direct telephone line to all other registrars.
- 4. When you arrive on the new campus, contact your assigned academic adviser or department chairperson as soon as possible. Discuss your academic progress to date and the additional course work required for your program.

Fees

Credit hour fees listed here were approved at the May 1987 meeting of the Indiana University Board of Trustees. All fees are subject to change by action of the trustees. See the campus *Schedule of Classes* for the most recent fees.

BLOOMINGTON CAMPUS	Indiana Resident	Nonresident
Undergraduate ¹	\$59.60/credit hour	\$168.25/credit hour
Graduate ¹	\$77.80/credit hour	\$212.80/credit hour
Professional		
Law	\$77.80/credit hour	\$212.80/credit hour
Medicine (Combined	\$77.80/credit hour	\$212.80/credit hour
Degree Program)		
Medicine	\$4,500/year	\$10,300/year
Optometry	\$77.80/credit hour	\$212.80/credit hour
Thesis enrollment	\$77.80/semester	\$212.80/semester
Auditing (no credit)	\$20/credit hour	\$20/credit hour

Special Fees (Applicable to Residents and Nonresidents)

Application for admission

United States \$20 \$35 Foreign Applied music (majors)2 \$100/semester Applied music (nonmajors)2 \$100/course Deferred billing charge3 \$15 Dissertation Research (G901)4 \$100 Education early experience⁵ \$23/course Education practicum⁶ \$44/course Education student teaching7 \$75/course Film courses8 \$20/course \$23.50/semester

Health service fee⁹ HPER elective courses¹⁰ Independent Study

Undergraduate courses High school-level courses Regional campus rate \$43/half-unit course

\$15 to \$120

³ Fee is assessed if deferment option is selected on the schedule confirmation/account statement.

⁵ See Schedule of Classes for list of courses in which this fee is applied.

7 Students enrolled in student teaching courses M423, M424, M425, M451, M480, M482, M486, and/or M363, K488 will be assessed \$75 per course.

¹ Includes credit courses in the School of Continuing Studies.

² Persons who are not enrolled in a degree program are charged \$320 per applied music course.

⁴ To keep their candidacies active, doctoral students with 90 credit hours or more and Master of Fine Arts students with 60 credit hours or more may enroll in G901 for a flat fee of \$100. Also, they must have completed all graduate degree requirements except for the dissertation or final project/performance. Enrollment in G901 is limited to six times.

⁶ Students enrolled in Education M470 Practicum and/or M550 Practicum will be assessed a \$44 fee per course. The fee is also applicable to the following courses: G524, G624, K595, P595, P596, P696, P699, R473, V580, V680, W410, and X425.

Film courses assessed \$20 per course include Comparative Literature C190, C291, C390, C391, C392, C393, C394, C491, C492, C493, C590, and C592; English L295 and L395; and French and Italian F391, M390, and M455.

Students enrolled in more than 3 credit hours will pay a mandatory health service fee of \$21.50 per semester, \$9.50 for Summer Session I, and \$14 for Summer Session II. Students enrolled for 3 credit hours or less will be charged on a full-cost, fee-for-service basis if they use the services of the Student Health Center.

¹⁰ Health, physical education, and recreation electives that carry special fees in addition to credit hour fees include billiards, \$15; bowling, \$15; fencing, \$7.50; golf (advanced), \$30; golf (beginning), \$15; horsemanship, \$115; riflery (E161), \$30; rowing (E277), \$30; sailing, \$25; scuba certification, \$120; shooting sports (S351), \$28; skiing (downhill), \$75; tennis pavilion, \$80; and trap and skeet (E183), \$40. Fees are paid directly to the facility.

Journalism laboratory ¹¹	\$50/course	
Laboratory courses ¹²	\$20/course	
Late payment of fees	\$30	
Late program change ¹³	\$10/course	
Late registration ¹⁴	\$30 to \$60	
Library science (L644) commercial		
data base fee	\$36	
Microscope (medical science	\$100/year	
courses only)	\$50/semester	
Music instrument rental		
Music majors	\$23/semester	
Non-music majors	\$33/semester	
Nursing clinics ¹⁵	\$9.50/contact hour	
Practice room ¹⁶	\$17/semester	
Recital fee (music)17	\$20 to \$50	

Special Credit and Credit by Examination: Regular credit hour fees apply, except the fee is waived for University Division freshmen during the first two regular semesters following their matriculation at Indiana University and is reduced to \$10 per credit hour for undergraduate transfer students during the first regular semester following their matriculation at Indiana University.

C 1	examination	\$12 to \$17.50
Special	examination	\$12 to \$17.50

Special examination	\$12 to \$17.50
Student activity fee ¹⁸	\$5.45 or \$10.90/semester
	\$2.75 or \$5.45/summer session
Studio courses19	\$100/course
Tr	

Transcripts
Active (current) students \$4
Inactive (past) students \$5

INDIANAPOLIS CAMPUS	Indiana Resident	Nonresident
Undergraduate	\$58/credit hour	\$159.50/credit hour
Graduate	\$77.80/credit hour	\$212.80/credit hour
Professional		
Dentistry (Undergraduate)	\$4,300/year	\$9,000/year
Dentistry (Graduate)	\$77.80/credit hour	\$212.80/credit hour
Law	\$77.80/credit hour	\$212.80/credit hour
Medicine	\$4,500/year	\$10,300/year
Thesis enrollment	\$77.80/semester	\$212.80/semester
Auditing (no credit)	applicable credit hour rate	

¹¹ Journalism courses assessed a fee of \$50 per course include J200, J210, J343, J344, J351, J352, J353, J354, J490, and J520.

After drop-and-add week (100 percent refund period), students will be assessed \$10 for each course added, exchanged, or dropped, including a section change, credit hours change, or credit/audit change.

¹² See Schedule of Classes for list of courses assessed a laboratory fee.

¹⁴ A late registration processing fee will be assessed any student who does not register during the scheduled registration period. The fee is \$30 for students who register by the last Friday before classes begin and increases by \$10 on the Monday of each successive week to a maximum of \$60. No registrations will be accepted after the sixth week of the semester without the approval of the dean of students.

¹⁵ Includes Nursing B302, J350, J351, J352, K490, and P353.

¹⁶ If applied music fee has been paid, no additional fees are charged for practice rooms. Use of practice rooms is limited to one hour per day.

¹⁷ Recital fee consists of \$20 for a one-page program, \$30 for a two-page program. The fee for recording the recital is an additional \$20.

¹⁸ Students enrolled for more than 3 credit hours during the fall and spring semesters will be assessed a mandatory student activity fee of \$10.90. Students enrolled for 3 or fewer credit hours pay a mandatory fee of \$5.45. Summer term students enrolled in more than 3 credit hours pay a mandatory fee of \$5.45; students enrolled in 3 or fewer credit hours pay \$2.75.

¹⁹ Students enrolled in any of the following studio courses are assessed a fee of \$95 per course: Journalism J385 and Telecommunications R208, R309, R407, R408, and R409.

Special Fees (Applicable to Residents and Nonresidents)

Application for admission

United States\$20Foreign\$35Deferred billing charge\$10

HELP programs²⁰ \$26.87 to \$161.25/course

Laboratory courses \$9/contact hour Late program change²¹ \$10/course Late registration²² \$15 to \$60

Library science (L644) commercial

data base fee \$36

Nursing clinics \$9.50/contact hour Student activity fee²³ \$2.50/semester

²⁰ Courses X011, X012, X013, X014, and X017 are \$26.87. Course X022 is \$161.25. Course Q081 is \$53.75 for 1 credit hour or \$161.25 for 3 credit hours.

²¹ After drop-and-add week (100 percent refund period), students will be assessed \$10 for each course added, exchanged, or dropped, including a section change, credit hours change, or credit/audit change.

²² A \$15 registration fee is in effect upon conclusion of registration through the end of the first week of classes. Late registration after the first week of classes will be assessed as follows: second week, \$30; third week, \$45; fourth week, \$60. No registrations will be accepted after the fourth week of classes without the approval of the dean of faculties.

²³ Part-time students enrolled in 1-8 credit hours pay \$2.50 per semester. Full-time students enrolled in 9 or more credit hours pay \$5 per semester.

Fee Refund Schedule	
Time of Withdrawal	Refund
9 through 16 weeks	
During 1st week of classes or	
through Drop/Add Day	100%
During 2nd week of classes	75%
During 3rd week of classes	50%
During 4th week of classes	25%
During 5th week of classes	
and thereafter	None
5 through 8 weeks	
During 1st week of classes or	
through Drop/Add Day	100%
During 2nd week of classes	50%
During 3rd week of classes	
and thereafter	None
2 through 4 weeks	

1 week or less
During 1st day of class
During 2nd day of classes
During 3rd day of classes
and thereafter
None

100%

None

50%

During the 1st and 2nd day or

During 3rd and 4th day of classes

through Drop/Add Day

During 5th day of classes

and thereafter

The refund policy applies to credit hour fees and all course-related mandatory fees, wherein the student is required to pay a specific fee.

Procedure Students must apply to the Office of the Registrar and the Office of the Bursar when they withdraw from classes.

Fee Reductions and Financial Aid

Scholarships and Financial Aid Students can find information about loans and part-time employment through the Office of Scholarships and Financial Aids and through their schools or departments.

Fee Courtesy The following statements describe the privilege of fee courtesy extended to full-time or retired University faculty and staff by the trustees. For a full policy statement, please refer to personnel policy No. 18, revised January 1985, available in the personnel office of each campus.

Fees for a full-time employee (100 percent F.T.E.) who is appointed within the first week of a semester or summer sessions and enrolled in 1-6 credit hours will be assessed at one-half the resident credit hour rate at the campus where the employee enrolls, for the actual number of hours taken. Fees for up to 3 credit hours per semester or summer session may be refunded at the end of the

semester if the employee achieves a grade of C or higher. Fees for more than 6 credit hours in a semester or summer sessions will be assessed at full resident rate on that campus.

The spouse of a full-time (100 percent F.T.E.) employee appointed within the first week of a semester or summer sessions will be entitled to a fee courtesy consisting of one-half of the resident undergraduate fee rate at the campus where the spouse enrolls for each credit hour up to the maximum of 3 credit hours per semester or summer sessions. This credit will be applied against the full fees of the student at the appropriate resident or nonresident rate.

Dependent children of full-time faculty and staff appointed within the first week of a semester or summer session will be entitled to a fee courtesy consisting of one-half of the resident undergraduate fee rate at the campus where the child enrolls. Dependent children are defined as all legally dependent children including stepchildren, children who have employees as their legal guardians, children of retired employees eligible for group life insurance benefits, children of disabled employees receiving long-term disability benefits, and children of deceased employees of 20 years or more full-time service.

The fee courtesy for dependent children will be granted only to students registered at Indiana University and only for the number of credit hours required to complete the curriculum in which the student is enrolled (up to 140 credit hours). This fee courtesy does not apply to graduate or post-baccalaureate professional study.

To receive fee courtesy for dependent children, the full-time employee must fill out the application titled Request for Fee Courtesy — Dependent Children, available from the personnel office of each campus, and return the completed form to the personnel office prior to registration for verification of employment. If this application has not been approved and processed prior to registration, the student will be required to pay full fees and then will be issued a refund for the portion covered by the fee courtesy when the application is approved.

Veterans Benefits Eligible students will receive veterans benefits according to the following scale, which is based on the number of credit hours in which the student is enrolled.

Undergraduate	Fall & Spring		IUPUI	Bloomington
Benefits	Semesters	Summer I	Summer II	Summer II
full	12 or more	4	4	6
three-quarters	9-11	3	3	4-5
one-half	6-8	2	2	3
tuition only	fewer than 6	1	1	1-2
Graduate				
Benefits				
full	9 or more	4	4	5
three-quarters	7-8	3	3	4
one-half	5-6	2	3	3
tuition only	fewer than 5	1	1	1-2

It is the responsibility of the veteran or veteran dependent to sign up for benefits each semester or summer session of enrollment. It is also the responsibility of the veteran or veteran dependent to notify the office of Disabled Student Services and Veterans Affairs of any schedule change that may increase or decrease the number of benefits allowed.

Veterans with service-connected disabilities may qualify for the Veterans Administration Vocational Rehabilitation Program. They should contact their regional Veterans Administration office for eligibility information.

INDIANA UNIVERSITY BULLETIN Indiana University
Bloomington, Indiana 47401

Return Postage Guaranteed

SECOND CLASS POSTAGE PAID AT BLOOMINGTON, INDIANA

BULLETIN MUST BE MAILED BY THE OFFICE OF ADMISSIONS BULLETIN MAIL ROOM FOR SECOND-CLASS POSTAGE

83 U.S. POSTAL REGULATIONS REQUIRE